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Independent auditor’s report

To the Management and Management Board of the
State Oil Company of the Azerbaijan Republic

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of the State Oil Company
of the Azerbaijan Republic and its subsidiaries (the Group), which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material
respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2019 and its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Group in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(including International Independence Standards) (IESBA Code), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.
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We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The
results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below,
provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Impairment of oil and gas assets

We considered this matter to be one of most
significance in the audit due to the significance of
the Group's oil and gas assets, the high level of
subjectivity in respect of assumptions underlying
impairment analysis and significant judgements
made by management. In addition, volatility in oil
prices over the last few years impacts the Group's
operations and cash flows and triggers potential
impairment.

The key assumptions used by management and
results of impairment tests are disclosed in
Notes 3, 15 and 29 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Estimation of oil and gas reserves

The estimate of oil and gas reserves has a
significant impact on the impairment test and
depreciation and decommissioning provisions.
The Group involved internationally recognized
independent reserves engineers to evaluate its oil
and gas reserves.

Information on oil and gas reserves is disclosed in
Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.

We evaluated the change in risk profile of

the Group's assets and assessed impairment
indicators. We involved our internal valuation
experts and compared assumptions used in
impairment testing such as oil prices forecast,
reserves and resources volumes and discount rates
with available external data. We checked
mathematical accuracy of impairment models and
sensitivity analysis. We compared calculated
amounts of impairment charge and unsuccessful
exploration assets write offs to amounts recorded
in the Group's accounting records. We analyzed
significant judgement made by management.

We analyzed disclosure of impairment in the notes
to the consolidated financial statements.

We compared the assumptions used by the reserve
engineers with the Group's approved budget and
historical data. We assessed the underlying
assumptions and compared estimates of reserves
and resources provided by reserves engineers to
the amounts included in the calculation of
impairment, depreciation, depletion and
amortization and decommissioning provisions.

We analyzed disclosure of oil and gas reserves in
the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Other information included in the Group’s 2019 Annual Report

Other information consists of the information included in the Group's 2019 Annual Report, other
than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. Management is
responsible for the other information. The Group's 2019 Annual Report is expected to be made
available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and
we will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially

misstated.
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Responsibilities of management and the Management Board for the consolidated financial
statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with IFRSs and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Management Board is responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting process.
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

> Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

> Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

> Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

> Conclude on the appropriateness of management'’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited



EY

Building a better
working world

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

> Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of
the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Management Board regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Management Board with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Management Board, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The partner in charge of the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Nargiz Karimova.

M&MM (CIS) B

19 June 2020

Baku, Azerbaijan

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global Limited



State Oil Company of the Azerbaijan Republic

Consoclidated financial statements

Consolidated statement of financial pesition

{Amoints presenled are in millions of Azerbaijani Manats)

Assets

Current assets

Cash and cash eguivalents
Restricted cash

Deposits

Trade and other receivables

Inventories- _
-Other current financial assets

Other current assets
Total current assets

Non-currerit assets.
Property, plant and.equipment
Goodwill '

Intangible assets other than goodwill
investments n joint ventures
Investments in associates
Right-of-use assets

Deferred tax assets

Other non-current financial assets
Othet non-current assets

Total nfon-current assets

Total assets

Equity

Charter capital

Additional paid-in capital

Retained eamifgs

Other capital reserves

Put option en company’s shares.

Gain on sale / purchase.of subsidiary share
Cumulative translation differences

Equity attributable to equity holders of the Group

Non-controlling interests
Total equity

The accompanying notes are an integrai part of these consolidated financial statements:

31 Deceamber

31 December

Note 2019 2018
8 7,084 6,640
9 187 276
8 106 151
10 8,919 8,395
11 2,067 2,579
12 755 ‘851
12 49 -

19,167 19,292

15 31,548 28,259
39 317 301
16 1,055 714
17 5,398 5,301
18’ 4,208 4,359
4 599 -
33 762 700
14 1,421 1,323
13 900. 1,887
46,208 42,844

65,375 62,136

27 4,323 4,147
27 5,576 5,299
7,576 7.659
(83 (81)
(1,310 (1,310

27 1,127 1,168
5,032 5,900

23,141 22,812

1,187 1,132

24,328 23,944




State Oil Company of the Azerbaijan Republic Consolidated financial statements

Consolidated statement of financial position (continued)

(Amounts presented are in millions of Azerbaijani Manats)

31 December 31 December

Note 2019 2018
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 19 11,334 11,780
Short-term and current portion of long-term borrowings 20 4,173 4,013
Taxes payable 21 572 690
Contract liabilities 19 525 305
Deferred acquisition consideration payable 26 157 157
Current lease liabilities 4 123 -
Other provisions for liabilities and charges 23 75 56
Deferred income 24 & 1
Other current liabilities 25 324 355
Total current liabilities 17,283 17,367
Non-current liabilities
Long-term borrowings 20 11,369 9,659
Advances received for the sale of interest in PSA 34 4,313 4,313
Put option liabilities 35 2,718 2,713
Deferred tax liabilities 33 1,627 1,412
Asset retirement obligations 22 1,545 1,079
Non-current lease liabilities 4 508 =
Deferred acquisition consideration payable 26 570 529
Other provisions for liabilities and charges 23 163 162
Deferred income 24 70 58
Other non-current liabilities 25 881 910
Total non-current liabilities 23,764 20,825
Total liabilities 41,047 38,192
Total liabilities and equity 65,375 62,136

Approved for issue and signed on behalf of the Group on 19 June 2020.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

— ( e

Mr. Suleyman Gasymov

Vice-President for Economic Affairs
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State’ Qil Company of the Azerbaijan Republic

Consolidated financial statements

Consolidated statemerit of profit or loss and other comprehensive income

(Amounts presentad are in milkions of Azerbaijani Manats)

Revenue
Cost of sales
Gross profit

Distribution expenses’

General and administrative expenses

Loss cn disposal of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets

Social expenses

Exploration and evaluation eXpenses

Expected Credit Loss (ECL)

Other operating expenses

Other operating income

Operating profit

Interest revenue calculated using effective interest method
Cther finance income '

Finance costs

Foreign exchange gains and losses, net

Share of resilt of joint ventures

Share of result of associates

Profit before income tax

Income tax expenses

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive loss.

Other comprehensive loss to be reclassified to profit-or loss
in subsequent periods - currency trarislation differences.

Other comprehénsive [oss not to be reclassified to profit or
loss In‘subseguent periods - loss oninvestments at FVYOC!

Other comprehensive loss for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

Profit is attributable to:
Equity holders of the Group
Non-conirolling interests

Total comprehensive (loss)/income attributable to:
Equity holders of thié Group
Non-controlling interests

2018

Note 2019 {(Restated*)
28 83,752 107,762
29 (77.,960) (102,032)
5,792 5,730

29 (1,240) (1,198)
29 (1,462) (1,348)
(10) _(15)

(118) (105)

28 (65) (69)
29 49y 85
29 (605) (403}
30 341 916
2,584 3,595

31 163 184
31 47 28
32 {1,160) (1,126)
{319) {698)

17 14 213
18 (5) 24
1,328 2,220

33 (677) (9986)
651 1,224

(90) (241)

(22) (74)

{112) {315)

539 909

602 1,109

49 115

651 1,224

599 1,160

(60) (251)

539 509

* Certain amounts shown hare do not corfespond to the 2098 Financial Statemenis and refloct restatement made as.

detailed in Nole 2.

The accompanying notes are an-integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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State Oil Company of the Azerbaijan Republic Consolidated financial statements

Consolidated statement of cash flows

{Amourits presented &re jn millions of AZerbaijanf Manats, unfess otherwise stated)

Note. 2018 2018

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before fhcome tax 1,328 2,220
Adjustments for: _
‘Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 29 1,603 1,391
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 4 89 -
Amortisation of intangible assets 16. 61 43
Tmpairment-of propegity, plant and equipmiant 15 286 161
ECL 29 49 (25)
Loss on disposais of property, plant and. equipment and

intangible assets 10 15
Other Finance Income £y | {47) {28)
Interest revenue calculated using effective interest methad 31 {163) (184)
Finance costs 32 1,160 1,126
Foreign exchange rate differences 208 1,002
Share of resuit of agsociates and joint ventures 17,18 {9y (237)
Bargain purchase gain Kick (19} =
Other-non-cash transactions 66 {801}
Qperating cash flows before working capital changes ' 4,622 4,883
{Increase)decrease in' trade and other receivables (527) 1,027
Decrease in inventories. o 670 1,700
Decrease in trade and other payables and confract liabilities 417 {402)
Change in other assets and liabilities 205 {5)
Change-in provisions 85 {19}
Cash generated from operations 4,638 7,184
Income: taxes paid {598) (590)
Interest paid {873} (885)
Net cash flows froim operating activities 3,067 5,709
Cash flows from investing activities _ _
Acquisitions of subsidiary (net of cash acquired) cie] (215} (n
Additianal contribution in associates and joint ventures {103) {201
Purchiise of property, plant and equipmenit {3,946}, {4.672)
Purchase of intangible assets (44) (32)
Placement of deposits (138) (28)
Withdrawal of deposits 109 134
Interest recejved 107 171
Dividends received from associates and joint ventures 148 190
Proceeds from disposal of associates. and JVs 9 -
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equment 38 112
Advances réceived for sale of interestin PSA - 237
Proceeds from loans provided to joint ventures/associates - 170
l.oan issued fo related parties (29} (34)
Proceeds from sale of disposal group - 80
Purchase of financial instrument (33} {161
Net cash flows used in investing activities ' {4,099) {4,033)
Cash flows from firancing activities
Proceeds from borrowings. 8,744 5,801
Repaymant of borrowings (4,869) {6,834
Contribution:to subsndiary by nen-controlling shargholder ' 8 98
Proceeds fiom sale of non-contraliing interests 27 - 23
Payment of isase liabilities. 4 (59)
Increase in charter capital and additiona! paid-in capitai 27 453 1,190
Dividends paid to nan-controiling interests - {122)
Distribution to the Governent 27 (685) {680y
Contribution from the Government - 578
Net cash flows from finanging activities 1,592 54
Net foreign exchange difference on cash and. cash eguivalents {120} (290)
ECL reversal / (ECL} for cash-and ¢ash equivalents 8 4 {17)
Net incredse in cash and cash equivalents 444 1,423
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the yaar 8 6,640 5,217
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year B 7,084, 6,640

The accompanying notes are-an integral partof these consolidated financial statements.



State Oil Company of the Azerbaijan Republic Notes to the consolidated financial statements for 2019

(Amounts presented are in millions of Azerbaijani Manals, unless otherwise stated)

1. The Group and its operations

The State Oil Company of the Azerbaijan Republic (‘SOCAR") was established by the Presidential Decree on
13 September 1892 in accordance with Azerbaijjani legislation and is domiciled in the Azeérbaijart Republic,
SOCAR is involved in upstream, midstream and downstream opétations. SOCAR'’s main functions: pertain {o
the extraction, refining, transportation of oil, gas and gas condensates, and salé of gas and oit. and gas
products. SOCAR is 100 per cent owned by the Government of the Azerbaijan Republic (the "Government”).
SOCAR’s registered address is 121 Heydar Aliyev Avenue, AZ 1029 Baku, Azerbailan Republic,
Information about subsidiaries.

The cansclidated financial statements of the Group inciude the following material subsidiaries:

Principal Country of % equity interest

Name activities incorporation 2019 2018
SOCAR Turkey Enerji A.S. Refinery . Turkéy 100% 100%
.Azerbaijan (ACG) Ltd QOit production Cayman Isiands 100% 100%
Azerbaijan (Shah Deniz) Ltd ~Gas production Cayman Istands 100%. 100%
Caspian Drilling Company (CDC) Drilling operations Azerbaijan 92% 82%
SOCAR Eneérgy Georgia LLC. Sales anhd Distribution. Georgia 76%: 76%
SOCAR Overseas LLC. Sales and Distribution UAE 100% 100%
SOCAR Trading Holding Sales and Distribution Malta 100% 100%
Azerbaijan (BTC) Ltd Sales and Distribution  Cayman islands 100% 100%
Cooperative Menkent U.A. Sales and Distribution Netherlands 160% 100%
SOCAR Energy Holdings AG Sales and Distribution Switzerland 100% 100%
SOCAR Energy Ukraine Sales and Distribution ~ Ukraine” 100% 100%
Azerbaijan (SCP) LTD Sales and Distribution  Cayman Islands 100% 100%
SCCAR Petroleum CJSC Sales and Distribution Azerbaijan 100% 100%
Baku Shipyard LLC Construction Azerbaijan 87% 70%
SOCAR Polymier Investments LLC  Cheniicals production Azerbaijan 57% 52%
BOS Shelf LLC Construction Azerbaijan 90% 90%
Gacrux Middle East investment _

Holging LTD Construction UAE 100% -

On 17 June 2019, SOCAR Turkey Enerji A.S., the Group’s subsidiary dicquired 80 per cent shares of Bursagaz
and Kayserlgaz and 100 per cent shares of Milenicom, EWE Enerji, Enervis and Kay Solar Projects (Note-38).

2.  Significant accounting policies

21 Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statéments of SOCAR and its subsidiaries, associdtes, joint ventures and joint.
operations (collectively referred to as “the Group”) have been prepared in accordance with international
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS") as issued by the International Accounting-Standards. Board (ASB").
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set
out below, These policies have been consistently applied to all the periods presented.

2.2 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financiat statements of the Group.and its subsidiaries as
at 31 December 2019.



State Qif Company of the Azerbaijan Republic Notes to the consolidated financial statements for 2019

(Amounts presented are in millions of Azerbaijani Manats, unless otherwise stated)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
2.2 'Basis of consolidation {continued)

Subsidiaries.are all entities (including special-purpose entities) over which.the Group has control. Control is
achieved when the Group is exposéd, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investée
and has the ability to affect those retuins through its power over the investee. Specifically, the Group controls
an investee if and oniy if the Group has:

- Power over the'investee (i.e., existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities
of the investee);
- Exposure, or rights, to varfable returns from its involvement with the investee: and

> The ability to use its power overthe investee to affect its returns.

When the Group has less than a majority of the vating or similar rights of an investee, the Group corisiders all
‘rélevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

- The co_nt_raciua_l_a_rrangernent(s_} with the other vote holders of the investee:
» Rights aris_ing_ frem other contractual arrangements;

> The Group's: voting rights-and potenitial veting rights.

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and dircumstances indicate that there
are changes.-to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group. loses conirol of the subsidiary. Assets,
liabilities, income’ and expenses of a subsidiary acglired or disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated financial statements from the date the- Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to
control the subsidiary: '

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (“OCI") are attributed to the equity holders
of the parent of the Group and to the rien-controlling interests, even if this resuits in the non-controliing interests
having a deficit balance. When netessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries
to bring their accounting policies in line with the Group’s accounting policies. Inter-company transactions,
balances and unrealized gains on transactions between group companies are eliminated, Unrealized losses
are also eliminated but considered an impairment indicator ‘of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries haveé been changed where necessary to-ensure consistency with the policies ‘adopted by the Group.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of contral, is accounted for as an equity
transaction,

if the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the related assets (including goodwill), liabilities,
non-controliing interest and other components.of equity, while any resultant gain-or loss is recognised in profit
or ioss. Any investment retained is recognised at fair value. Total comprehensive income within a subsidiary
is attributed to the non-controlling interiests even: if that results in a deficit balance.,

2.3  Summary of:_signiﬁcant-ac_c_ounting_:pol_icies
Business combinations

Business.combinations. are-accounted for using the acquisition rmethod. The cost of an acquiisition is measured
-as the aggregaie of the cansideration transferred, which is measured at acquisition. date fair value, and the
amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree: For each business combination, the acquirer measures
the non-controlling interests in the acquiree atthe proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
Acquisition costs incurred are expensed-and included in administrative expenses.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts
by the acquiree. If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date fair value .of the
acquirer's previously held equity interest in the acquiree is resmeasured to fair value at the acquisition date
through profit or loss,



State OH Company of the Azerbaijah Republic Notes to the consolidated financial statements for 2019

{Amounts presented are in-miflions of Azerbaijani Manals, unless otherwise stated)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)
Transactions with non-controlfing interests

Changes in the Group s ownership interest in‘a subsidiary that do not resultin a loss of control are accounted
for-as eqwty transactions (i.e. transactions with owners ‘in their capacity as owners). In such circumstances
the tarrying amounts of the controlling and non-coritrolling interests shall be: adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative intefests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by which the non- controlllng
interests are adjusted and the fair value of thé consideration paid or received is recoghized directly in-equity
and attribtited to the owners.of the Group

Business combinations with entities under-common controf

The Group applies acquisition method of accouniting for business combinations with entities under the common
control. '

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An.associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence, Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control orjomt control over
those policigs.

A joint venture ("JV") is a type: of joint arrangement whereby the parties- that have joint contro! of the
arrangement have rights to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharlng
of control of an arrangement, which-exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous
cansent of the parties sharing control.

The considerations made in détermining significant influence or joint control is similar to those necessary to
determine contrdl over subsidiaries.

The Group's:investments in'its associate and joint-venture are accounted for using the equity method. Under
the equity method, the investment in an assomate or a joint venture is initially recognized at cost. The carrying
amount of the investment is adjusted to recognize changes in the. Group's share of net assets of the associate
orjoint vénture since the acquisition date. Goodwill relating to the associate of joint venture is included in the
carrying-amount of the investment and is neither amortised nor individually tested for impairment.

The statement of prof“ it or logs reflects the. Group s share of the resuits of operations of the associate or joint
venture. Any change in OCI of those investees is presented as part of the Group’s OCI. Any gain or loss on.
sale of share that was recognized directly in the equity of the associate or joint venture is refiecied as a gain
or loss ‘within the Group share of associate’s or jaint venture’s. profit or loss. Unrealised gains and losses
resulting from transactions between the Group and the assaciate orjomt venture are eliminated to the extent
of the interest in the associate or joint venture.

The aggregate of the Group’s share of profit or loss of an associate and a joint venture is shown 'on the face:
of the statement. of profit or loss outside’ operating profit ‘and represents profit or loss after tax and ‘non-
controlling interests in the subsidiaries of the associate or joint venture.

The financial statemerits of the associate or joint venture are prepared for the same reporting period as the
Group. When necessary, adjustments are-made to bring the accouriting poticies in line with those of the Group.

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognize an
impairment charge on its investment in its associate or joint venture. At each: reporting date, the Group
determines whether there is objective evidence that the investment in the associate or joint venture is impaired.
If there is such evidence, the Group calculates the :amount of impairment as the difference between the
recoverable amount of the associate or joint venture and its-carrying value, and then recognizes the loss as.
"Share. of profit of an-associate and a joint veniture' in the statement of profit or loss.



State Oit Company of the Azerbaijan Republic Notes to the consolidated financial statements for 2019

{Amadunis presenied are in millions of Azerbajjani Manats, unfess otherwise stated)}

2. Significant accounting policies {continued)

2.3 Summary of significarit accounting policies {continued)

Upon loss.of S|gnifcant influence over the associate o joint.contral over the joint venture, the Group measures
-and recaghizes any retained investment at its fair value, Any: difference between the caitying amount of the

associate. or joint venture upon loss of 5|gnsf icant mﬂuence or joint control and the fair value of the retained
inveéstment and proceeds.from disposalis recognized jn profit or loss.

!nvestments- in Production Sharing Agreements (“PSAs”)

Certain of the Groups upstream activities. are governed by the PSAs. According to the terms of PSAs,
the' Group owns the portion -of prOJect's assets and liable forits portion of project’s liabilities. At the same time
the Group is-entitled to its portion of expenses incurred and revenues earned by the whole project. Therefore;
the Group accounts for its investment in PSA's hy récognizing the portion of underlying assets liahilities,
expenses incurred and income earned by the projects using undivided interest method,

PSA is the method to execute exploitation of mineral resources by taking advantage of the expertise of &
commercial oil and gas. entity. The Government. retains title to the mineral rescurces (whateveér the-guantity
that is ultimately extracted) and often the legal title to all fixed assets constructed to exploit the resources..
The Government takes a percentage sharé of the outpuit which may be.delivered in product or paid in cash
under an agreed pricing formula. The cantracting parties may only be entitied to recover specified costs plus
an agreed profit margin: It may have the right to extract resources over a specified period of time. Operating
company is a legal entity created by one or more contracting parties to operate PSA.

As a contracting party to various PSAs the Group evaluates and accounts for the PSAs in accordance with the:
substance of the arrangement. it records. only its own share of oit and gas under a PSA as revenue. Neither
revenue nor cost is recofded by the Group for the oil and gas extracted and sold on behalf of the Government.

The. Group acts as the Government's agent to-extract; deliver or seli the oil and gas and remit the proceeds,

Costs that meet the recognition criteria as inténgible or fixed assets in accordance with IAS 38 and |AS 18,
respectively, are recogn!zed where the entity is exposed to the majority of the écoriomic risks and has access
to the probable future economic benefits of the assets, Acquisition, development and exploration costs #re
accounted for in accordance with policies stated herein.

Assets ‘subject to depreciation, depleticn or ‘amortization are expensed using the appropriate. depletion or
depreciation. methed stipulated by the present accounting policies over the. shorter of the PSA vafidity period
or the expected useful iife of the related assets.

Foreign.currency translation

All amounts in these consolidated finahcial statements are presented in‘millions of Azerbaijani Manats (*AZN",
unless otherwise stated.

The functional currencies of the Group’s consolidated entities are the currencies of the primary economic
environments in which the entities operate, The functional currency of SOCAR and its 23 business units and

the Group's presentation currency is- the national currency of the Azerbaijan’ Republic, AZN. However,

US Dollar ("USD"), Swiss. Franc ("CHF"}, Georgian Lari ("GEL"), Ukrainian Hryvnia (“UAH"} and: Turkish Lira
{*TRY") are: considered the functional currency of the Group’s certain subsidiaries, associates ‘and’ joint
ventures as. majority of these investments’ receivables, revenugs, costs and debt I|ab|i|t|e5 are either priced,
incurred, payable or otherwise measured in these currencies.

The transactions executed in- foreign curréncies are initially recorded in the funictional currencies of respective
Group entities by applying the appropriate rates of exchanges prevailing at the date of tranisaction.

Monetary assets and fiabilities denominated in foreign currencies other than functional cuirency of respetctive
Group entity aré translated into the functional currency of that entity at the appropriate exchange rates
prevailing at the reportmg date. Forgign exchange gains and losses resulting-from the re-measurement into
the functionat currencies of respettive Group's entities are recognlzed in profit.of Joss.



State Oil Company of the Azerbaijan Republic Notes to the consolidated financial statements-for 2019

{Amounts presefited are in miflions of Azerbaifani Manats, uniess ctherwise stated)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured at historical cost in a foreign gurrency -are translated using the
exchange rates at the date of the initial transaction. Nén- -monetary. items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.

The results and financial position of the Group entities which functional currency differ fromi thie presentation
currency of the Group and not already measured in the. Group's presentation currency (functional currency of
none of these entities is a currency of a hyperinflationary economy) are translated into the presentation
currency of the Group as follows?

{i) Assets and liabilities for each statement of financiat position are translated at'the closing rate at the date
of that statement of financial position;

(i}  Income and expenses for each statement of profit or Joss and other comprehensive income are.
translated at average exchange rates. (unless this average is not a reasonable ‘approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates,.in which case income and expenses
are translated at the'dates of the transactions); and

(i) Al resulling exchange differences are recognized as a. separate component of equity - currency
transtation difference.

At 31 December 2019, the principal rate -of exchange used for translating foreign currency balances was
USD 1 = AZN.1.7000, EUR 1= AZN 1,9035, CHF 1 =AZN 1.7479, GEL 1 = AZN (. 5936, UAH 1 =AZN 0.0714,
TRY 1 = AZN 0.2858, JPY 100 = AZN1 5578 (31 December 2018; USD 1= AZN 1,7000, EUR1 =
AZN 1 9468 CHF 1= AZN1.7258, GEL1 = AZN 0.6367, UAH.1= AZN 0.0617;, TRY1 = AZN 0.3212,
JPY ‘10_0 AZN 1.5366),

Financie!'inst_r_uments - measurement bases
Fair value

The Group measures.financial instruments such as derivatives, ard nén-financial assets such as investment
nroperties, at fair vaiug at each balance sheet date,

Fair value is the price that would be received to seli an asset or paid to transfer a fiability in an orderly
transaction between market participants .at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on
the‘presumption that the fransaction to seli the asset -or transfer the liability takes place either in. the principal
market for the asset or Ilablilty or in the absence. of a principal market, in the mast advantageous market for
the asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market miust be accessibie to by- the Group.

The fair \falue of an asset or-a liability is measured using the assumptions that market:participants would use
when pricing the asset or Irablllty, assuming that market participants act in their econemic best interest.

The Group uses valuation technigues that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data
are available to.-measure fair value,; maximising the.use of refevant: observable mputs and minimising thé use
of unpbservable inputs:

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the finangial. statemenits are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the.
fair value measurement as a whole:

> Level 1~ quoted_{_unadjueted_}_ market prices in activé markets for identical assets or liabilities:

> Levet 2 — valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant te the fair value:
measurenientis diréctly or indirectly observable;

. Level 3 - valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable,

For-assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements ‘at fair value on a recurring basis, the
Group determines. whether transfers have occuired betwéen Levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whele) at

the end of each reporting petiod.
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{Amounts presented are in millions of Azerbaijani Manats, _unfess oiherwise stated)

2. Significant accounting policies {continued)
23  Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Amortised cost

Transaction costs are incremental costs that-are directly attributable to the acquiisition, issue or disposal of a
financial instrument. An incremental cost is one that wauld not have been incurred if the transaction had not
taken place. Transaction costs include fees and commissions paid to-agents (including employees acting as
selling agents), advisors, brokers and dealers, levies by regulatory agenc:es and securities exchanges, and
transfer taxes and duties. Transaction costs do not include debt premiums or.discounts, financing costs or
internal administrative or holding costs.

Amortised cost is the amount at which the financial instrument was recognized at initial recognition less any
principal repayments, plus accrued interest, and for financial assets less any allowance . for expected credit
losses, Accrued interast includes amortisation of transaction costs deferred at initial recognition and of any
premium or discount to maturlty amount using the. gffective interest rate method. Accrued interest income and
accrued interest expense, including ‘both @ccrued coupon and amortised discount or premium (mcludlng fees
deferred at arigination, if any), are not presefited separatély and are’included in the carrying values of related
statement of financial position.

The effective interest rale method is a method of allocating interest income or interest expense over the
relévant perlod 50 as-to achieve a constant periodic rate of interest {effective interest rate) on ‘the carrying
amount. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash. payments or receipts
{(exciuding future credit los$es) through the expected life of the financiai instrument or a shorter period, if
appropriate, to the net carrying amount-of thé financial instriment..

The effective interest rate discounts cash flows of variable interest instruments. fo the next interest re-pncmg
date except for the premiuny or discount which reflects the credit spread over the floating rate specified in the
instrument, or other variables that are not reset to-market rates. Such premiums or discounts are amortised
overthe whole éxpected fife of the instrument. The present value. calculation includes all fees paid or received
between parties to the contract that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.

Finan_cial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at jnitial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income {OCI), and fair value through profit or ioss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset's.contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business modet for managing them.

With the exception of trade receivabies that do not contain & significant financing component or for which the’
Group has applied the practical expedient, the Graup mltlelllyr measures a financial asset at its fair value plus,

inthe case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that
da not contain a significant financing éomponent or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient
are-measured at the fransaction price determined under IFRS 15,

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised costor fair value through OCI; it needs
to give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)" on the principal amount.
outstanding. This assessment i is referred fo as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level. Finangial
assets with cash fiows that are not SPP] are classified and measured at. fair- value through profit or loss,
irrespective of the business model.

The Group’s busingss model for managing financial assets reférs to how it manages its financial @ssetsin
order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting
contractual tash flows, ‘selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured at
amortised cost are held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect-
contractual cash flows white fi nancial assets classified and ‘measured at fair value through QCl are held within
a business maodel with the objective of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling,

1



State Oil Company of the Azerbaijjan Republic Notes to the consolidated financial statements for 2019,

(Amounts presented are in millions of Azerbaijani Manats, unless otherwise stated)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)

Purchases or sales. of financial assets that require delivery of assets within. a time frame established by
regulation or conventior in the market place (regular way trades} are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the assat.

‘Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subseéquent measurément, financial assets are classified in four categories:
> Financial assets at-amortised cost (debt instruments):
> Financial assets at fairvalue through OCI with recycling of curtulative gains-and losses (debt instruments);

> Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses
upon de-recagnition {equity instruments);

- Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assels at amortised cost (debt instruments)

This category is the most relevant to the Group:. The Group measures financial assets atamortised cost if both
of the following conditions are met;

- The financial asset is held within a business modet with the objective to hold financial-assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows;’

- The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal-amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured. using the effective interest (EIR) method and
are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the assétis. derecognised,
modified or impaired.

The: Group's financial assets at amiortised cost in'c'!udes-_cur‘_rer__it..a_nd deposit accounts as well as restric‘ted
accounts at several local and international Banks, frade and lean. receivables from ‘third parties, loan
receivables from associates.and long-term depiosit accounts classified as other non-current financial assets.

Financial assets at fair value through OCI (debt instruments)

The Group measures debt instruments at fair value through OCI if both of the i‘olloWing conditiors are met:

> The financial ‘asset is held within a business mode! with the objective of both holding to collect
contractual cash flows and: selling;

> The tontractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash-flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

For debt instruments at fair value through OCI, interest income, foreign exchange revaluatich and impairment
charge or reversals are recognised in the statement of profit or-loss and computed in the same manner as for
financial assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair value changes are recognised in OC!. Upon
de-recognition, the cumulative fair valie change recogrised in OCI is recycled to profit or loss.

The Group's debt instruments at fair value through OCI includes group of trade @nd other receivables that are
held for both collecting contractual cash flows and selling to manage short-term fiquidity needs,

Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI {equity instruments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably its equity investments as equity instruments-.
designated at fair value through OCl when they meet the definition of equity under IAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation and are not hield for trading. The classification is determined on-an instrument-by-
instrument basis.
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(Amoupts presented are-in millions of Azerbaifani Manats, uniess otherwise stated)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

‘23  Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Gains and losses.on these financial assets are never recycled to profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as
other incomie in the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has been establlshed except when
the Group benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which case,
such gains are recorded in' OCI. Equity instruments designated at fair value through OCI are not subject to

'|mpa|rment assessment.

irancial assets.atfair value through pro'ﬁt orfoss

Financial asgets at fair value through profit ¢r Joss include financial agsets held for trading, financial assets

designated upori initial recognition at fair value through profit or joss, or financial assets mandatorily required

to be measured at fair value. Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the

purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives, including separated embetided derivatives,

are also-classified as.held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments. Financial
assets with cash fiows that are not solely payments of principal and interest are classified and measured at
fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model. Notw;thstandmg the criteria for debt
instruments to ‘be classified at amortised -cost or at fair value through OCI, as described above, debt
instruments may: be designated at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition if doing so eliminates,
or significantly reduces, an accounting mismatch.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the statement of financial position at fair value
with net changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss,

This: category includes derivative instruments and listed equity investments which the Group had not
irrevocably elected to cI3331fy -at fair value through OCI. Dividends on listed equity invéstments are also
recognised as otherincome in the: statement of profit or loss when the right of payment-has been established.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, whete applicable, a part of a financial asset or part'of a group of similar financial assets)
is primarily derecognised (i.¢., removed from the Group’s consolidated statement of f nancial pGSItiOI'I) when:

- The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

> The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received. cash flows-in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’
arrangement; and either {a) the Group. has. transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the. Group has transferred its nghts to receive cash flows from an-asset or has -entered into @ pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership.
When it has neither transferred nor-retained substantially all of the risks and rewards. of the asset, nor
transferred control of the asset, the Group continies to recognise the transferred -asset to the extent of its
contintiing involvemenit. In that case, the- Group also recognises an associated lfability. The transferred asset
and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obiigations that the Group has
retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower
of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group-could
be required o repay.

impairment of finanicial assels

Further disclosures rélating fo impairment of financial assets are also provided in‘the following notes:
= Critical accounting-estimates and judgments (Note 3);

»  Debtinstruments at fair value through OCl and trade and other receivables (Note 10).
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(Amounts presented are in millions of Azerbaljani Manats, uniess otherwise stated)

2. Significant accounting policies {continued)

2.3 ‘Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)

The Group recognises an allowance for ECLs for all debt instruments. not held at fair value through profit or
loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractuat cash flows due in accerdance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the Group expectstoreceive, discounted at an approximation of the driginal effactive
interest rate. The expected. cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held. or ather crédit
enhancements that are integralto the contractual terms.

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase
in credit risk since iriitial recognition; ECLS are provided for credit losses that result from default events that
are possible within the next12-months (a 12-menth ECL). For those credit exposires for which there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since. initial récognition, a loss allowance is required for credi{ loSses
expected over the remaining life-of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL),

For financial assets other than trade receivables and coniract assets, the Group applies general approach in
calculating ECLs.

For trade and other receivablés and contract assets, the Group applies a simplified approach in calculating

ECLs. Therefare, the Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead récognises a loss allowance
pased on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on
fts historical credit loss experience, adjusted. for forward-looking factors specific to the. debtors and the
€Conomic.environment.

The-Group’s debt instruments at fair valug through OCI solely comprise trade and other receivables that are
held for both collecting contractual cash flows and selling to- manage. its everyday liquidity needs. For debt
instruments at fair value through OCH, the Group applies the same methodoelogy that'is applied to financial
assets measured at amortized cost.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and meastrement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabifities at fair vaiue through profit or loss,
loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an-effective hedge
as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are reécognised initially at fair value :and, in the case of loans and berrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs,

The Group's financial ligbilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrawings including bank
overdrafts, .and derivative financial instruments,

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described befow:
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit-of loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. include financial liabitities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upan initial recognition as at-fair value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held: for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the
near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group that are not
designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by IFRS 8. Separated embedded
derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hadging.instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the statement of profit or lass.
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State Qil Company ‘of the Azerbaijan Republic Notes to the consolidated financial statements for 2019

(Amounts presented are in millions of Azerbaijani Manats, unless otherwise stated)

2. significant accounting policies {continued)
2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies (_c_ontinued)

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the
initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria.in IFRS- 9 are satisfied. The Group has not designated any
financial Iiability:r_ at fair value through profit.or loss.

Loans, borrowings and payables

This is the category most refevant to the Group. After initial recognition, intersst-bearing loans and barrowings
and payables. are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the Effective Interest Rate (‘EIR") method
taking into- account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are-an integral part of the
EIR. Gains and losses are recognised in profit orloss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through
the EIR amortisation-pracess. The EIR amartisation is included as fiiance tosis in'the statement of prafit-or loss.

Derecogriition

A financial liability Is derécagnised when the obtigation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on.substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchiange or moedification is treated as
the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new iability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised-in the statement of profit or loss. '

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial fiabllities are.offset and the net amount is reparted in the consolidated statement
of financial position if there'is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is.
an intention to seitie on a net basis, to realise the assets and setile the liabilities simultarieously.

Financial guarantee contracts:

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group-are those contracts that require a payment to be made:to
reimburse the hoider for a loss it incurs because thée specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in
accordance. with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognized initiafly as a
liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly atiributablé to the issuance of the guarantee.
Subsequently the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of the ECL allowance and the amount initially
recognized less, when-appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognized in accordance with [FRS 15.

Derivative financial instruments

Oil and Gas derivative financial instruments, including paper and physical contracts, are initially measured at
fair value .on the date .on which a dernivative contract is entered into and subsequently accountéd for at fair
value through profit or-loss, Derivatives are recognized as financial assets when the fair value is positive and
as financiai liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash-equivalents include cash in-hand, deposits held at call with banks, and other short-term highly
liguid investments with original maturities of three months or less. '

Restricted cash

Restricted cash is presented separately from cash and cash equivalents. Restricted balances are excluded
from cash and cash equivalents-for the purposes. of cash flow statement.

Trade payables

Trade payables are accrued when the .._c_:oun'terparty performed its obligations. under-the contract. Trade
payables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method.
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-State Qil Company of the Azerbaijan Republic Notes-to the consolidated financial statements for 2019

(Amounts presented are in millions of Azerbaifani Manats, unless otherwise stated)

2, Significant accounting policies (continued)-

23 Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)

Borrowings.

All borrowings are initially recognized at fair value of the proceads received net of issue costs associated with

the borrowing. Borrowings are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

Interést costs .on ‘borrowings to finance the constriction of qualifying property, plant-and equipment are
capitalised, during the period of time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use,
All ather bhorrowing costs are expensed..

Property, plant and equipment

The initial cost of an asset purchased comprises its purchase price or construction cost, any costs directly
attributable to bnngmg the asset into operation, the initial estimafe of decommmswmng obligation, if any, and,
for qualifying assets, borrowing costs: In the comparative period, the assets held under finance lease are also
included within: property, plant-and equiprnent. Non-recoverable value-added tax related with acquisition of

property, plant and equipment is capitalized by the Group. Non-récoverable value-added: tax related with

operational activities'is charged to profit or loss. Subsequently, praperty plant and equipmient are stated at
cast as described below, less accumulated depreciation and provision for impairment, where required..

‘Exploration and evaluation costs

Exploration and ‘evaluation costs are capitalised until the determination of reserves is evaluated. If a
commercial discovery has not been achieved, these costs are charged to expense. Capitalisation is made
within property, plant and equipment or intangible assets according:to the nature ofthe ‘expeniditure.

The Group accounts. for exploration and evaluation activities, expensing. exploratlon and evaluation costs until
such time as the ecohomic viability of groducing the underlyrng resources is detérmiried.

Exploration and evaluation costs related to resources determined to be not economically viable are éxpensed
through operating expenses in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comiprehénsive income.

Development costs

Expenditure ‘on the construstion, installation or completion. of infrastructure: facifities such as platforms,
pipelines and the drilling of commercially praven development wells is capitalised within tangible and intangible
assets according {o natiire. When developmerit.is completed on 4 specific field, it is transferred to production
assets (0il and gas properiies).

The present .value of the estlmated costs of dismantiing oil and gas’ production facilities, including
abandonment and site restoration costs, are recognized when the obhgat:on Is incurred and are.included within
the carrying value of property, plant and equipmerit, subject to depletion using uhit- of—productlon methaod.

All minor repair and maintenance costs.are éxpensed as incurred. Cost of replacing. major pafts or components:
of preperty, plant-and equipment items are capitalized and the replaced part is retired.

At each reporting date management assesses whether there is any indication of impairment of property plant
and equipment. If any. such indication exists, management estimates the recoverable amount, which is
determined as the higher of an asset’s or cash generating unit's fair value less costs to sell and its value in
use. The cafryirig amount i reduced to the recoverable amount and the lmpalrment charge, if any, is
recognized in the statement of profit or loss a@nd other comprehensive income. An |mpa|rment ¢harge:
recognized for an asset or cash-generating unit in prior years is reversed if there are indicators that impairment
charge may-no longer exist or may have decreased.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined-by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount, Gains and
losses are recognized in profit or loss.
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State Qil Company of the Azerbaijan Republic Notes to the consoclidated financial statements for 2019

(Amoints presented are in milfions of Azerbaijani Manats, unless otherwise stated)

2. Significant accounting policies {continued)

2.3  Summary of signiﬁcant.accounting policies (continued)
Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment.related to oil and natural gas properties are depreciated using the unit-of-
production method.

Depreciation of oi} and gas assets is computed on a field-by-field basis over proved developed reserves.

Shared oil and gas propesties and equipment (e.g. internal delivery systems, processing units, _etc.) are
depleted over total proved reserves.

Land is not depreciated. Property, plant and equipment other than oil and gas properties and equipment, are

depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. Assets under construction are not

depreciated.
Leases

The Group assesses at contract mceptlon whether a.contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the: contract:
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration,

Group as a lessee

The Group.applies a single recognition and measuremerit approach for all leases, except for short-terin leases
and leases-of low-value assets. The Group recogrises lease liabilities to. make igase payments and right-of-
use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

Right-of-use assets

The Group recognizes right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e:, the daté the underlying

‘asset is:available for use), The cost of a right-of-use asset comprises;

- The amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;
> Any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less:any lease incentives received;
> Any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee; and

> An estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and reméving the underlying asset,
restoring the'site on which it is located or restoring the underlying asset to the condition requ1red by the
ferms and conditions.of the lease, unless.those costs are to preduce-inventaries. The lessee incurs the
obligation for those. costs either at the commencement date or as a consequence of having used the
underlying asset during a particular period,

A lessee recognizes dismantling, removal and restoration costs above as part of the cost of the right-of-use
asset.when itincurs an obligation for those costs, A lessée applies (AS 2 /nventories to costs that are incurred

during a particular period as a consequence of having used the right-of-use asset to produce invenitories during
that. period. The. obligations for such costs aré recognized and measured applying. IAS. 37 Provisions,

Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets.

Right-of-use assets -are measured at cost; less any accumulated depreciation and impairment fosses, and

adjusted for any remeasusement of jease liabilities, Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives.of the assets. If ownershlp of the leased asset
transfers to the Group-at the end of the l&éase termi or the cost reflects the. exercise of a purchase optlon
depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset. Right-of-use assets are subject to. the
impairment requirements of 1AS-36 /mpairment of Assels:
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State Oil Company of the Azerbaijan Republic Notes to the consolidated financial statements for. 2019

(Amoiints presented are in millions of Azerbaifani Manats, unless otherwise stated)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)
2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Lease liabifitis

At the commeéncement date, the lease payments ifciuded in the measurerment of the lease liability comprise

the following payments for the right 10 use the underlying asset during the Iease term that are not paid at the

commiencement date:
> Fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less ahy lease incentives receivable:

> Variable fease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured usirig the index-or rate as
at the commencement date;

» Amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees;

»- The exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain ta exercise that option;

> Payments of penalties fortermrnatlng the lease, ifthe lease term reflects the fessee exercising an option
to terminate the lease. The variable Jease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognized as expense in the periad on which the event or condition that triggers. the payment occuss.

In calculating the present value of iease payments, the, Group uses the incremental horrowing rate at the lease
commenéement date if the interest rate |mphclt in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commenceinent date, the amount of lease tiabilities is increased to réflect the. accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying- amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the iease term, a change in the in-substance fixed lease payments or a change in
the assessment to purchase the underlying ‘asset. When the lease liability is remeasured as described above,
a carresponding adjustment is made to the carrying -amouit of the right-of-use asset:6r is recorded in’ profit or
loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has-been reduced o zero,

Short-terin leases and leases of low-valiie assefs

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases that have-a lease term
of 12 months or less from the commericement date and do not contain a purchase option. The Group also
applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemptton to léases that are considered {0 be low value..
Lease payments on short-term leasés and leases of low-valué assets aré recognized as expense on a stralght-
ling basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

Leases in which the Group does rict transfer substantially all the risks. and réwards incidental to ownership of
an asset are classified-as operatlng leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over
the lease terms-and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss due to its operatmg nature. Initial
direct costs incurred in negotlahng and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basfs as rental income. Contingent rents are
recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.,

Goodwill

Goodwill is initially measured at cost being, the excéss of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and

‘the amount recognized for han-controlling interests over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities

assumed. If this consideration is lower than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the.
difference is recognlzed in profit or loss. After initial recogmtlun goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment charge.

For the purgose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition
date, aliocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to these units. Wheré goodwill
forms part of a- cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in thé.carrying amount of the operailon when detetmining
the gain or loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill dispased of in this circumstance is measured. based on
the relative values of the operation disposed-of and the portien of the cash- ~génerating unit retained.
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State Qil Company of the Azerbaijan Republic Notes to the consolidated financial statements for 2019

(Amounts presented are in milfions of Azerbaijani Manals, unless otherwise stated)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Intangtble assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost, less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment charge,
Intangible assets include rights and computer software, patents, licences, customer relationships, trade. name,
water rights and development projects.

The-usefui lives of intangible assets-are assessed as €ither finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives

are amortised of a straight-line basis over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever
there is an indication that the intangible-asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amoitisation
methad for an intangible asset with.a finite useful life is reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period.
Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future économic benefits

embodied in the asset is accounted for by changing the amortisation period or method, -as appropriate, and
are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on mtangzbie assets with finite lives

is recognized in the statement of prof it or loss and other comprehensive income in the expense category
consistent with the function of the 1ntang|ble assets.

Intanglble assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are-tested for impairment annually, either
individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite jife is reviewed: annually to
determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in usefill life from indefinite
to finite is made on a prospective basis,

Development projects

Cost incurted on development projects. (relatlng to the design and tésting of new or improved products) are
recognized as intangible assets when it is probable that the project will be operational considering its
commergial and technological feasibility, and only if the cost can be measured rellably Other expenditures on
resaarch and development activities are recognized as an expense in the period in which they incurred. When
there is an impairment, the carrying values of the mtang:ble assets-are written down to their recoverable
amounts. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives -are not amortized, However are tested for impairment:
annuaily.

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date,
Corporate income taxes
Corporate income taxes have been provided fer in the consolidated financial statements in accordance with

the appllcable legislation enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date, The income tax charge
comprises currenit tax and deferred tax and is recognized in the profit or loss unless it relates to transactions

that are recognized, in the same or a different period, in other comprehensive income or directly in &quity.

Current tax is the amount expected to'be paid to orrecovered from the taxation authorities in respect of taxable
profits or losses for the current-and prior periods.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary differences. arising between

the tax bases of assets and liabilities. and their carrying amounts in the-consolidated financial statéments.

Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or substaritially enacted
by the reporting date and are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realized or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferréd income taxes assets and liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same'iaxation authority on-either the same taxable entity or different taxable. entmes_
where there Is an intention fo sefile the balances on a riet basis. Deférred income tax assets are recognized
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences
canbe utilised.
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State Oil Company of the Azerbaijan Republic Notes to the consolidated financial statements for 2019

{Amounts presented are in millions of Azerbaijani Manats, unless otherwise stated)

2. Significant accounting policies {continued)
2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Deferred income tax asset is provided on deductible temporary diffefences arising on investment. in
subsidiaries, joint ventures and-associates, except where taxable profit will not be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilized .and it is-probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax Itablllty is prowded on taxable temporary differences arising. on investments in
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates, except where the timing of the reversal of the tempcrary difference
is controlled by the Group and it is.probablé that the temporary differerice wil! not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside: profit or loss is recognized gither in OCI or directly in equity.
Deferred income taxes. are provided in full on temporary differences arising on- recognition and subsequent

measurement of provision for assetretirement obllgatlon and refated adjustments to cost of property, plant and.
equipment, as well as-on temmporary differences arising on right-of-use assets and lease liabilities.

Taxes other than corporate income tax
Taxes, other than on income, are recorded within operating expenses.

Inventorids

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is assigned by the weighted average
method. Cost comprises direct purchase costs, cost of production, transportation-and rnanuiacturing expenses
(based ch normat operating capacity),

Government grants

Grants from the Government are recognized at their fair value where there i$ a reasonable assurance that the
grant. will be received and the Group will comply with all attached conditions. Governiment grants relating to-
the purchase of property, plant and.equipment are included in non-current liabilities-as deferred income: and
are credited to profit or loss on-a straighi-line basis over the expected lives of the related assets.

When the grantrelates to an expense item, it is recognized as income-on & systematic basis.over the pericds
that the related costs, for which it'is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Asset retirement obﬁga_tions

Lizbilities for asset-retirement obligation costs are recognized when the Group has.an obligation to dismantle
and remove a facility -or an item of plant and to restore the site.on which it is located, and when a reasénable
estimate of that liability can be made. Where an obligation exists for a new facility, _such as oil and natural gas.
production. or transportation facilities, this will be on construction or installation.. An obllgatlon for asset
retiremént may also crystalllze during the period of operation of a facility through a change in legislation. The
amount recognized is the present value of the estimated future expenditure determingd in accordance with
focal conditions and requirements.

The cost of property, plant and equipment is also adjusted for amounts of estimated liabilities for asset
retirement obligations.

Any change in the present value of the obligation resuiting from changes in estimates of the amounts or timing
of futuré expenditures is reflected s an adjustment to the provision and the. corresponding capitalized costs
within property, plant and equipment. Changes in @stimates of the amounts-or timing of future expendltures to
dismantle and remove fully depréciated plant or facility is recognized in the statement of profit or loss and other’
comprehensive income, Changes in the piesent value of the obligation resulting from unwinding of the discount:
are recognized as finance costs in the statement of profit or loss and othier comprehensive income,

Provisions for liabilities and charges

Provisions for liabilities and-charges are liabilities of uncertain timing or amount, They are accrued whern the.
Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probabie that an outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the cbligation, and.a reliable estimate of the:
amount of the obligation can be made. Provisions are not recognized for future operating fosses.
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‘State Oil Company of the Azerbaijah Republic Nates to the consolidated financial statements. for 2019

(Amounts presented are in millions of Azerbaifani Manals, unfess. otherwise staled)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies {continued}

Where there are a number of similar abligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in sséttlement is

determlned by considering the cfass of obllgatlons as a whole. A provision is recognized even if the likelihood
of an outflow with respect to any one item included i in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are meastired at the present value of the expenditures expected o be required to setile the

obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the obfigation. The increase in the provision due to _passage of time is recognized as interest
expense.

Distribution to the Government

Distribution to the Government represent cash distributions-er firancing which the Group may be required to

make to the state budget, various government agencies and projects administered by {He Government based

an the partlcular decisions of the Government. Such distributions are recorded as a reduction of equity.
Distributions i inthe. form of transfers of non-monetary assets are recognized at the carrying value of transferred
assets.

Contributions by the Government

Contributions. by the Government are made in the form of cash contributions; transfer of other state-owned
entities or transfer cf-all or part. of the Government's share in other entities. Transfer of the state-owned entities
to the Group Ts recognized as contribution through eguity statement in the amount being the fair value of the
transferred entity.

Value-added tax
The tax authorities permit the settlement of sales and purchases value-added tax {*VAT"} oni a net basis.
VAT payable

VAT payable represents VAT related to sales that is payable to tax authorities Upon recogriition of sales to
customers, net of VAT on puichases which have beensettled at the reporting date. VAT related to sales which
have not been settled at the reporting date (VAT deferral} is:also included in VAT payable. Whare provision
has been made for Impairment -of receivables, impairment charge is recorded for the gross amount of the
debtor, including VAT where applicable. The related VAT payable is maintained untit the debtor is written off
for tax purposes,

VAT recoverable

VAT recoverable relates fo purchases which have not been settled at the reporting date. VAT recoverable is
reclaimable against VAT on sales upon payment for the purchases

In accordance with Shah Deniz, Absheran, ACG PSAs’, Karabakh and Umid Babek Risk Service Agreements’
{RSA) provisions, Azerbaijan Shah Déniz Limited (“AzSD ), SOCAR Absheron LLC, Azerbaijan' ACG Limited
("AzACG"), SOCAR Karabakh LLC and Umid Babek Exploration Production Company (*UBEP”) are charged
with zero per cent VAT by tax authorities.

Revenue from contracts with customers

'The Group is in the business of selhng ranges. of oil and oil products, petroleum products and natural gas as

well as providing malnly construction services. Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
contrel of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the Group expects to be entitied in-exchange for those goods or services.
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State Oil Company of the Azerbaijan Republic Notes to the consolidated financial statements for 2019

(Amounts presented are in millions of Azerbaijani Manats, unless otherwise stated)

2. Significant accounting policies (continted)

2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)

Revenues from sales of crude oil are recoghized hormally wheh the oil is foaded irito the oil tankér or other
fransportation facilities. Revenues from sales of petroleum products are recognizéd when the products are
shipped. Revenue from sales of natural gas are recorded on the basis of regular meter readings’ (monitored
on a monthly ba5|s) and estimates of customer usage from the last meter reading to. the end.of the. reporting

period. Natural gas prices and gas fransportation tariffs to the final consumersin the Azerbaijan Republic are

established. by the Tariff Council of the Azerbaijan Republic. Revenues from construction activities are
recognized either at the point. of time or overtime basis deperiding on terms of the contracts with customers,

Interest income Is recognized on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest rate method.
Variable consideration

If the consideration promised in a contract includes a variable @amount, the Group shall estimate the amaount of
consideration to which thé Group-will be entitled in exchange for transferring the promised goods. or services
{o a customer.

The Group is required to estimate an amount of variable consideration by using either of the following methods,
depending on which method the Group expects to better predict the amount of consideration to which it wili be
entitled:

> The expected value — the expscted value.is the sum of- probability-weighted amounts in a range of
possible consideration amounts. An expected value may be an appropriate estimate of the amount of
variable consideration if the Group has a large nuriber of contracts with similar characteristics.

. The most likely amount — the most likely amount is the single most likely amount in a range of possible
consideration amounts (i.e. the single most likely outcome of the contract). The most likely amount may
be an appropriate estimate of the amiount of variable consideration if the contract has only two possible
outcomes {€.g. the Group either achieves a performance bonus or does not).

The Group selects the method that is best suited, basad an thé specific facts and circumstances of the contract,

The Group applies the selected method consistently to each type of variable consideration througholt the
contract term and updates the estimated variable consideration at the end of each reporting period. It may also
be appropriate for the Group to use different methods (i.e. expected value or most likely amount) for estimating
different types of variable consideration within a single contract.

Rights of return

Certain contracts previde a customerwith aright to return thé goods within a specified period. The Group uses
the expected value method to estimate the goods that will not be returned because this method best predicts:
the amount of variable consideration to which the Group will be entitled. The requirements in IFRS 15 on
constraining estimates of variable consideration are also applied in order to determine the amount of variable
consideration that can be included in the transactiori price. For goods that are expected to be retirned, instead
of révenue, the Group recognizes a refund:liability. A right of return asset'(and corresponding adjustrnent to
cost of sales) is also recognized for the right to reccver products frem a-customer,

Volume rebates

The Group provides retrospective volume rebates to cerfain customers .once the quantity of products
purchased during the period exceeds a threshold specified in the contract. Rebates are offset against amounts
payable by the customer. To estimate the variabie consideration for the expected future rebates, the Group.
applies the most likely amount method for contracts with a single-volume threshold and the expected value.
method forcontracts with-mere than oni volume threshold. The selaected methad that'best predicts the amount
of variable consideration is primarily driven by the number of volume thresholds contained in the contract. The:
Group then applies the requirements -on constraining estimates of variable consideration and recognizes
Gontract liabilities for the expected future rebates.
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State Qi Company of the Azerbaijan Republic Notes. to the consclidated financial statements for 2019

{Amounts presented are in millions of Azerbaijani Manats, unless datherwise stated)

2. Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Significant financing component

For some transactions, the receipt of the -consideration ddes not match the timing of the transfer of goods or

-services fo the customer {e.g. the consideration is prepaid or is paid after the:services. are provided). When

the customer pays in arrears, the Group is effectively providing ﬁnanc_i_ng to fh_e_cu_stomer. Conversely, when
the Gcustomer pays in advance, the Group has effectively received financing from the customer.

IFRS 15 states that in determining the transaction-price, the Group shall adjust the promised amount of

‘consideration for the effects of the time value of money if the timing of payments agreed to by the parties to

the contract {either expiicitly or |mpI|01tly) provides the customer-or the Group with a significant benefit of
financing the transfer of goods or services to the customer. In those circumstances, the cantract. contalns a
s:gnlfcant fnancmg component, A significant fnancmg component may exist regardless of whether the:
promise of financing is explicitly stated in the contract or implied by the payment terms agreed to by the parties

‘to the cantract.

Contract balances
Contract assets

The Group’s right to consideration in exchange for goods or services that the Group has transferred to a
customer when that right is conditioned oh something other than the passage of time (for example, the Group’s
future performance). The Group's contract assets are presented within Other current assets line.

Contract ifabjifities

The Group's obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group. has received
consideration {or the amount is due) from thé customer.

Assets and liabilities arising from rights of return
Right of return asset

Right of return asset represents the Group's rightto recover the gonds expected to be returned by customers.
The asset is meastired at the former carrying amount of the inventory, less any expected costs to recover the
goods, including any potential decreases in the value of the returned goods. The Group updates: the
measurement of the asset recorded for any revisions to its:éxpetcted level of returns, as well as any additional
decreases in the value of the returned products.

Refund liabilities

A refund. lizbility is- the obligationto refund some or ali of the consideration recéived (or receivable) from the
customer and is measured at the amount the Group ultimately expects it will have to retumn to the custamer.
The Group updates its estimates of refund liabilities (and the corrésponding change in the transaction price)
atthe end of éach reporting period.

Principal versus agent considerations

The détermination of whether the Gfoup is acting as a principat or an agent affects the amount of revenue
the Group recognizes: The Group is a-principal (and, therefore; records revenue on a gross basis) if it controls
a promised good or service before transferring that good or service to the customer. The Group is an agent
(and, therefore, records as revenue the net amount that it retains for its agency services) if its roleis to.arrange
for another éntity to provide the goods or services.

23
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(Amounts presented are in millions of Azerbajjani Manats, unjéss otherwise stated)

2. Significant accountirig policies {continted}

2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Accounting for underlift and overlift positions

The Group has shareholding. interests in the joint operations. The Group may be in the overlift and underlift
position in the mentioned joint arrarigements. The Group is in the overlift position, when the Group lifted and
sold to a customer more product than its proporticnate entiflement based on-its share in the joint operation.

The Group is in the. underlift position, when the Group lifted and sold less product than its. propartionate
entltlement based on its share in the joint operation.

The Group recognizes revenue from contracts with customers. under IFRS 15 based.on its actual sales fo
customers in that period: No adjustments are recdrded in revenue to account for any variance between the
actual share of production volumes sold to date-and the share of production-which thie Group has been entitled
to sell to date.

The Group adjusts production costs to align volumes for which production costs are recognized with volumes
sold {for which revenue has beeén recognized in accordance with IFRS 15),

The Group applies the physical settlement. In case of physical settiement:

> An overlift liability is recorded in accordance with the provisions under I1AS 37 Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets. The overlift liability is recorded at cost.

- An underlift asset gives the Group the right to receive a quantity of product from anothér participant.
This right is equivalent to a prepaid forward commodity purchase or represents a right to additional
physical inventory and therefore, I1AS 2 Inventories is applied. The underlift asset is measured at the
lower of cost or net realisable value,

Employee benefits
Wages, salaries, contributions to the State Social Protection Fund of the Azerhauan Repubﬂc pdid annual

leave and sick leave, bonuses, and non- monetary benefits {e.g. health services and kindergarien services)
are-accrued in the year in'which the associated services are rendered by the employees of the Group.

-Segment reporting

Cperating segments are reported in @ manner consistent with the interhal reporting provided to the Group's
chief operating decision maker. The Group reports separate information about an cperating segment that
meets any of the follewing quantitative thresholds:

> lts reported revenue, ‘including both sales to external customers and intersegment sales or transfers,
is 10.per cent or more of the combined revenue, internal and external, of all operating segments.

- The absolute amount of its reported profit or loss is 10 pér cént or more of the greater, in absolute
.amount, of the combined reported profit of ‘all operating segments that did nat report a loss and
the combined reported loss of all operating segments that reported A loss,

> Its assels are 10-per cent or more of the combined assets of all operating segments.

No operating segments have been aggregated to form the above reportable o_pe‘rating segments.

Related parties

Related parties are defingd in IAS 24 Related Paity Disclosures:

Governmental economic and social policies affectthe Group's financial pos;tlon results of operations and cash
flows. The Government’ lmposed an obligation on the Group to provide an uninterrupted supply of oil and gas

to customers in the Azerbauan Republic at government-controlled prices. Transactions with the state include
taxes which are detaiied in Note 21,
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2.  Significant accounting policies (continued)

2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies {contintied)

Related- parties may enter into transactions which unrelatéd parties might not; and transactions between
related parties may net be -affected on the same terms, conditions and amounts as transactions between
unrelated pariies,

It is the nature of transactions with related parties that they cannot be presumed to be carried out on-an arm's
length basis.

Carried interest arrangements

A carried interest arrangement wherg the Group participate as carried party is an agreement under which the.
carrying party agrees to pay for a portion or all of the pre- productron costs of the carried parly on-a project in
which both parties own participating interest. If the project is unsuccessful then the carrying party will not be
reimbursed for the costs that it has incurred on behalf of the cariied party. Ifthe project is successful then the
carrying party will be reimbursed either in cash out of proceeds of the share of production attributable to the
carried party, or by receiving a disproportionately high share of the production until the carried costs are fully
recovered.

Bepending on the terms of the carried interest agreements the Group recognizes.them either as financing-
type arrangement or purchase / sale-type arrangement.

The finance-type arrangements presume that carrying party provides funding-to the carried party and receives
a lender’s return on the funds provided, while the right to additional production acts.as a security that underpins.
the arrangement.

in the purchaselsale—type arrangement, the carried parly effectively sells an interest or a partial inferest in a
project to the carrying party. The carrying party will be required to fund the project in exchange for an 1ncreased
share of any proceeds if the project succeeds, while the carrigd party retains a much reduced share of any
proceeds, The Group does not have any purchase ! sale-type arrangement recognized in these consclidated
financial statements.

During exploration stage of projects when the cutcome of projects and probability of the carryrng party to
recover costs inctrred on behalf of the carried party are not certain the Group does not recognize any carry
related transac’rlons and balances in the consolrdated financial statements.

Acquisition of an éntity that is not a business

When the Group acquires an entity that is not a business, it all'oeates' the cost of acquisition betweeii the
individuai identifiable assets and iabilities of the acquired entity as following::

> For identifiable asset and liability initially measured at an amount other than cost,.an entity initially
measures that asset or liability at the @amount specified in'the applicable IFRS Standard;

> The entity deducts fram the transaction price of the acquired entity the-amounts allocated to the asséts
and liabilities initially measured at an amount othér than cost, arid-then allocates the residual transaction
price fo.the remaining identifiable assets and liabilities based an their relative fair values at the date of
the acquigition.

Step-acquisition of subsidiary that is not a husiness

Step-acquisition of subsidiary which has been previously accounted for as investment in associates and joint
ventures ("the investee”) are recognized in the amount being the carrying value under the equity method
refated to the original interest.in the inveéstee plus cost of additional investimerits made by the Group in order
to. obtain controf over the investee (“deemed cost”). Upon obtaining control over the investee it becomes
supsidiary of the Group and deemed cost is allocated to the individual identifiable assets and liabilities of the
subsidiary applying the same approach used for acquisition of an entity that is not a business.
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2.  Significant accounting policies (continued)
23 Summary of significant accounting policiés (continued)

Non-current assets held for sale or for distribution to equity holders of the parent and discontinued
operations

The Group classifies non-current assets and disposat groups as held for sale or for distribution to equity holders
of the parent if their carrying amounts Will be recovered principally through a-sale or distribution rather than
through continuing use. Such non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale. oras held for
distribution are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair vatue less costs to sell.

The criteria for held for distribution ¢lassification is regarded as met only when the distribution is highly probable
and the asset or disposal group is- avaliable for immediate distribution in its present condition. Actions required
to complete the distribution should indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes to the distribution will be
made or-that the decision to distribution will be withdrawn. Management must be committed to the distribution
expected within one year from the date of the classification. Similar considerations apply to assets or a disposal
group heid for sale,

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are not depreciated or amortised once classified as held
for sale or as held for distribution. Assets and liabilities classified as held. for sale or for distribution are
presented separatély as clrrent items. in the-statement of financial position.

A disposal group qualifies as discontinued operatien if it is:
» Represents a separate major line of business. or geographical area of operations;

> s partof a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate rajor line of business or geographical area.
of operatlons or

. Is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a viewto resale;

Discontinued operations are excluded from the results of contlnumg operations and are presented as a single
amount as profit or loss aftér tax from discontinued operations in the statement of profit- or loss. All notes to
the consalidated financial statements include amounts-for continuing operations.

2.4  Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
Presentation of realized and unrealized fair valve. gains and losses on paperand physfcai derivative contracts

Starting from 1 January 2018, the Group decided to change its accountlng pelicy on presentation of realized/
uhréalized gains or losses on.paper derivatives and unrealized gains or losses on physical contracts that are
under scope of IFRS 9-and recognize net results within Cost of Sales. Under previous poilcy all realized/
unrealized gains on paper derivatives and wnrealized gains on physical coniracts were recognized within
Revenue, while realizedfunrealized losses on paper derivatives and unrealized losses on physical contracts
were presented within Cost of Sales. The Group believes that such policy change resuits in more appropriate
presentation, :since grossing Revenue and Cost of Sales up for fair value changes will ot reflect economic
substance of underlymg transacticns. Rather, showing net results. from trading activities will give more relevant.
information for users of financial statements and enhance. comparability with other: companjes. in the industry.

‘Restatement

The restatement made below represents retrospective application of change in accountlng policy of the Group
related to presentation of realized-and unrealized gains and losses arising from.the change in fair values of
derivative financial instruments recognlzed through profit or loss. The -comparative information in: the
consolldated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the period ended 31 December
2019-'was restated according to.IFRS @ Financial Instrumeénts and IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosure.
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2. Significarit accounting policies (continued)
24 Changdes in accounting policies and disclosures (continued)

Consolidated statemnent of profit or foss and other comprehensive income for the period ended 31 December
2018;

As previously

reported Restatément As restated
Revenue 111,188 (3,436) 107,762
Cost of sales {105,468} 3,436 (102,032)
Gross profit 5,730 - 5,730

3. Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of the Group's consolidated financial statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the réported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and
the accompanying disclosures; and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assurnptions and estimates could resultin outcomes.that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount
of assets or liabilities affected in future periods. In the process of applying the-Group’s accounting policies,
management has made judgements, which have the most significant effect on the amounts. recognised in the
consolidated financial statements. ' '

The key assumptions concerning the-futuire and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at.the reporting date,
thathave a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities withify
the next financial year, are described below. The Group based its assumptions' and estimates. an parameters
available when the consolidated financial statements were-prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions.
about future. developments, however, may change due to market changes or ¢ircumstances arising that are
beyond the contro! of the Group. Such changes are reflected in the assu mptions when they oceur. .

Estimation of oil and gas reserves

Oll and gas reserves are key elements in the Group's investment decision-making process. Changes in proved
oil and gas reserves, particularly proved developed reéserves, will affect unit-of-production-depreciation charges
in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Proved oil and gas reserves are the estimated quantities. of crude oil and natural gas which geological .and
engineering data demonstrate with reasonable certainty to be recoverable in future years from ‘known
reéservoirs. under existing ‘economic and operating conditions, i.e. prices and costs as of the date the estimate
is'hade. Proved developed reserves are reserves that can be expected to be recovered through existing wells
with existing equipment and operating methods. Estimates of oil and gas reserves are inherently imprecise,
require the application of judgment and are subject to future revision. '

Accordingly, financial and accounting measures (such as depletion and amortization charges arid provision for’

asset retirement obligations) that-are based on proved developed or proved reserves are also subject to
change. Proved reserves are esfimated by reference to available reservoir and well information. All proved
reserves estimates are subject to revision, either upward or downward, based on new information, such as
from drilling and production activities or from changes in.economic factors,; including product prices, contract

terms or development plans. In general, changes in the technical maturity of hydrocarbon reserves resulting

from new information becoming available from development and production activities have téhded to be the.
most significant cause of annual revisions, ' '

In general, estimates of reserves for undeveloped or partially developed fields are subject to greater
uncertainty over their future-iife than estimates of reserves for fiekls that are developed and being depleted.
As afield goes into production, thie amount of proved reserves will be subject to future revision once additional
information becomes available through, for example, the drifling of additional wells or the cbservation of

long-term reservoir performance under producing conditions. As those fields are further developed; new

information may lead to revisions,
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3. Critical accounting estimates and judgments (c_ontinued}
Estimation of oil and gas reserves (continued}

Proved reserves of SOCAR were based on report'as of 30 June 2019, which was adjusted for praductien
during second half of the year. The report was prepared by independent reserveir engineers'in adecordance
with Petro'leu_m Resources Management System rules. For certain asseis. proved reserves are based on
estimation-of internal geologists.

Asset retirement obligations

Management makes provision in respect of the Group’ legal and constructive obligations for the future costs
of decommissicning ¢il and gas production.and storage facilities, pipelines and related support-équipment and
site: restoration based on the estimates of future cost and economic lives of those assets. Estimating future.
asset retirement obligations is complex and requires management.to make estimates and judgments with
respectto removal obllgatlons that will oecur in-the futiire. Changes in the measurement of existing obligations
can result frent changes in’estimated timing, future costs or discotint rates used in valuation. These costs are.
expected to be incurred over the useful life of the figlds and: properties ranging between 8 and 63 years from
the reporting date.

The Group assesses its asset retirement obligation liabilities in accordance with the guidelines of International
Financial Reporting interpretations Committee (“IFRIC") 1 Changes in Existing Decommissioning, Resforation
and Similar Liabilities. The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the expenditures required
to seitle the present obllgatlon at the reporting date based on current applicable legislation and regulations,
and i& subject to changes because of modifications, revisions. and changes in laws and regulations -and
respective interpretations thereof. Governrmental auth:jrities'-.are continually. considering applicable regilations
and their enforcement. Consequently; the Group's ultimate asset retirement liabilities may differ from the
recorded amounts. Considering subjectivity of these provisions, there is uncertainty regarding both the amount
and estimated timing of incurring such costs. The key assumptions used to measure the amount of the
estimated asset retirement obligations and sensitivity analysis, are disclosed in Note 22.

Environmental obligations

The Group records a provision in respect of constructive o'bllgatlons related to costs of remediation of the
damage historically caused to the natural environment primarily in the Absheran area both- by the activities of
the Group and its legacy operations in periods preceding the formation of the Group.

The amount recognized as a provision js the best estimate of the expenditures required to settle the present
obligation at the reporting date based on current- appllcable legislatioh -and regulations, and is also subject to
changes because. of modifications, revisions and changes in laws and regulations and fespective
interpretations therecf. Governmental atthorities are continually considering applicable regulations and their
enforcement. Consequently, the Group’s uitimate liability for environmental remediation may differ fiom the
recorded amounts.

Considering subjectivity of these provisions, there is uncertainty regarding both the amount and estimated
timing of incurring such costs. The key assumptions. used to measitre the amount of the estimated
environmental obligations and sensitivity analysis, are disclosed in Note 23.

Disability provision

The Group records a provision in accordance with Azerbaijan Labour Code and has -an obligation to pay
compensation for employees damaged at work. The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of
the expenditures required to settle the present obligation -at the reporting date kased on current applicable.
legistation and regulations, and is also subject to changes because of modifications, revisions and changes in
laws and regulations and respective interpretations thereof. Governmenta! authorities are continually.
considering applicable regulations  and their enforcement, Considering subjectmty of these provisions, theré’
is-unceriainty regarding both the amount and estimated timing of incurring such costs. The key assumptions
used to measure the.amount of the estimated disability obligations and sensitivity analysis, are disclosed. in
Note 23,
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3. Critical accounting estimates and judgments (continued)
Useful lives and residual vatue of property, plant and equipment

Management determines the estimated useful lives and related depreciation and amortisation charges for its
property, plarit and €quipment and intangible assets. This estimate is based on projected period over which
the Group expects o consume economic benefits from the asset, Management increases the depreciation
charge where useful lives are less than previously estimated lives. The usefiil lives. are reviewed at feast at

each financial year-end, Changes in any of the above conditions or estimates. may result in adjustments to

future depreciation rates:

The estimated useful lives of the Group’s property, plant and equipment (other than oil and gas properties) are
as follows:

Buildings and constructions: 12'to 40 years
Plant and machinery 3 to 50 years
Vessels 25 years

The expected useful lives of property, plant and equipment are reviewed on an-annual basis and, if necessary,
changes ir useful lives are accounted for prospectwe]y

The residual value of an asset is the estimated amount that the Group would currently obtain from disposal of
the asset less.the estimated costs of disposal, if the asset were already of the age andin the.condition expected.
at the end of its useful life. The residual value of an-asset is nil if the Group expects to use the assat until
the end of its physical life unless scrap value is mgmfcant The assets’ residual values are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.

Deferred income tax assets recognition

The net deférred tax assets represent income taxes recoverable through future deductions from taxable profits
and s recorded on the statement of financial position. Defefred income tax assets are recorded fo the extent
that realisation of the related tax benefit is probable. In determining future taxable profits and the amount of
tax benefits that are probable in the future management makes judgments and applies estimation baséed on
last three years taxable profits and expectations of future income that are bélieved to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Management assesses whether there are any indicators of possible. impairment of all non-financial assets.
each reporting date based on events or circumstances that.indicate the carrying value of assets may not be
recoverable. Such indicators- include changes in the Group's business plans, changes in commodity prices
leading to unprofitable performances, changes in product mixes, and for cil and gas properties, significant
downward revisions of estimated proved reserves. Goodwili and intangible assets with indefinite useful life are
tested for impairment annually and at other times when |mpalrment indicators exist. Other non-financial assets
are tested for impairment wher there are mdlcators that the carrying amounts may not be.recoverable.

Impalrment exists. when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its rec¢overable amount,
which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in-use. The fair value less costs of disposal

“cajculation is based on: avallable data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for similar assets

or observable market prices less incremental costs of disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based
on a Discounted Cash Flow {DCF) model. The cash fiows are derived from the budget for the next five years and
do not include restructurmg activities that the Group is not yet committed toor significant future investments that
will enhance the performance of the assets of the CGU being testéd.

Provision for expected credit losses of financial assets
Trade receivables .

The Group uses a provision matiix to calculate ECLS for trade receivables and contract assets. The provision
rates are based on days past due for groupings-of various customer. segments that have similar loss. patterns
(i.€., by geography, product type, customer type and rating, and coverage by Ietters of credit and other forms
of credit insurance).
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3. Critical accounting estimates and judgments (continued}
Provision for expected credit losses of financial assets (continued)

The: provision matrix is initially based on the Group s historical observed default rates; The Group calibrates:
the matrix to -adjust the: historical credit loss experience with fotward- Iooklng information. For instance, if
forecast economic conditions (i.€., gross domesho_ product} are expected to deteriorate over the next year
which can lead to an mcreased'number of defaulis in the manufacturing sector, the historical default rates are
adjusted. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-
looking estimates are analysed.

The -assessment of the correlation between hlstorlcal cbserved default rates, forecast économic conditioris
and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast
economic conditions. The Group's historical credit loss expenence and forecast.of economic conditions may.
also ot he representative of customer’s actual . default | in the future. The informaticn about the ECLs on the
Group s trade receivabies is disclosed in Note 10.

Other financial assets recognized at amortized cost

The Group calculated ECL for financial assets that met the SPPI criterion other than trade and other
receivables using the general approach as disclosed in Note 2. The assessmentof ECLs is significant estimate
conmdermg that it-is sensitive to changes in circumstances and conditions.

Significant judgement in determining the lease term of coniracts with renewal options

The lessee and lessor need to determine whether a contract is a lease-at inception of the iease. The inception
date'is the.earlier of the date of a lease agreement and the date of commitment by the parties to the principal
terms and conditions of the lease. The underlying asset is the asset that is subject-to a lease, for-which the.
right to use that asset has been prowded by a lessor to a lessee. The commencement date of the lease is the,
date on which the lessor makes an underlying asset available for use by a lessee.

The lease term begins at the commencement date and includes any rent-free pori_ods provided {0 the lessee
by the lessor,

The Group determines the lease térmi as. the non-cancellable period of the lease, together with both:

> Periods covered by an-option to extend the lease if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that
eption; and

> Periods covered by -an opfion ta terminate the lease if the lessee is reasonably certain not to'exercise
that option,

Purchase options are ‘assessed in the same way as options fo éxtend or terminate the lease. An optlon 1o
purchase &n underlymg asset is economically similar to an option o extend the lease term for the remammg
economic Jife of the underlying asset.

The Group determines the lease ferm as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with. any periods
covered by an opfion to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by
an option fo terminate the lease, if itis reasonably cerfain notto be exercised. The Group considers all relevant

facts and circumstances that create an econofmic incentive for the lessee to exercise, or not to exercise, the

option, including any expected changes in facts and circumstances from the commencement.date until the
exercise date of the opticn.

tncremental borrowing rate (IBR}

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in'the lease, if that rate can be readily
determined. The Group usés IBR at the lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is
not readily determinable. The IBR is the rate of interest that thé Group would have to pay-to borrow overa
similar ierm, and with a similar secur:ty, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-

-of-use -asset in a similar economic- environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Group ‘would have to

pay’, which requires estimation when no observable rates are avaitable or when they need to be adjusted to
reflect the terms and conditions of the lease, The Group estimatss the IBR using observable inputs when
available and is required {0 inake certain entity-specific estimates:
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4.  Adoption of new or revised standards and interpretations and new accounting pronouncements

The Group applied IFRS 16.for the first time. The nature and effect of the changes a@s.a result of adoption of
these new accounting standards are described below.

Several other amendments arid interpretations apply for the first time in 2019, but do not have an fmpact on
the: consolidated financial statements of the Group. The Group has rot early adopted any standards,
interpretations or amendments that have been issued, but are not yet.effective:

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 supersedes IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining whether an Arrangement Contains a Leass,
SIC-15 Operating Leases —Incentives and SIC-27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involying the
Legal Fofmof a Lease The standard sets ouf the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation.
and disclosure of leases and requires [essees to recoghise’ most [eases on.the balance sheet.

Lessor accounting under [FRS 16 is substantially unchanged from 1AS 17, Lessors will continue to classify
leases gs either operating or finance leases using-similar principles as in 1AS 17, Therefore, IFRS 16 did not
have an jmpact for leases where the Group:is the lessor.

The Group applies IFRS 16:for annual périods beginning on or after 1 January 2018,

The transition-provisions of IFRS 16 are applied at the initial date of application. For this purpose, the date of
initial application is the begmnlng of the annual reporting period in which the Gréup first appligs IFRS 16.

The Group applies the modified retrospective approach. When applying the modified retrospective approach,
comparative figures are not restated and. continues to be reported under {AS 17 Leases. The detailed
accounting policy under |1AS 17 Leases was disclosed in-the Group’s consolidated financial statements as of
31 December 2018 and thus, is not repeated here.. The Group applies IFRS 16 foits leases retrospectively
with the cumulative éffect of nitially applying IFRS 16 renogn:sed at the date of initial application. A lessee
applies its elected fransition approach consistently to all leases:in which it is-a lessée, The Group elected to’
use the transition practical expedient not to reassess whether a cohtract is, or contains a lease at 1 January
2019. Instead, the Group applied the: standard only to. contracts that were prevlously identified as leases.
applying 1AS 17 and [FRIC 4 atthe date of initial application.

‘The effect of adoption IFRS 16 as at 1 January 2019 (increase/(decrease)} is as follows:

1 January
2019

Assets
Right-of-use assets. _ 704
Property, plant'and equipment (Note 15) (23)
Prepayments (10}
Intangible assets {21),
Total assets 650
Liabilities
Lease liabilities - 685
Other non-current liabilities (19)
Trade and other payables (16)
Total liabilities 650
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4, Adoption of new or revised standards and interpretations and new accounting pronouncenients
(continued)

IFRS 16 Leases (continued)
{a)  Nature of the effectof adoption 6f IFRS 16
(i Group-as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various items of oil & gas properties and :equipment, buildings and other
category of assets. Before the adoption. of IFRS 16, the Group classified each of its leases (as lessee) at the
inception date as either a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease was classified as.a finance lease.if it
transferred. substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental fo ownership of the underlying asset to the,
Group; otherwise it was classified as an operating lease. Finance |2ases were capitalized at the
commencement of the lease at the inception date fair value.of the leased property or, if lower, at the present
value of the minimum lease payments, Lease payments were apportioned between interest (recegnized as.

finance Gosts) and reduction.of the lease liability. In an operatmg lease, the leased property was not capitalized

anid the lease payments were recogriized as rent expense. in thé stateriient of profit or 1oss on a straight-line
basis.over the lease term, Any prepaid rent.and accrued rent were recognized under Prepayments and Trade
and other payables, respectively.

Leases previously classified ag finance leases

The Group did not change the carrying amounis of recognised assets and liabilities at the date' of initial

application for leases previously classified as finance leases (i€., the right-of-use assets (ROU) and lease-
liabilities were recognized at the amounts equal to the lease assets and liabilities recognised. under {1AS 17).
The reguirements of IFRS 16 was applied to these jeases from 1 January_ 2019.

Leases previously accounted for as operating leases

The Group recognised right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for those leases previcisly classified as
operating leéases, except for short-term leases and legses of low-value assets. The right-of-use assets for all
leases weare recognlsed based on the amount equal to the lease liabilities, adjusted for any related prepaid and
accrued lease payments previously recognised. Lease ligbilities were recognised based on-the present value of
the remaining lease payments, discounted using the incremental borrowing rate at the date ‘of initial application.

The Group also applied the available practical expedients wherein it:

- Applied the short-term leases exeriptions to leases with lease term that ends within 12 months at the
date of initial application;

> Used hindsight in determining the tease term where the contract contains options to extend or terminate
the lease;

- Used a single discount rate to a portiolio of leases with reasonably similar characteristics.

The lease liabilities as at 1 Januvary 2012 -can be reconciled to the operating lease commitments as of
31 December 2018 as follows:

Operating lease commitment at 31 December 2018 564
Weighted average incremental bofrowing raté (%) 5.78%
Discounted using the incremental borrowing rate.at 1 January 2019 490
Less: _

Recoghition exemption for:

-~ commitments relating to short-term leases 4N
~ commitments relating to feases of fow-value assets

- variable lease payments not based on-an index or a rate (35)
Add: N

Extensicn and termination options reasenably certain to be exercised 258
Commitrnents relating to leases previously classified as finance leases 19
Lease liabilities recognized at 1 January 2019 685
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4. Adopﬁpn'of new or revised standards and interpretations and new ac_counting pronouhcements
{continued)

IFRS 16 Leases (continued)

Leases previously accounted for as operating leases

Set out below, afe the carrying - amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets and lease liabitities and the:
movements during the pericd:

0il & gas
Buildings  properties Vessels
_ _ _ and const- and Plantand  and port
Right-of-use assets. ruction equipment machinery  facilities Other Total
Balance at 1 January 2019 192 137 23 260 92 704
Additions 23. 2 10 - 8 43
Early terminated leasi contracts M {2) - (8) (38) {49)
Depreciation charge for the period {24) {11) {20) {27) {7 {89)
Translation to presentation :
currency 1 (9 {2) 1 1 {10}
Balance at31 December 2319 191 117 11 224 56 599
0il & gas
Buildings  properties Vessels
and const- ani Plantand and port
Lease liabilities ruction equipment machinery  facilities Other Total
Balance at 1 January 2019 {192} (136) {25) {276) {56) (685)
Additional leases (24) 2) (10} - (7} (43)
Early terminated lease contracts = 6 - 8 26 40
Interest expense 11) {11) {2 {19 {23 {45)
Payments _ 32 15 11 12 8 78
Translation fo presentation _ _
currency (1 20 2 = 3. 24
Balance at 31 December 2019 (186) {108} {24) {275) {28) {631)
Of which:
Current ledsé liabilities (123}
Nen-current lease liabilities (508)
The following are the: amounts recognised in profit or loss and other comprehensive income:
Interest expense on lease liabilities (Note 32) B 45
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets (Note 29) 89
Expense relating to variable lease payments. (included in.general and
administrative expenses) _ 10
Expenses relating to short-term leases {included in cost of saies) _ 199
Total 343
The following are the arriounts recognised in.the statement of cash flows:
Cash payments for the principal portion of the lease liability within financing activities (59)
Cash payments for the interest portion of the lease liability for interest paid within o
operating activities _ _ 19y
Short-term lease payments within operating activities (135)
Variable lease payments within operating activities (10}
Total (223)

The maturity analysis of lsase liabilities is disclosed in Note 6.
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4 Adoption of new or revised st_anda'rd__s_ and interpretations and new-accounting pronouncements

{continued}
IFRS 16 Leases (contintied)
(i) Group as a lessor {continued)

The Group has entered into operating leases mainly consisting of driliing units in the amount of AZN 403 which
are classified as building and construction within property, plant-and equipment, The: drilling units are used to

carry out drlllmg works in oif and gas fields in Azerbaijan $ector of Caspian Sea.

Future rentals receivable under

rion-cancellable operating leases as at 31 December 2019 2018

Less than one year 250 188
One 1o two years 9% 232
Two years to three. years 7 85
More than three years 22 -
Total 378 505

IFRIC Interpretation 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatment

The Interpretation addresses the accounting for incomeé. taxes when tax treatments involve: uncertainty that
affects the application of IAS 12 jncome Taxes:. It does not apply to taxes or levies outside the scope of IAS 12,

nor does it specifically include requirements refating to interest and penalties -associated with unceriain tax.
treatments. The Interpretation specifically addresses the following:

. Whether-an entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately;
- The assumptions an entity makes about the examination of tax treatments by taxation authorities:

> How an entity determines taxable profit (tax.loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and
tax rates;

> How an -entity considers changes in facts and gircumstances.

The Group determines whether to consider each uncertain tax treatment separately or together with one or
more’ other unicertain tax treatments and uses the approach that better predicts the resoiution of the
uncertainty.

The Group applies significant judgement in identifying uncertainties over income tax freatments. Since the:
Gmup operates in @ complex-multinational environment, it assessed whether the Interpretation had animpact
on'its consolidated financial statements.

Upon adoption- of the. interpretation, the Group considered whether it has any uncertain tax positions,
particularly those relating 1o transfer pricing. The Company’s and the subsidiaries’ tax filings. in different
jurisdictions include deductions related to transfer | pricing and the taxation authorities may challenge those tax

treatments. The Group determined, based on its tax compliance and transfer pricing study, that it is probable

that its. tax treatments (including those for the subsidiaries) will be- accepfed by the taxation authorities.

'The Interpretatson did not have an impact on.thie consolidated financial statements of the Group.

Amendments fo IFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation

Under IFRS 9, a debt instrument. can be measured -at amortised cost or af fair value through other
comprehensive income, provided that the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest.
on the principal amount outstanding {the SPPI criterion} and the instrument is held within the appropriate
business model for-that classification. The amendments to IFRS @ clarify that a financial asset passes the

SPPI criterion régardless of the event or circumstance that causes.the early termination of the centract and

ifrespective of which party pays or receives reascnable compensatlon for the early termination of the contract.
These amendments had no.impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group.
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4, Adoption of new or revised standards and interpretations and new accounting pronouncements
{continued)

Amendments-to IAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment-or Settlement

The amendments to JAS 19 address the aceounting wheh a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement occurs
during a reporting period, The amendments specify that when a plan amendrnent, curtallment or seftlement.
occurs during the annual reporting period, an entity is required:to determine the current service cost for the
remainder of the period after the plan amendment, curtailment or settlement, using the actuarial assumptions
used to remeasure the net defined benefit liability (asset) reflectingthe benefits-offered under the plan and the-
plan assets after that event. An. entity is also required to determine the net interest for the remainder of the:
period after the plan amendment, curtaiiment or setflement using the net defined benefit liability (asset)
reflecting the benefits offered under the plan and the plan assets after that eveént; and the discount rate used
to remeasure that net defined benefit liability (asset).

These amendments had no impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group as it did not have
any plan amendments curtailments or settlements during the year,

Amendments to IAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures

The amendments clarify that an entity applies IFRS 9-to long-térm interests in an associate or joint venture to
which the equity method is riot applied but that, in substance, form part of the net investmeént in the associate
or joint venture (longsterm interests), This clarification is relevant because it implies that the expected credit
loss model in {FRS 9 applies to such long-term interests.

The amendments also clarified that, in applying IFRS 9, .an entity dues not 1ake account of any losses of the
associate orjoint venture, or any impairment losses on the net investment, recognised as adjustments to the
het investment in the associate or joint venture that arise from applying IAS 28 Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures.

These amendments had no impact onthe consolidated financial statements as the Group does not have long-
term interests in its associate and joint verniture,

Annual improvements 2015-2017 cycle.

IFRS 3 Business Comfinations

The amendments clarify that, when an entity obtains control of a business that is a joint operation, it applies
the requirements for a business combination achieved in stages, mcludlng Temeasuring previously held
interests in the assets and liabilities of the joint operation at fair value. in.doing so, the acquirer remeasures its
entire previously held iriterest ifi the joint operation.

AR entity applies those amendments to buséness combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the
beginning :of the first annual reporting period. beginning on or after 1 January 2019, with early apptication
permitted,

These -amendments had no impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group as there is. no
transaction wherg jeint control is obtained.

IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements.

A party that participates in, but does nat have joint control of, a joint operation might obtain joint contrel of
the joint operation in which the activity of the joint operation. constitutes a business as defined in IFRS 3.
The amendments clarify that the previously held interests in that joint operation-are not remeasured.

An entity applies those amendments o transactions in which it obtains joint contrel on or after the beginning
of the first annual repdrting period beginning on or after 1 January 2019, with’ early application permitted,

Since the Group's current practice is in line with these amendments, they hiad no impact oh the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.
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4, Adoption of new or revised standards and interprétations and new accounting pronouncements
{continued)

Annual improvements 2015-2017 cycle (continued)
fAS 12 Income Taxes:

The amendments. clarify that the: income tax consequences of dividends are linked mare directly fo past
transactions or events that generated distributable profits than to distributions to owners, Therefore, an entity
recognises the income tax consequences of dividends in profit or loss, other comprehensive income or equity
according to where the entity originally recognlsed those past transactlons or events.

An entity applies the amendments for annual reporting periods beginning onor after 1 January 2019, with early
application permitted. When the entity first applies those amendments, it applies them to the income tax’
consequences of dividends recognised on or aiter the beginning of the earllest corparative persod

Since the Group's ¢urrent practice is'in line with thése amendments, they had no.impact on-the consolidated
financial statements-of the Group.

IAS 23 Borrowing Costs
The amendments clarify that an entity treats as part of general borrowings any borrowing originally made-to-

develop a quzlifying asset when: substantlally all.ofthe activities necessary to.prepare that asset forits intended
use or sale are complete.

-An entity applies: those amendments to borrowing costs incurred on ‘or after the beginning of the annual

reparting ;pefiod in which the enitity first applies those aimendmients. An entity applies those améndments for’
annual reportlng periods beginning on orafter 1 January 2019, with early application pérmitted.

Since the Groups cutrent practice is in ting with these. amendmenits, they had na-impact on the consolidated

financial statements of the Group.

Standards issued but not yet effective

The new and amended standards and interpretations that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of
issuance of the Group's consolidated financial statements are disclosed below. The Group intends to adopt
these standards, if applicable, when they become effective.

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

In May 2017, the IASB issued IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts, a comprehensive new accounting standard for
insurance- contracts covering recognition and measurement, presentation and disclosure, which replaces-
IFRS 4 insuranice Gonfracts,

IFRS 17 applies 1o all types of insurance contracts {i.e., life, non-iife, direct insurance and re-insurance),
regardless of the type of entities- that issue them,. as well as to certain. guarantees and financial instruments
with discretionary participation features. A few" scope exceptions wil apply The overail objective. of IFRS 17 s

to provide an accounting madel for insurance contracts that is more useful and cansistent for insurers, in

contrast o the requirements in IFRS 4, which are Iarger based on grandfatherlng previcus local accounting
policies, IFRS 17 provides a comprehenswe maode! for insufance contracts, covering all relevant-accountinig
aspects, The core of IFRS 17 is the general model, supplemented by:

> -A specific adaptation for contracts with direct participation features {the variable fee approach};

> A simplified appi’_o_ach {the premium allocation approach) mainly for short-duration contracts:

IFRS 17 is effective for reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021, with comparative figures
required. Early application is permitted, provided the entity also-applies [FRS 2 and IFRS 15 on or before the
date it first applies IFRS 17, This-standard is nct‘applicable to the Group.
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4, Adoption of new or tevised standards and interpretations and new accounting pronouncements
(contmued)

Standards issued but not yet effective '(c_ontinued')
Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a Business

In October 2018, the IASB issued amendmients to the definition of a.business in IFRS 3 Business Combinations
to help entities determine whether an acquired set of activities and assets.is a business or not, They clarify the
minimum requirements for a. business, remove the assessment of whether market participants are capable of
replacing .any missing ¢léments, add guidance o help entities assess ‘whether -an acquired process is
stbstantive, narrow the definitions of a business and of outputs, and introduce an opticnal fair value

coticentration test. New illustrative examples were provided along with the amendments.

Since the amendments apply prospectwely to transactions of other events that oécur on or after the date of
first application, the Group will not be affected by these amendments on the date of transition.

Amendments to IAS 1 ahd IAS 8 Definition of Material

In Qctober 2018, the IASB issued amendments to 1AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and JAS'8
Accounting Po:‘rc:es Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors to align the definition of ‘material’ across:
the standards and to clarify certain aspects of the definitioh. The new definition states that, “Information is
material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions that:the
primary users of general purpose financial statements make on the basis:of those financial statements, which
provide financiaf information about a spemﬂc reporting entity.

The -amendments to the definition of matenal is ot expected to have a significant impact on the Group's
consolidated financial stateménts.

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Néh-curient

In January 2020, the Board issued amendments to paragraphs 69 to 76 of IAS 1 to specify the requirements
for classifying liabilities as current or non-currerit. The amendments clarify:

»  Whatis meant by aright to defer setilement;

> That a right to defer must exist at the end of the reporting period;

- That classification is unaffected by the likelihood that an entity will exercise its deferrai right;

> Thatonly ifan. embedded derivative in a convertible liability is itself 4n equity instrument would the terms
of a liability not impact its classification.

_Right to defer settlermeint.

If an entlty s right to defer setilement of a liability is subject to the entity complying with specified conditions,
the entity has a right to defer settlement of the liability at the end of the reporting period if it compfies with those:
conditions at that date.

Existence at the end of the reporting period:

The amendments also clarify thatthe requirement for the righit to exist at the end of the reporting-period applies
regardless of whetherthe lender tests for compiliarice at that date or at a later date.

Management expectations

IAS 1.75A has been added to clarify that the ‘classification of 2 liability is unaffécted by the likelihood that the
entity will exercise its right to defer setttement of the liablhty for at least twelve months after the reporting
périod’. That is; management’s intention to settle in the short run does not impact the classification. This.applies
even if settlement has-occurred when the financial statements are authonsed for issuance,

37



_State Qil Company of the Azerbaijan Republic Notes to the consolidated financial statements for 2019-

(Amourits presentad are in millionis of Azerbaifani Manats, unfess othenwise stated)

4. Adoption of new or revised standards and interpretations and new accounting pronouncements
{continued)

Standards issued but not yet effective (continued)

_Meaninq of the term ‘setilement’

tis important to link the settlement of the lizbility with the outflow of resources of the entity. Setflement by way
of ‘an entity’s own equity instruments is. consjderéd settlement for the purpose of classifications of liabiiities as
current or non-current, with one exception. In cases where & conversion option is classified as a Ilab;ilty or part
of a liability, the transfer of eguity instruments would constitute settlement of the liability for the purpose of
classifying it as current or non-current. Only if the conversion option itself is classified-as ani equity instrument
would settlement by way of own equity instruments be disregarded when determining whether the liability is
current or ngn-current. _Unchanged from the current standard, a rollover of a borrowing is considered the
extension of an existing liability and is thersfore not considered to represent ‘settlement’,

The amendments _a're_effet:tive for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 and must be
applied retrospectively. The Group currently considers whether there are-any aspects of the amendments that
suggest that terms of their existing loan agreements should be renegotiated.

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28-Sale or Contribution of Assels-hetween an Investor and ifs Associaté or
Joint Venture

The amendments address the conflict between IFRS 10-and 1AS 28 in dealing with the loss of control of a
subsidiary that is scld or contributed to an associate or joint venture. The-amendments ¢larify that the gain or
loss resulting from the sale of contribution of asseéts that constifute a business, as defined in IFRS 3, between
an investor and its associate or joint venture, is recognised in full. Any gain or loss resulting from the sale or
contribution of assets that do not constitute a business, however, is recognised only to the extent of unrelated
investors’ interests in the associate or joint venture, The [ASB has deferred the effective date of these.
amendments indefinitely, but an entity that early adopts the amendments must apply them prospectively,

The Group will apply thesé amendments whén they become effective.

Interest Rafe Benchmark Reform: Amendments-fo IFRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7

Interest Rate Benchiark Reform Amendments: to 1FRS 9, IAS 39 and IFRS 7 includes :a number of reliefs,
which apply to all hedging relationships that are directly affected by interest rate benchmark reform, A hedging
relationship is affected if the.reform gives rise to uncertainties about the timing and 6r amount of benchmark-
based cash flows of the hedged item or the hedging instrument. As a result of interest rate benchmark reform,
there may be uncertainties about the timing and or amount of benchmark-based cash flows of the hedged item
or the hedging instrument during the period before the replacement of an existing interest rate benchmark with
an alternative nearly risk-free interest rate (an RFR). This may lead to uncertalnty whether a forecast transaction
is" highly probable and whether prospectively the hedglng relationship-is expected to be’ highly- effective.

The amendments come intq effect from 1 January 2020, but entities may choose to apply them earlier.
The amendments are net expected to have a significant impact on the Group's consolidated financial statéments.

5. Segment informaticon

Operatmg segments are components that engage in business activities that may earn revenues or-incur
éxpenses, whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the management of the Group and for whlch
discrete financial information is available.

The Group has four reportable segments:

- Cil and gas — representing extraction of oil and gas products,

. Refining — representing refining of cr_ud_e oil and gas condensate;

» Construction — representing construgtion of administrative premises and assets for extraction of oil and
gas cohdensate;
> Sales and distribution - representing transportation and marketing of crude oil, natural gas, oil products
and gas.condensate..
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5. Segment information {continued)
No operating segments.have been aggregated to form the above reportable operating segments.
Management monitors the operating results of its business units and subsidiaries separately for the purpose
of making decisions -about resource allocation ‘and performance assessment. Transfer prices between
operating segments are-either oh an armt's length basis or non-arm’s length basis.
Management evaluates.performance of each segment based on profit afier tax.
Information about reportable segmient profit or loss; assets and liabilities
Segment informaticn for the reportable segments for thée year gnded 31 December 2019 is sat out below:
Adjust~
ments and

~ Construc- Sales and Unalloca-  elimina-
Oil and gas Refining tion distribution  ted () tions **) Total

2019

Revenues ) o

External custormers 2518 9,418 1,085 70,680 51. - 83,752
Inter-segmant 3,156 747 828 21,701 522 {26,954 -
Total revenue: 5,674 10,165 1,913 92,381 573 (26,954} 83,752
Gther operating income. 10 171 31 100 115 (86) an

Interest revenue calculated
using effective interest

method 8 161 31 .45 1,669 {1.750) 163
Other finance income - 47 - - - - 47
Foreign exchange gains and _

losses, net 7 (256) {7 (36 {9) - {315}
Raw -materials and o . _ :

consumables used ] (692} {8,634} (392) (89,746} {48) 25541 {73,971}
Wages, salaries and social _ o ' N

‘sacurity costs {262) (417} {345) {559) {307) 164 (1,740}
Depreciation of property, plant _ _ o _

and.equipraent (978) {258) {118y (252) (59} 62 (1,603}
Transportation and vehicle _ _ o o

maintenance {446) (22) {2058} {716) (33} 338 {1,084
ECL _ 3 {2) 1y (30) {4} () (49)
Impairment of property; plant _

and equipment {283) - - {3) - - {2886)
Mining tax (125) - - - = - (125)
Depreciation of right-of-use o

assets (29) (23) (5) (40) - 8 {89}
Taxes other than on income (83) (25) {3) (28} {58) - (197}
Amortization expense - {33} { 1) (19) (9 1. {61}
Repairs and maintenance '

axpenses (295) {41} (113) (66} (72) 229 (358)
Utilities expense (14} (318) (3) {58) (3) 2 {394)
Change i other provisions S 3 3 _ .

for liabilities and charges. {10) (3) (46) {3) {6) - {73)
Other {372) {297) (293) {644} (332) 587 {1,351)

Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment and

intangible assets. o= (M - 1 [C)] - {10}
Finance costs (144} (398) (36) (175) {609) 202 (1,160}
Social éxpenses {13} (10} {3) (6} (88) - (118)
Share of result of joint ventures 10 (32} 2 - 34 - 14
Share of result of associates - - - (6) 3 - {5)
Income tax expenses. . {(387) {49} {85) {88) {68} - {677)
Net profit/{loss) for the year 1,557 {286) 317 53 685 {1,875) 651

(Y Thesefigures include unafiocated revenues and expenses related to research. and development, IT, securify and other functions
that are.not managed at the group level.

(™ inter-segment revenues.and expénses are eliminated on consofidation. Amounts shown . as eliminations. inclide intercompany
o transaclions:
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5. Segment information (continued).

Information about reportable segment profit or loss, assets and liabilities (continued)

Adjust-
ments and
Oil Construc- Sales and Unalloca-  elimina-
and gas  Refining tion distribution _ted {*}  tions {*) Total
Investments in associates - - = 4,181 27 - 4,208
Investments in 'j_o'int ventures 39 5,057 222 4 76 - 5,398
Other reportable segment _ o o

assels 25,580 16,170 '3;205 18,453 20,174 {27,813) 55,769
Total reportable segment _

-assets 25,619 21,227 3,427 22,638 20,277 {27,813) 65,375
Total reportable segment _ B _ _

liabilities (12,402)  {11,648) (1,677).  (18317) {15,600} 18,597 {41,047)
Capital éxpenditure {**)

Additions ~ business units, o o _

JV and associatés 1,030 2,088 5 212 42 (73) 3,304
Additions - subsidiaries 1,758 1,120 “18 459 1 {62) 2,984
Acquisition through business

combination {Note 39) - = - 672 - = 672
Total capital expenditures 2,788 3,208 23 1,043 43 {135) 6,970

(")  Thesé figures include unallovated assets and liabilities refated lo research and. development, !T -secuity and other funcffons that
are not managed at the group level.

{**) Inter-segmént. balances are efiminated on consdlidation. Amounts shown as eliminations include inlercompany balances.

{**) Capial expénditure represents. additions- fo non-currént -assets offier than fiancial instrurments, deferred fax assels and
post-aimplayrnent benefif assels.
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5. Segment information {continued)
Information about reportable segment profit or loss, assets and liabilities {continued)

Segment information for the reportable segments for the year ended 31 December- 2018 is set out balow:

e

iy

Adjust-
ments and
ol Construc- Sales'and Unalloca- elimina-
and gas __ Refining tion  distribution  ‘ted (*} tions (**) Total

2018 '
Revenues.
Exterfial custcmers 3,120 5,021 779 98,699 143 - 107,762
Inter-segment 2,495 g§22 795 27,276 450 {31,638} -
Total révenue 5,615 5,643 1574 125975 593 (31,638) 107,762
Cther operating income 194 403 26 377 13 (a7} 916
Interest revenue calculated

using effectiva intefest

method _ 5 120 2 155 1,227 {1,325} 184.
Other finance income - 28 - ~ - = 28
Foreign exchange _

(losses)gains, net (31 {730) (4} 15 (2) 54 (698)
Raw materials and

consumables used {678} (4,118) (204) (123,777} 84 30:560 {98,391}
Wages, salaries and social

security costs ' {246) (320) (267} (533} (267) 123 {1,510)
Bepreciation of property, plant _ _ _

-and equipment (793) (154) (123) (228) (105) 12 (1,391)
Transportation and vehicle _ o . ' _

maintenance {448) (20} {153) {803) (32 271 {1,183)
(ECLYoredit loss reversal (153) {2) 4 233 [+ - 85
Impairment of property, plant

‘and equipment {155) - - {7 1 - (181)
Mining tax (128) - - - - - (126)
Taxes otherthan on-income’ {74) {18) {3) (31) (74y 1 {199)
Amortization expense - (13} {1 21) {9) 1 {43)
Repairs and maintenance

‘eXPenses {301) (32) {131) (44) (5) 182 (331)
Utifities expense {18) {278) {2) (82) {3 5 (374)
Change in other provisions for _

liabilities and charges 4 (41) {21) (8) - - - {72)
Cther _ {518) {238) (280) {437} {394) 00 (1,267)
Loss on disposal of property, ' ' '

plant and eguipment and’

infangible assets @ (1) (3) (@) 3 - {15}
Finance costs (104) (482) (26) {260} (570) 316 (1,126)
Social expenses (9) {7} (2} {5) (82} - {105)
Share of result of joint ventures 13 124 65. - 11 - 213
Share of result of associates - - - {17 41 - 24
Income tax expenses (612) {110) {118} (82) {74) = {998)
Net profit{ loss) for the year 1,559 {257) 243 420 194 {235} 1,234

{*}  These figures include un_aﬁoca!ed reventes and expenses reféred fo research and development, IT, secuny and dther functions
that are not managed at the group fevel.

{*} Infer-segment revenues and expenses are eliminated on consalidation. Amounts shown as éliminations include- infercompany

fransactions.
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5. Segment information (continued)

Information about reportable segment profit or loss, assets and liabilities (continued)

Adjust-
ments and:
Qil Construc- Sales and Unallgca-  elimina-
and- gas Refining fion distribution  ted {*) tionsg {**) Total
Investments in associates - - - 4,328 31 - 4,359
Investments injoint ventures 38 4,978 237 4 44 - 5,301
Other reportabie segment: _ o _ _
assets 23,505 13,249 2,650 19,887 18,045 {24,950) 52,476
Total reportable segment. )
assets 23,633 18,227 2,887 24,219 18,120 {24,950) 62,136
Total reportable segment _ _ _
liabilities . {10,372) {9,641) {1,792} {19,886) {13,757} 17,266 (38,192).
Capital expenditure (***)
Additions - business: units, _ _
JV and associates. 1414 1,640, 76 207 59 (18) 2.978
Additions - subsidiaries 1,358 1,352 {9 217 2 {102) 2,819

Acquisition through business

comnbination {APMT

business) - - - 156 - - 156
Acquisifien through business

‘combination {Austrizn

-business) - - - 112, - = 112

Total capital expenditures 2,473 2,892 67 692 61 {120) 5,065

("t  Thesatigurés include unaliocated-assets and liabiliies refated o research and develapment, 1T, security and other functions that
‘are not managed &t the group level,

(") Infer-segment balances are-eliminated on consolidation. Amounts shiown ds elimination’ include intercompaily balances,
vy .Céyp:’i‘af expenditure represents 'addiﬁqn_s to non-cuirent -assels other than financial insiruments; deferred tax ‘assets and
-past-employment benefit assets.

Geographical information

Reévenues for each individual country are reported separately as follows:

2019 2018
Switzerland 63,735 81,0687
Turkey 9,377 4,972
Azerbaijan 6,145 6,626
UAE 1,722 2,352
Georgia 1,172 1,124
Other 1,601 1,621
Total consolidated revenues 83,752 107,762

The analysis is based oh the country. of incorporation of the selling entity.
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5. Segment information (continued)
Geographical inforiation (continued)

Set out below is the disaggregation of the Group’s revenue from contracts with customers-for the year ended
31 December 2019;

Qil Construc- Sales and  Unalloca-

Segments and gas Refining tion distribution ted (") Total
Sale of crude oil, net 1,830 - - 49,191 - 51,121
Sale of oil preducts, net 55 4,785 - 17,358 - 22,198
Sale of petrochemicals - 3,809 - 305 - 3,914
Sale of natural gas 340 651 - 3,132 - 4,123
‘Rent incorne - 16 400 - - 418
Other revenue- 193 357 685 894. 51 1,980
Total 2,518 9,418 1,085 70,680 51 83,752
Switzerland - - - 83,735, - 63,735
Turkey - 9,377 - - - 9,377
Azerbaijan 2,518 41 914 2,623 49 6,145
UAE - - 471 1,551 - 1,722
Gecorgia - - - 1,170 2 1,172
Other - = - 1,601 - 1,601
Total 2,518 9,418 1,085 70,680 51 83,752
Good transférred at a point - o

intime 2518 8,378 714 59,847 48 82,505
Services transferred over time - 40 371 833 3 1,247
Total revenue from contracts N

with customers 2,518 9,418 1,085 70,680 51 83,752
Revenue
‘External custorer 2,518 9,418 1,085 70,680 51 83,752
Inter-segment 3,156 747 828 21,701 522 26,954
Total 5674 10,165 1,913 92,381 573 110,706
Adjustment and eliminations (3,156) {747). (828) (21,701 {522) {26,954)
Total revenue from contracts o _ _ .

with customers 2,518 9,418 1,085 70,680 51 83,752
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5.  Segment information (continued)

Geographical information {continued)

Set out below is the disaggregation of the Group's revenue from contracts with cu_siome_rs for the year ended

31 Decémber 2018;

oil _ Construe-  Salesand  Unalloca-

Segments. and gas Refining fion distribution ted () Total
Sale of crude oil, net 2,237 - - 56,125 1 58,363
Sale of oil products, ngt 473 1,459 - 38,300 - 40,232
Sale of petrechemicals - 3,441 - 453 = 3,894
Sale of natural gas 1267 3 - 3,034 - 3,304
Rent income - 11 385 - 396
Other revenue 143 107 394 787 142 1,673
T.o_ta'l 3,120 5,021 779 98,699 143 107,762
Switzeriand - - - 91,067 ~ 91,067
Azerbaijan 3,120 50 779 2 536 141 6,626
Turkey - 4,971 - S - 4,972
UAE - - - 2,352 - 2,352
Georgia - - - 1,122 2 1,124
Other- - - - 1.621 = 1,621
Total 3,120 5,021 779 98,699 143 107,762
Good transferred. at a point o _ - -

in‘time 3,17 4,993 607 98,073 136 106,926
Services transferred over time 3 28 172 626 7 836
Total revenue from contracts _ _

‘with customers 3,120 5,021 779 98,699 143, 107,762
Revenue _ _
External customer 3,120 5,021 779 98,699 143 107,762
Inter-segment 2,495 522 795 27276 450 31,638
Total 5,615 5,643 -1_;57.4- 125,975 593 139,400
Adjustment and eliminations- (2,495) (622) {795) {27,276 {450} (31,638)
Total revenue from contracts L ' o _ .

with customers 3,120 5,021 779 98,699 143 107,762

Non-current assets other than financial instruments, deferred tax assets and post-employment benefit assets

for each individual country is reported separately as follows:

Azerbaijan
Turkey:
Switzerland
Georgia
UAE

Other

Total

The analysis is based on location of assets:

2019 2018
32,847 30,668
8,838 8,010
977 761
548 524
522, 555
269 294
44,001 40,812
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8. Financial risk management
Financial risk factors

The Group’s. principal financial liabiliies: other than derivatives comprise. trade ‘and other payables and
borrowings. The imain purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance the Group's operations, The Group's
principal financial assets include cash and cash equivalents and short-term deposits and trade and other
receivables that derive directly from-its operations. The: Group also holds investments in debt and equity
instruments and enters into dérivative transactions,

In the ordinary course of business, the Group is exposed to market, credit and liquidity risks. The Group g

overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance. To effectwely manage the variety of exXposures

that may impact financial resulis, the Group’s: overriding strategy is to' maintain a strong:financial position.
Although there are no structured formal management procedures, management of the Group . identifies and
evaluates financial risks with reference to the-current market position.

Market risk

Market risk i the risk that the fair valueor future cash flows of a financial instrumenit will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: foreign exchange risk; comrmuodity price
risk and interest rate risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include cash-and cash ‘equivalents and
short-term deposits, trade-and other receivables, trade and other payables, borrowings:and derivatives.

() Foreign exchange risk

The: Group is exposed to foreign- exchange risk arising. from varloue exposures in the normal course of
business, primarily with respect to USD. Foreign exchange risk arises primarily fronm future commercial
fransactions, recognized assets.and liabilities when assets and liabilities are deraminated in a currency cther
than the functional currency.

The majority of the Group’s cash and cash equivalents and short-term deposits, trade and other receivables,
trade and otfier payabies and borrowihgs are dencmiriated in USD:

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the USD, EUR, TRY, GEL,
CHF exchange rates, with all other variables held constant; of the Group's profit before tax:

Change Effect.on
2019 inrates (+/)  profit before tax’
USD/AZN 10.00%4-3.00% (816)/245
USDITRY 10.00%/-10.00% (120)/120
EUR/AZN 10.00%/-6.00% (104)/62
USD/GEL 10.00%/-5.00% (24)/12
EUR/TRY 10.00%/-10.00%. {1111
USD/CHF 6.50%/-6,50% 4/(4)

Change Effect on profit
2018 in rates {+/-) before tax
USD/AZN 14.00%/-3.00% {1,004)215
USD/TRY 10.00%/-10.00% (17070
EUR/AZN 14.00%/-3.00% {167)/36
USD/GEL 11.00%411.00% (28)/28
EUR/TRY 10.00%/-10.00% (15)115
USD/CHF 7.00%/-7.00% 6/(6)

Group's exposure to foreign currency changes for all other.cufrencies i not material.
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6. Financial risk management (continued)

Market risk (continued)

(M) Commodity price risk

The Group is exposed to certain price risk due to-volatility of ol prices. Due to the risk the Group's management
has developed and enacted a risk management strategy regarding oil price risk:and its mitigation,

Based on forecasts about oil purchases and sales, the Group hedges the price using futures, swaps-‘and

forward contracts.

The following. sensahwty analysus is based upon derivative price exposures that existed at 31 December. 2019,
whereby if oil future prices had moved, as illustrated in the table below, with all other variables held constant,
pre-tax profit after the impact of hedge accounting and equity would have been as follows;

Changg in Effect on profit Effect on

year-_end price before tax pre-tax eduiity
2019 5%/(5%) 66/(66) 53/(53)
2018 B%/{5%) 1114(111) 89/(89)

(i) Interest rate risk

Changes in interest rates |mpact primarily debt by changing either their fair value (fixed rate debt) or their future
cash flows (variable rate debt). The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates
primarily to the Group’s financial agsets and financial liabilities with floating interest rates. To mitigate this risk,
the Group’s management performs periodic analysis of the current’ interest rate eénvironment and depending
on that analysis managément makes detisions whether it would be more benéficial to obtain financing on a
fixed-rate or variable-rate basis: In case where the change in the current market fixed or variable interést rates
is considered significant, management may-consider refinancing a particular debt on' more favourable intérgst
rate terms. Management does not have a formal policy of determining how much of the Group's exposure’
shoulld be to fixed or variable rates.

The floating rate for majority of intereést-bearing liabilities and assets exposes the Group to fluctuation in'interest
payrnents -and receipts mainly due to changes in London Inter-Bank Offered Rate (LIBOR) and Euro intér-
bank Offered Rate (EURIBOR).

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on loans and
borrowings, net of loans recéivable:

Increase/ Effect
decrease on profit
2019 in basis points before tax
Loans and borrowings, net of loahs receivable _
usD +35/-35 19/(19)
EUR +15/-15 (1)
Increase/ Effect
decrease on profit
2018 in basis points before tax
Loans and borrowings, net of loans receivable. o
Ush +50/-15 25/(7)
EUR +201-1 2/(1)

Credit risk and concentration of credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk exposure that a potential financial foss to. the Group may occur if counterparty
defaults on its contractual obligations.
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6. Financial risk management (continued)

Credit risk and concentration.of credit risk {continued)

The Group's financial instruments that are exposed to concentfations of credit risk primarily comprise cash.

ahd cash equivalents, mcludlng restricted cash, trade receivables and loans receivable.

is presented by class of assets as shown in the table below:

The Group’s:maximum exposure to credit risk-is represented by gross carrying amount of financial assets and

2018 2018
Cash and cash equivalents excluding ¢ash on hand (Note 8) 7,086 6_,'651
Restricted cash 150 201
Deposits (Note 8) 107 155
Trade arid other receivables (Note 10) 7,940 7,372
Other current financial assets 304 197
Other non-current financial assets 681 485
Financial guarantees given (Note 38) 1042 947
Total exposure to credit risk 17,310 16,008

The Group places its cash with reputable financial institutions in-the Azerbaijan Republic.: The Group's cash is
placed with the International Bank of Azerbaijan (“IBA") which is controlled by the: Azerbaljani Government,
The balance of cash and cash equivalents.and deposit held with the IBA at 31 December 2019 was AZN 1,856

AZN 75) is-placed in Govetnment treasury account.

{31 December 2018: AZN 1 ,263). The Group continually monitors the status of the banks where its accounts
_are maintained. In addition, the Group's restricted cash balance in the amount of AZN 37 (31 December 2018;

Trade receivables primarily comprise balances with logal and forgign customers, mcluchng related parties, for
crude oil, ofl products and natural gas sold. The Group's credit risk arising from its trade balance with customers
is mitigated by continuous monitoring of their creditworthiness. Management of the Group believes that the
Group is not exposed to high credit risk as thé impairment provision has already been accrued in the:
accompanying consolidated financial statements for all debtors which are not expecied to-be recovered in future.

The Group categorized its financial assets as follows:

Past due but

31 December 2019 Standard  Sub-standard notin default In default
Cash and cash equivalents excluding _

cash on hand (Note 8) 7,086 - -
Restricted cash 150 - -
Deposits {Note 8} 107 e -
Trade and other réceivables (Note 10) 6,644 228 525 545
Other current financial assets Co- 304 -
Gther non-current financial assets = 681 -
Total 13,987 1,211 575 545

Pastdue but  Individually

31 December 2018 -Standard _ Sub-standard notimpaired  imipaired
Cash and cash equivalents excluding _ _

cash ot hand (Note 8) 5388 1,263 -
Restricted cash 201 - -
Deposits (Note 8) 119 36 -
Trade and other receivables {Note 10) 5,842 168 741 821
Other current assets _ ' - 197 -
Other nan-current financial assets, - 485 -
Total _ 11,550 2,149 741 621
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6.  Financial risk management {continued)
Credit risk and congcentration of credit risk {continued)

The standard grade includes counterparties with goad financial position and good debt service, which have
minimal gredit risk exposure. [ addition, counterpartles in these financial assets normally have-a high credit
rating or are sufficiently collateralized. Sub-standard grade is represented by financial assets, that are neither
past due nor in default, of counterparties fict hawng high credit rating.

The Group considers that there has been a significant increase in credit risk if one of the fo'llowing criteria is
met:
> Centractual payments are more than 30-days past due from the date specified inthe contract;

- An external crédit tating provided by international rating agencies downgrade for. the counterparty
for 3'and more notches, relative to the risk grade of the counterparty as of initial recognltton daté,

- Moody's external rating "Caal” {or equivalentfor S&P or Fitch} and below,

The Group. considers a financial asset in default if one of the following criteria is met:

- Caritractual payments are more than 90 days past due from the date specified in the conitract;

» Existing of information that counterparty will or has’enter bankruptcy, inselvenicy or-a similar condition;

- Announcement of default grade to counterparty by international credit rating agencies
Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to mest ifs financial obligations as they falf due.
The Group's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure-that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its
liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or
risking damaga to the Group’s reputation. In managing liquidity risk, the Group maintains adequate cash
reserves and debt facilities, continuously monitors forecast and actual cash flows.

Prudent liquidity risk management includes maintaining sufficient working capital and the ability to clése out
market positions. Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Group’s liquidity reserve on the basis of
expected cash flows.

The Group’s financial liabilities represent both derivative and non-derivative financial instruments, The table
below analyses the. Group’s financial liabilities. inte relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period
from the reporting date to the contractual maturity date. The'amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows.

The maturity analysis of financial liabilities as of 31 December 2019 and 2018 is as follows:

Less than More than

At 31 Décember 2019 3 moenths  3-12 months 1-5 years 5§ years Total
Trade.and other financial

payables 11,121 - - - 11,121
Lease liabilities 31 92 378 748 1,249
Deferred acquisition '

consideration payable - 157 - 841 988
Other current liabilities - 324 - - - 324
Interest-bearing borrowings 2,273 2,363 10,010 3,084 17,730
Other non-current liabilities - - 687 50 737
Put option liabilities 38 116 2,812 - 2,966
Financial guarantees given - - 1,042 - 1,042
Total undiscounted

financial liabilities 13,463 3,052 14,929 4,723 36,167
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6.  Financial risk management (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)
Less than, _ More than _

At 31 December 2018 3 months  3-12 months 1-5 years 5 years, Total
Trade and other fihancial )

payables 11,642 - = - 11,642
Deferred acquisition

consideration payable - 157 - 827 984
Other currerit liabilities - 355 - - 385
Interest-bearing borrowings 2,659 1,694 7,086 3,565 15,004
Othier non-current liabilities - - 668 77 745
Put option liabilities 46 137 3,009 - 3,192
Financial guarantees given i - 947 = 947
Total undiscounted _

financial liabilities 14,347 2,343 11,710 4,469 32,869

Capital management

The primary objective-of the Group® s.capital. management policy is to ensure a strong capital base to fund and
sustain its business. operations thraugh prudent investment decisions. and to maintain gevernment, invesior:
and creditor confidence to support its business activities.

The Group considers total capital under management te be as follows:

2019 2018
Total borrowings (Note 20) 15,542 13,672
Total eqm_t_y_ _ _ 24,328 23,944
Less: cash and cash equivalents (Note 8) {7,084) {6,640)
Total capital under management _ 32,786 30,976

The Group is periodically mandated to contribute to the state budget-and finance various projects-undertaken
by the Gavernment.of the Azerbauan Republlc There were no changes to the Group s -approach to capital
management dlring the year.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair valug of the financial assets and liabilities is included at-the amount that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date. The estimated fair values of financial instruments have been determined by the Group using available
market mformatlon where it exists, and approgriate valuation methodologies. However, judgmént is
necessafily required to interpret market data to determine the estimated fair value. Management has used all
available market information in estimating the fair value of financial instruments.
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6. Financial risk management (continued)

Fair value of financial instruments {continued})

Set out below is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts. and fair value of the Group’s financial

instruments that are carried in the consolidated financial statements.

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 8)
Deposits (Note 8)

Restricted cash

Trade and othér receivablés

Ciher current assets

Other non-current financial assets

Total financial assets

Trade and other payables {Note 19)

Other current liabilities (Note 25)

Shoit-term borrowings and current portion of long-term borrowings
{Note 20) . '

Long-term borrowings (Note 20} _

Current portion of deferred acquisition consideration payable

Non-current portion of deferred acquisition consideration payable

Gther non-current liabifities

Put option liabilities (Note 35)

Total financial liabilities

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 8)
Deposits (Note 8),

Restricted cash

Trade and other receivables.

Other current assets

Other non-current financial assets

Total financial asseis

Trade and other payables:(Note 19)

Other current liabilities (Note 25)

Short-term borrowings and current portion of long-term boérfowings
(Note 20) '

Long-term borrowings (Note. 20} _

Current portion of deferred acquisition consideration payable

Non-current portion of deferred acquisition consideration payable

Other non-current liabilities

Put option liabilities. (Note 35)

Tot_al'financial liabilities

31 December 2019

Carrying Fair

amounts values
7,084. 7,084
106 108
150 150
7,292 7292
755 755
1,421 1,387
16,808 16,774
11,129 (11,121)
(324) (324)
(4,173) 4,173)
(11,369) (11,602)
(157) (157)
(570) (562)
(737) (654)
(2,718) (2,718)
{31,169) (31,311)

31 Dacember 2018

Carrying Fair
amounts values
6,640 6,640
151 151
201 201
5,606 6,606
851 851
1,323 1,282
15,772 15,731
(11,842) (11.642)
(355) (355)
(4.013)- {4,013)
{0,659) {9,616)
" (157) (157)
(529) {480)
(849) (725)
{2.713) (2;713)
{29,917) (29,701)
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6.  Financial risk-management (continued)
Fair value of financial instruments (continued)

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

i}  Currentfinancial assets and liabilities fair values approximate their catiying amounts largely due fo the
short maturities. of these instruments;

(i)  Long-term fixed-rate and variable-rate receivables/borrowings are evaluated by the Group using Level 3
inputs based on parameters such as interest rates, specific country risk factors, individual
credifworthiness of customers and the risk characteristics of the financed project.

Fair value hierarchy

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group’s assets and liabilities as at
31 December 2019:

Quoted prices  Significant  Significant

in active observable unobservabhle
markets inputs inputs’
Total {Level 1) (Level 2) {Level 3)

Assets méasured at fair value
Other curtent financial asséts at FVPL 372 23 337 12
Other current financial assets at FVOCI 81 81 - -
Trade receivables at FVOCI _ 41,072 - 1-.{}_72 -
Other non-current financial assets at FVPL 809 - 89 720
Liabilities measured at fair value-
Other current liahilities at FVPL (301) (36) (265) -
Other non-current liabilities at FVPL (34) (2) {32y -
Assets for which fair value are disclosed
Deposits _ 106 - 106: -
Trade and other receivables 6,220 - - 6,220
Other current financial assets 302 - - 302
Other non-current.financial assets 578 - - 578
Liabilities for which fair values are

disclosed
Trade and other payables (11,121) - - (11,121}
Othér current financial liabilities {23) - - {23)
Short-term borrowings and current portion o '

of long-term borrowings ' {4,173} - - (4,173}
Long-term borrowings (11,602) (3,572) - (8,030)
Deferred acguisition consideration payable {719) - - (719).
Other non-current liabilities (620) - - (620)
Put option liabilities {2,718) - = (3,718)
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6. Financial risk management (continued)
Fair value hierarchy {(continued)

The_fol_lowing table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the. Group’s assels and Iiab'ilitie's as at
31 December 2018:

Quoted prices  Significant  Significant

in active observable unobservabie
markets inputs inputs
Total (Level 1) {Level 2} (Level 3)

Assets measured at fair valué.
Other current financial assets at FVPL 554 141 413 -
Other current financial assets at FVYOCI 100 100 - -
Trade: receivables at FVOCI _ 1,211 - 1,211 =
Othér non-current financial assets at FYPL 805 57 167 581
Liabilities measured at fair value _
Other current liabilities at FVPL (355) - (355) -
Other non-current liabilities at FVPL {97) (5) (82) -
Assets for which fair value are disclosed
Deposits 151 - 151 -
Trade-and other receivables. 5,385 - - 5,395
Other current financial assets 197 - - 197
Other non-current financial assets 477 - - 477
Liabilities for which fair values are

disclosed
Trade and other payables {11,642) - - (11,642)
Short-term borrowings and current portion of _ '

long-term borrowings ' {4,013} o= - (4.013)
Long-term borrowings (9,616) {3,373} ~ (6,243)
Deferred acquisition consideration payable (637) - - (637)
Other non-current liabilities (628) - = (628)
Put optian fiabilities (2,713) - - (2,713)

The fOI?owing.'tab'les show a reconciliation of the opening-and closing amount of LLevel 3 financial asséts and
liakilities which are recorded at fair value:

Other non-
current:
Other current financiai
assets at FVPL  assets at FVPL

At 1 January 2018 - -
Purchases - 598

Remeéasurement recoghized in PL {Note 30) - 142
Translation to.presentatien currency - {159)
At 1 January 2019 - 581
Remeasurement recognized in PLL (Note 30) - 117
Purchases 12 83
Translation to presentation currency - {71)
At 31 December 2019 12 720
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6. Financial risk management (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Financial assets classified under [FRS 9 as-of 31 Deécember 2019 as follow:

Amortized cost FVOCI FVPL
Cash and cash eqiivalents 7.084 - -
Restricted cash: 150 - -
Ceposits- _ 106 - -
Trade and other receivables 8,220 1,072 -
Other current financial assets. 302 81 372
Other long-term financizl assets 812 - 809
Total financial assets after ECL. 14,474 1,153 1,181
Financial assets classified under IFRS 8 as of 31 December 2018 as follow:

‘Amortized cost FVOCI FVPL
Cash and cash equivalents 6,640 - -
Restricted cash 201 - -
Deposits 161 - -
Trade and other receivables 5,395 1,211 -
Other current financial assets 197 100 554
Other long-term financial assets 518 - 805
Total financial assets after ECL 13,102 1,311 1,359
7. Balances and {ransactions with related parties

Key management compensation

Key management of the Group includes the President of SCCAR and its twelve Vice-Presidents. Al of the.
Group’s key management are appointed by the President of the Azerbaijan Republic. Key management
individuals are entitled to salaries and benefits of SOCAR in accordance with the approved payroll matrix as
well as to.compensation for serving as members of the Boards of directors for certain Group companigs, During

2019, compensation of key management personnel totalled to AZN 1.404 {2018: AZN 1.282),

The nature of the related party relationships for those related parties with whom the Group entered into
significant transactions or had significant balances.outstanding are detailed below.
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7. Balances and transactions with related parties (continued)
Significant balances and fransactions with related parties
At 31 December 2018, the outstanding balances with related parties were as follows:

Government and
entities under

government Assaociates,
Note' __control joint ventures

Trade and othér finaricial receivablés 1566 1,887
ECL {44} {12}
Total financial receivables 112 1,975
Cash and cash equivalents 1,850 -
Restricted cash 82 -
Other current financial assets - B3
Deposits: 7 =
Total current assets 2,051 2,038
Other non-~current financial assets - 542
Total assets 2,051 2,580
Trade and other payablesto SOFAZ. 2,645 -
Trade and other payables 516 931
Total financial payables 3,161 931
Advances received for the sale of interest in PSA 34 - 4,313
Deferred cansideration payable ta SGC - 570
Lease Fabilities 413 -
Long-term payables to SGC = 103
Deferred consideration payabie for Methano! Plant 67 -
Total liabilities ('excl'uding borrowinigs) 3,644 5917

As at 31 December 2019, borrowings balances with related parties were as follows:

Bank name Interest rate Maturity date 2019

International Bank of Azerbaijan 4.4-4.8% 21 July 2022 ~ 23 August 2026 627
Ministry of Finance ‘of Azerbaifan Republic 2-3% 30 June 2023 -~ 1 April 2039 271
Total borrowings 393

As at 31 December.2019, outstanding bonds payable balances with related parties were as follows:

Bond holder Coupon rate Maturity date 2018

Azerbaijan Invéstment Company A% 30 December 2027 169
SOFAZ LIBOR + 1% 1 December 2024 301
SOFAZ LIBOR+ 1.335% 30 December 2027 272
SOFAZ LIBOR + 4% 31 December-2029 786
SOFAZ 3.80% 1-September 2028 9269
SOFAZ 4.60% 31 December 2029 414
Total bonds payable’ 2,911
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7.  Balances and transactions with related parties {continued)
Significant balances and transactions with related parties {(continuad)

The transactions with related parties fo_r--{he-year ended 31 December 2019 were as follows:

Government and
o entities under
¢ government Associates,
o control joint ventures
' Sales of natural gas B02 390
. Sales of oil products 378 31
N Sales of crude oil - 6,351
. Service rendered ) 1 ‘87
: Interest income. on loan receivables from related parties - 34
¢ Finance cost on loans from related parties (98) -
1 Utilities costs (709 (5}
Other operating expenses (3% (6}
i Other-opérating income 27 -
Social expenses (20) -
[ Transportation expenses (183) {339)
) Security expenses (18) -
e Purchases of PPE and inventory (14,952) (5,626}
! Dividends.received from joint ventures - 31
: Dividends received from associates - 117
. At 31 December 2018, the cutstanding balances with related parties were as follows:
' Government and
{ entities under
' -government Associates,
i Note confrol joint ventures
Trade and other financial feceivables 157 426
§ ECL (41) )
Total financial receivables 116 419
{ Cashand cash equivalents: 1,227 -
Restricted cash 176 -
1 Deposits 58 -
Other eurrent financtal assets - 34
i Total current assets 1,577 453
__ Other non-current financial assets - 467
1 Total assets 1,577 920
A Trade and other payables to SOFAZ 3,125 -
‘Trade and other payables: 609 911
A Total financial payables 3,734 911
5 Advances received for the sale of interest in PSA 34 - 4,313
Deferred consideration payable to SGC - 528
Deferred consideration payabie for Methanol Plant 62 -
i Long-term payables to SGC - 55
e Total liabilities {e}(cluding_borrowings) 3,796 5,308
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7. Balances and transactions with related parties (continued)
Significant balances and transactions with related parties (continued}

As at 31 December 2018, horrowings balances with related parties were as follows:

Bank name Interest rate Maturity date 2018

]nterné_tional Bank of Azerbaljan 44-48% 21 July 2022 - 23 August 2026 451
Ministry of Finance. of Azerbaijan Republic 2-3% 30 June 2023 -1 April 2039 315
Total borrowings _ 766

As.at 31 December 2018, outstanding bonds payable batances with related parties wete as follows:

Bond holder Coupon rate Maturity date 2018

Azerbaijan Investment Company 4% 30 December 2027 163
SOFAZ LIBOR+1% 1 December 2024 430
S0FAZ LIBOR + 1.335% ‘30 December-2027 286
SOFAZ LIBOR + 4% 31 December 2029 412
SOFAZ 3.80% 1 Septeimber 2023 -
SOFAZ 4.60% 31 December 2029 -
Total bonds payable 1,281

The transactions with related parties for the year ended 31 December 2018 were as follows:

Government and
entities under

government. Associates,
control joint ventures
Sales of natural gas’ 840 2614
Sales of oil products 396 6
Sales of crude oil - 327
Service rendered 3 67
Interest income on loan receivables from related parties - 25
Finance cost on loans fiom related parties (59) -
Utilities costs (67) (5
Other operating -expenses (40 {10)
Other operating income 206 -
Social expenses (19} -
‘Transportation expenses {111) (407)
Security expenses (10) -
Purchases of PPE and inventory (17, 275) (874
Dividends received from joint ventures 106
Dividends received from associates - 84

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties
Main sales 1o and purchases from the Government and entities under: government centrol are made at prices

regulatedby the Azerbaijani Government, Quistanding balances at the year-end.are unsecured and séttlement
occurs ih cash,
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(Amounts presented are in' millions of Azerbaijani Manats, uniess otheiwise stated)

8. Cash and cash equivalents and short-term deposits

2019 2018
USD denominated bank balances 5,646 5139
AZN denomiinated bank balarices 827 1,076
TRY denominated bank balances 287 48
EUR deneminated bank balances 151 273
CHF denominated bank balances 100 45
Other currencies’ denominated bank balances 75 70
Cash en hand 11 6
EGL (13 (17
Total cash and cash equiivalents 7.084 6,640

Deposits

At 31 December 2019, term deposits included placements in the total amount of AZN 107 with maturlty of

one year, under fixed contractual interest rates ranging from 1 per centto 3 per cent:per annum.

At 31 December 2018, term deposits inclided placements in the: total amount of AZN 155 with maturity of
one year, under fixed contractual interest rates rangirig from 1 per centto 1.6 per cent per annum,

At 31 December 2019, the Group recogriized ECLon. deposns in the amaunt of AZN 1 (31 December 2018;
AZN-4),

g, Restricted cash

At 31 December 2019, restricted cash was mairily represented by two cash collateral accounts. The Group
had restricted cash.in the amount of AZN 63 (1JSD .37 milliony in Deutsche Bank (31 December 2018: AZN 63)
as a guarantee of minimum return payments. payable to Goldman Sachs International {"GSI") according to
the Put Option Agreement in relation to 13 percent shares of STEAS (Note 35}. At 31 December:2019, The
Group had restricted cash in the:amount of AZN'45 in International Bank of Azerbaijan (31 December 2018:
AZN 93) as an irrevocable letter of credits for the foreign purchases related to modernization process of
Azerikimya plant. in addition, the Group had VAT deposit account in the amount of AZN 37 (31 December
2018: AZN.75) on which the operations are performed associated with receipt; registration and moverents of
VAT and its payment to state budget.

10. Trade and other receivables.

2019 2018
Trade receéivables 7,714 7.204
Other receivables 226 168
Less! ECL (648} {766)
‘Total financial receivahles 7,292 6,606
VAT recoverable 922 885
Prepayments 357 623
Underlift oil balance 181 Q0
Taxes receivahle 143 151
Other. 54 40
Total trade and other receivables 8,919 8,385

Tradé receivables are mainly répresented by receivables from salés of crude oil; oil products and naturaj gas
sold to customers of the Group.

At 31 December 2019, financial receivables of AZN 7,363 {31 December 2018; AZN 7 :016) were denominated
in fereign currengies, mainly in USD.
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16. Trade and other receivables (continued)

VAT_-recoverab_l_e relates fo purchases, which have not been settled at the reporting date: VAT recoverable is
reclaimable against VAT on sales upon payment for the purchases.

Set out Below is the movement in the aliowance-for ECL of trade receivables:

2019 2018
At .31 December 766 816
Impact of adopting IFRS 9 - 35
At1 January 766 851
ECL 87 19
Credit loss reversal (16) (54)
Wirite-oif _ (180) (24)
Currency translation difference (9) (26)
At 31 December 648 766
11.  Inventories

2019 2018
Raw materials and spare parts 704 594
Finished goods. 598 725
Crude oil 351 408
Geods in transit 231 1,045
Work in progress 128 142
Cther 55 B5
Total inventories 2,087 2,979

As at 31 December 2019 and 2048, 4l inventory balances have been measuted at cost.

12.  Other current assets and other current financial assets
Other current assets’

At 31 December 2019, other current assets mainly comprised contract assets in the amount of AZN 28
{31 December 2018 nif), which were: represented by transportation and demurrage services,

Other current fina_ncial assets

At 31 December 2018 and 2018, other current financial assets mainly comprised derivative instruments, loan
receivables and equity investments at FVOCL.

At 31 December 2019, the Group had balances related to margin deposits and: financial derivatives in the
amount of AZN 548 (31 December 2018: AZN 631),

At 31 Decerber 2019, the Group had loan receivable balance from third party in the amount of AZN 63
(31 December 2018: AZN 34},

At 31 December 2019, the Group had equity invesiments at FVOCI in the amount of AZN 81 (31 December
2018:; AZN 100).
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13,  Other non-current assets

At 31 Decémber 2019, other non-current assets were mainly represented by long-term prepayments for

-purchase of property, plant and: equipment in the amount of AZN 731 (31 December 2018: AZN 1,705),

non-current VAT réceivable in the amount of AZN 98 (31 December 2018: AZN 113), net defined benefit assets
in the amount of AZN 24 (31 December 2018: AZN 9), long-term prepaid expenses in the amount of AZN 13

(31 December 2018:-AZN 22).

14, Other non-current financial assets

At 31 December 2019.and 2018, other non-current financial-assets mainly comprised loan receivables from
refated-parties, equity investment at FVPL, long-term deposits and derivative instruments.

At 31 December 2019, other non-current financial assets were represented by fair value of 7 per cent. equity

interest and loan receivable from TANAP Dogalgaz lietim A. $. in the amount of AZN 651 and AZN 448,

respectively (31 ‘December 2018; AZN 581 and AZN 388, Tespectively).

At 31 December 2019, the Group's loan receivable from its associates was equal to¢ AZN 94 (31 December
2018: AZN 79).

At 31 December 2019, the Group had long-term deposits placed in local banks in the amaunt of AZN 74
(31 December 2018:. AZN 17).

The Group has entered into a series of commodity swaps, commodity futures and fereign: exchange futures to
m|t|gate price and foreign exchange risks. At 31 December 2019, the Group recognized Lunrealized fair value
gains on derivative instruments in the amount of AZN 86 (31 December 2018: AZN.224). The fiir value was-
determined based on-the difference between the market value and contracted fixed value of buy and seli
contracts.
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State Oll Company of the Azérbaijan Republic Notes to the consolidated financial statements for 2019

(Amounts presented are.in millions of Azerbaijani Manats, Unless otheiwise stated)

15.  Property, plant and equipment {continued)

During 2019, the Group capitalized finance costs in the amount of AZN 165, which was mainly attributable to
the construction of assets (31 December 2018: AZN 137). The. Group made interest payments of AZN 1,131
(2018: AZN 871) during the year of which AZN 111 (2018: AZN 86) related to capitalized interest expensés
over PPE.

During 2019, the Group acquired assets in the amount of AZN 5,361 (2018: AZN 4,582) excluding. property,

plant.and equipment acquired through business combinations in the: amount of AZN 216 (2018; AZN 199).

At 31 December 2019, the Group's impairment charge is mainly represented by write-down of oil & gas properties.
and equipment in the amount of AZN 283 (2018: AZN 129} related to investments in the hon-profitable 6il fields
located in the Republic of Azerbaijan. Impairment loss related to oil and gas segment of the Group was recognised
within other operating expenses. The Group does not expect future economic benefits-from non-profitable fields.
and recoverable amounts. of oil fields were riil as at 31 Degember 2019 and 2018.

16. Intangible assets other than goodwill

Movement of intangible assets other than goodwill and related accumulated amortization was as follows:.

Land and _ Customer Other
property Water Trade relation- _ intangible
_ rights rights naime ship Licence  -assets Total
Cost ) ]
At 1 January 20618 165 171 33 327 105 202 1,003
Additions. - - - - - 43 48

Acquisitions through business

combinations (Austiian Busmess)

(Note 39) - - 9 1 - 1 11
Actuisitions through businzss

combinations {APMT Business)

~ {Note 39) - - - - - 58: 58

Disposal | = - =~ - - @) (2)
Translation to presentation currency {38) {49 (10} {28} - (8) (131}
At 31 Decemnber 2018 127 122 32 -302 105 299 987

Additions - - - - 1 51 52

Acquisitions thiough business,

combinations (Note 39} - = - = 447 7 454
Transfers o right-of-use asset {21} - - - - - {21)
Disposal _ _ - - - - - {57) {57}
Transtation to: presentation currency {18} {13) {3) {4) {5} {1) {44)
At 31 December 2049 88 109 29 298 548 298 1,371
Amoriization.and impairment
At 1 January 2018 {41) (37) - (97) - (89) (264)
Amortization charge for the year '

(Note 29) (3} (3} 2) (13) - {22) {43)
Translation to presentation currency. 9 11 - 11 - 3. 34
At 31 December 2018 (35} {29 {2} {99} - {108) (273)
Amortization charge for the year _ _

{Note 28) ' (@) 2 2) (13 {17) (25) (81)
Transtation to-presentation currency 11 3 - 2 1 1 18
At 31 December 2019 (26) {28) {4) (110} {16) {137} {316}
Net book value _

At 1Januvary 2018 124 134 33 230 105 113 738

At 31 December 2018 92 93 30 203 105 191 714

At 31 December 2019 _ 62 81 25 188 532 167 1,055
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{Amounts presented are in millions of Azerbaifani Manats, unless otherwise stated)

16.  Intangible assets other than goodwill {continuad)

At 31 December 2018, carrying value of intangible assets included licence of “Umid Babek Exploration and
_Productmn Company” ("UBEP”) in the amount of AZN 105 (31 December 2018: AZN 105) and trade name of
Petkim in the amount of AZN 21 (31 December 2078: AZN 23) acqmred through business combination fri

August 2017 .and May 2008, respectively. These intangibie assets have indefinite usefil life and were tested

for impairment as part of recoverability analysis of related CGUs (Note 39).

During 2019, total amortization expense amounting to AZN 81 (2018 AZN 43) have been allocated to general
admlnlstratwe and research and development expenses by AZN 25 {2018: AZN 22), cost of sales by AZN 31
{2018: AZN 18) and to distribution’ expenses by AZN 5 (2018: AZN 5)..

Rights and computer software

Software is carried at cost less accumulated amorfisation. Amortisation is calculated using the. straight-line
method over the. estimated useful lives of such assets. Land property rights. comprise the rights over the
general infrastruciure. Land property rights obtained at thé acquisition of Petkim Petrokimya Holding A.S.

(“Petkim”) were initially recognlzed at their fair vailes in accordance with IFRS 3 as at 30 May 2008 and
amortised over their remalnlng useful fives commencing from the date of acquisition, except for the water:
transmission line which is not amortised as it is deemed to have an indefinite usefui life: '

Customer refationships

Customer relationships acquired as part of net assets of Petkim weére initially recognized at their fair values in
accordance with IFRS 3 as at 30 May 2008 and amortised over their remaining useful lives of 22 years:
commencing from the date of the acquisition.

Customer relationships acquired as part of net assets of SOCAR Switzerland ware initially recognized at their
fair vaiues in accordarice with IFRS 3 as at 30 June 2012 and amortised over their remaining useful lives
commencing from the-date of acquisition. The estimated useful life of rétail card customers is 18 years, retail
distribution network and fue!l customers are 30 years,

Petkim trade name

Petkim trade name- acquired at'the Petkim acquisition was initially récognized at its fair value in accordance
with IFRS 3 as at 30 May 2008. Petkim trade name is not amortised as'it is deemed to have an indefinite useful
life.

Water rights

Water rights acquired with the Petkim acquisition were initially. recognized at their fair value in accordance with

IFRS 3 as at- 30 May 2008 and amortised over their remaining useful lives of 47 years commencing from the
date of the acqtlisition.

17.  Investments injoint ventures

‘The table below summarizes movements in the carrying amount of the Group's investment in joint.ventures:

2019 2018
Carrying amount at 1 January 5,301 5,022
Additions to investments in joint ventures 103 194
Share of after-tax results of joint vertures 14 213
Dividends received from joint ventures (28) {117)
Derecognition of joint ventures. (15) -
Exchange differences 20 (30)
‘Other 3 19
Carrying amount at 31 December 5,398 5,301
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(Amounts presented are in millions of Azerbaijani Manats, nless otherwise stated)

17.  Investments in joint ventures (continued)

At:31 December 2019, the summarized-financiaf information of the Group's principal jointventurés, based on
their IFRS financial statements, and reconciliation with the earrying amount of the investment in consohdated-
financial statements are set out below:

-Azeri Ml
Azgerneft _ Driling .SOCAR Azerbaijan ‘SOCAR )
LLC: AZFEN Fluids AQS Rigs CAPE STYAS
Country of incorporaticon Azefbaija n-Azerbaijan Azerbaijan Azerbaijan Azerbaijan Azerbaijan Turkey
Current assets - 68 183 89 499 ‘84 59 2,195
including cash and-tash equivalents 9 43 - - 69 21 359
Non-current assets &85 23 22 229 939 h| 13547
Current liabilities {43) 77 (80) (324) [£2)] (17} (2.948)
including current financial liabilities

{excep! trade and other payables

and provisions) - {30! - (87) - - (575}
Nen-current liabilities - - (8) (68) (19 - {4,668)
including ricn-current findncial

fiabifities (except other payables _

.and provisions) = = {8} {35} - - {4,664)
Net assets 80 109 33 ‘336 995 53 8,128
Proporiion of the Group's.ownérship 40% 60%- 51% 13.4% 10% 51% 60%
Interest in the net assets 36 65 17 45 100 27 4,877
Adjustments 3 = 1 - {1). 1 183"
Carrying value 39 65 18 45 98- 28 5060
Dividends raceived {9) (13} - - 2 - -

" The aoyustmenr fnciudes add:tfonaf comtributions in share capﬂra! of Group's foint veritures, which-is represented by ingeptibn-to-
dale commission pafd on letter of credit in the amount of AZN 163, Remaining amount of AZN 20 represents over-financing by the.
Group. since {he other shareholder did not make capfra! infections in fine with its proportionate shareholding interest.

] -Azeri Ml _
Azgerneft Drillingg SOCAR Azerbaijan SOCAR
LLE AZFEN Fluids AQS Rigs CAPE STYAS

Revenle 60 206 166 275 o8 85 -
Cost of sales {28} (187) {139) {207} {34) (57} -
inciuding deprecialion (6) (10 (3 (22) {(33) B -
General and administrative expenses - {7) {3) (19) - (5} (128y
Other income - ~ - 11 - - 194
Other expense - {1 S {2) (81) - (218)
Forex gain (loss) - {1 - 1 ol - -
Interest revenue calculated using

effective interest method ' - - - - _ 71
Finance costs - - (1} {4} - - {izn
Profiti{loss) before tax 32 10 14 55 £17) 33 {208)
Income tax (expense)ybenefit {7) {4) {3} {14} {9} {4} 152
Profiti{loss) for the yéar 25 i) 11 41 {26) 29 {54)
Group's share of profit(loss) _

for the year 10 4 & 5 (3} 15 {32)
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17.  Investments in joint.ventures {continued)

At 31 December 2018, the Group’s-interests in other joint ventures that are not significant both individuaily and-
in aggregate and thezr summarised aggregate financial information, including total assets, liabilities, revenues.
and profit or loss, were: as follows:

Non- Non- Country of
Current current Current  current Profit/ Interest  incorpo-

Name assets assefs  liabilities liabilities Revenué  {loss) held ration
Qil and Gas ProServ LLC 19 - {7) (3) 4. 1 30%  Azerbaijan
Caspian Shlpyard Company - - - - - 1 20%  Azerbaijan
Sarmatia LLC 1 -~ {n - - - 27% “Paland
SOCAR Baglan MMC 1 14 (13 i8) - - 5%  Azerbaijan
SOCAR Fostér Wheeler ' _

Engineering 4 - (2} - 17 1 685%  Azerbajjan
SOCAR KBR a7 - {74} - 186 11 81% Azerbaijan
SOCAR Dalgic MMC. 10 10 {2y {15) 17 2 51% Azerbaijan
AAS-Ekol 3 - ) - 8 2 48%  Azerbaijan
SOCAR Uniper 15 64 (42) (1) 42 5 51%  Azerbaijan
SOCAR Fugro 15 = 8) - 16 - 51%  Azerbajan
SOCAR Construction 1 8 N - - ey 7% - Azerbaljai
Caspian Innovation Center 20 - (16) - 27 3 80%  Azerbajjan
SOCAR -Petrofac - - (2) - 1 (2 51%  Azerbaijan
Caspian Geo 33 - (25) - 39 8 51%  Azerbaifan
SOCAR-Neftegazstroy MMC 2 - - - 2 1 25%  Azerbaijan
Neftegaztexnologiya MMC = - = - = - 50%  Uzbekistan
Total 211 96 {194) {35) 359 30

At 31 December 2018, the-summarized financial information of the Group's principal joint ventures, based on
their IFRS finanicial statements, and reconciliation with the carrying amount of the investment in consolidated
financial statements are set out below:

Azeri MI _ _
Azgerneft _ Drilling  SOCAR Azerbaijan SOCAR
LLC AZFEN Fluids AQS Rigs. CAPE STYAS
Country of incorporation Azerbaijan Azerbaijan Azerbaijan Azerbaijan Azerbaijan Azerbaijan Turkey
Current assets’ 64 175 74 379 109 25 904
including cash'and cash equivalents: g 28 3 4 3 18 405
Non:current assets. 62 20 LN 227 1,029 18 12,281
Current liabilities (36) (713 (63) {241) (3) {16} (704)
including current financial fabilities
(except trade and offier payables _
and provisions} = - - (29) (8 (1) {356}
Non-cirrent liabllitias - - - (68) (@) - (4,456)
including non-current financial o
liabifities (except other payables
and provisions) = - - {44) - - {4,454)
Net assets 90 124 22 297 1,427 25 8,025
Praportion of the Group’s ownership. 40% B0% 1% 13.4% 10% 51% B0%.
Interest in the net assets- 36 74 1 40 113 13 4,815
Adjustments 2 - 2 ~ (1) - 154*
Carrying value 38 74 13 40 112 13 4,869,
Dividends received (8) {69) {15) {16} = (5) -

* The aaﬁrustment inclides additional contributions In stiare capital of Group’s joint venfures, which:is répresented! by inception-to-
date commission paid o letler of credit.in the amount of AZN 136. Remsining amount of AZN 18 represents over-financing by the
Group since ihe ofher shareholder-did not make capital Infections in ﬂne with rts propoitionate sharehofdmg interast,
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17, Investments in joint ventures {continted)

Azeri Ml
Azgerneft Driling SOCAR Azerbaijan SOCAR
LLG AZFEN Fluids AQs Rigs CAPE STYAS
Revenue 67 512 175, 576 89 89 -
Caost of safes. {29) (397 {141 (339 41 {7 -
Including depraciation (5 (11} (1) (18) 31) - -
General and administrative expenses - (8) {4) {15) - (%) {65)
Other income - - - - - 10
Other expense - - (1) {13} {2) = -
Forex gain {loss) - - - 1 - (25
Interast revenue calculated using '
‘effective interest method - 1 - - - - 61
Finance costs: = - - (36} - {15} {12)
Profit/{loss) before tax 39 109 17 185 48 @2 {31)
Income tax (expense)/benefit (8) (11} {8) {38) {8) {1} 235
Profit/{foss} for the year 31 98 9 147 39 {3} 204
Group's share of proi‘ti’(loss) _
for the year 12 59 5 20 4 (2) 122

At 31 December 2018, the Group's interests in other joint ventures that are not significant both individually and
in-aggregate and their summarised aggregate financial information, including fotal assets, liabilities, revenues.
and profit or loss, were as follows:

Non- _ Non- Country of
Current current Current  current ProfitY  Interest incorpo-

Name assets. -assefs liabiliies liabilities Revenue  {loss) held ration.
Qil and-Gas ProServ LLC 18 - (6) (3) 2 - 30%  Azerbaijan.
Caspian Shipyard Company 2 - - - - {2} 20%  Azérbajjan
Samatia LLC | - {1) - - (0 27% Poland
SOCAR Baglan LLC 1 14 {13 (8) - - 51%  Azerbaijan
SOCAR Foster Whesler

Engineering 2 2 {4): - 12 1 65%  Azerbaijan
SOCAR KBR 56- - 50y - 121 6 51%  Azerbaijan
SOCAR.Dalgic LLC, 5 13 (2) {16} 9 - 51%  Azerbaijan.
AAS — Ekol 4 - 1) - 9 3 48%  Azerbaijdn
SOCAR Uniper 20 9 (8) - 40 4 81%  Azerbaijan
SOCAR Fugro 13 1 (8) - 33 6 51%  Azerbaijan
SQCAR Construction LLC 1 g 1 - - {13 97%  Azerbajjan
Caspian Innovatich Center 12 - {10y - 13 1 90%  Azerbajjan
SCOCAR Turkey LNG 15 15 {14) 2 26 1 45% Turkey
Total 180 63 {118) {27) 265 18

During 2019, the Group has made additional contributions in sharé capital of its joint venture, SOCAR Turkey
Yatirim A.S. ("STYAS") in the amount AZN 76 {2018: AZN 152).

in 2015, the Group signed letters of credit agreements in relation to the construction of Star Refinery complex
(subsidiary of STYAS), Commission and interest expenses paid by the. Group in total amount of AZN 27 (2018:
AZN 26) were recognized as additional investrent in STYAS.
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(Amaunts presented are in millions of Azerbaifani Manats; unless otherwise stated)

18. Investments in associates

The table below summarizes movements in the carrying-amount of the Group's investment in associates.

2019 2018
Carrying amount-at 1 January 4,359 4,571
Additions to investmeénts ifi associates - 15
Share of after-tax results-of associates {5y 24
Dividends received from associates {126) (99)
Exchange differences {3y (32)
Other (17} {120)
Carrying amount at 31 December 4,208 4,359

At 31 December 2019, the summarized financial information of the Group’s principal associates, based on
their [FRS financial statements, and reconciliation with the-carrying amount of the investment in consolidated
financiat statements are set out.below:,

2019 SCPC BIC Ce 5GC
Country of incorporation Cayman Islands Cayman Islands Azerbaijan
Current assets 281 171 558
Non-current assets 8.677 8,476 .20,955
Current fabilities {256) (773) {552)
Non-current liabifities {381) (328) {15,506)
Net assets aftributable to the Group 8,321 7,545 3,124
Net-assets attributable to the NCI - - 2.331
Propartion of the Group’s. owriership 10% 25%. 49%
Interest in‘the riet assets 832 1,887 1,531
Adjustments (1) ~ @7y
Carrying value 831 1,887 1,454
Dividends received {(69) (53} -

* At 31 December 2019, the adjustment includes the armount-of AZN 34, which represents over-financing 6 SGC by the Group.and
AZN 16 represents. the Group's share il loss on sale of s additional interests in Shah Deniz P3A lo SGC in 2014 in adifition,
the amount-of AZN 127 represents elimination of unrealiset gain arisen from sale:of SGC's 7% equily interest in TANAP Dogargaz

fetim A.S in 2018.

2013 SCPC BTC Co $GC
Revenue 997 1,389 769
Cost of sales {426) (873) {420)
General and administrative expenses -~ - {162)
Distribufion expenses. - - (9)
Other expenses - - (2}
Other income - 10 a1
interest revenue calculated using effective

interest method Z - 76
Finance costs - (41} (748)
Forex loss - - (5
Share of results of associates - - (15)
Profit/{loss) before tax 573 485 {475)
Income tax expense (91 = (2)
Profiti{loss) for the year 482 485 {477)
Loss attributable to NCI - = {121
Group's share of profit/{loss} for the year 48 121 (174)
Adjustments {1} - -
Total 47 121 (174)
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(Amounts presented are in millions of Azerbaifani Manats, unless otherwise stated)

18. Investments in associates (continued)

At 31 December 2018, the Groups interests in other associates that are not significant both individually and-
in'aggregate and their summarised aggregate financial information, mcludlng total assets, liabifities, revenues
and profit or loss, were as follows:

Total “Total Profit/ Interest Country of
Name assets liabilities  Revenue {loss} held incorporation |
Caspian Geophysical Company 2 n 2 1 45% Azerbaijan
AzLab ' 5 (5) & - 50% " Azerbaijan
Cross Caspian Qil and

Gas Logistics LLC 3 (2} - - 34% Azerbaijan
Ateshgah Insurance Gompany A1 (28} 39 1 10% Azerbaijan
Caspian Pipe CGoatings'LLC 24 {9 24 2 50% Azerbaijan
Tankanlagen Mellingen AG-

{TAMAG" 13 {3). - - 33% ‘Switzerland
Tanklager Taegerschen AG ('TI.T’ '} 2 - - - 21% Switzerland,
SOGEP AG 6 (5) - - 34% Switzerland
UBAG AG 7 {5) - - 24% Switzerland
SAPPRO 3A 21 {20) - - 17% Switzerland
SARACO SA 38 {33) T = 20% Switzerland
Azerbaijan Gas Supply Company 555 {555) 4,809 - 28% Cayman Islands
Electrogas Malta ' 1,114 {1.279). 352 -{48) 33% Malta.
Cctogone 45 (50) 5 (t 20% Benin
Cl GNL 3 {36} = (5) 26% Ivory Coast
Total 1,879 {2,031) 5,237 {50}

At 31 December 2018, the summarized financial information of the Group's principal associates, based on
their IFRS financial statements, and reconciliation with the carrying amount of the investment in. conso!ldated
financial statements are set out below:

2018 SCPC BTC Co SGC
Country of incorporation Cayman Islands Cayman Islands Azerbaijan
Current assets 228 198 1,438
Non-current assets 8,921 8,770 20,465
Current fiabilities (215) (941) (804}
Non-current liahilities (409) (752) (15,293)
Net assets attributable to the Group 8,525 7,275 3,523
Net assets atiributable to the NCI ~ - 2,283
Proportion of the Group's ownership 10% 25% 48%
Interest in the net assets 853 1,819 1,726
Adjustments {2y - {7T1)"
Carrying value. 851 1,818 1,648
Dividends received (3) {95) -

* At 31 December 2018, the adjustment includes the amount of AZN 34, which represents over- f inancing fo SGC by the Group.and
AZN 16 represents the Group's share in loss. on sele of ifs additjonal intergsis in Shah Deniz-PSA to SGC in 2014, In addition,
ihe-amount.of AZN 127 represenils efimination of upréalised gain arisen from safe of SGC’s 7% equy interest in TANAP Dogaigaz.
et A.8.
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18. Investments in associates (continued)

2018. SCPC: BTC Co SGC
Revenue 750 1,513 435
Costof sales _ {240) (859) (226)
General and administrative expenses: - = {78)
Distribution expenses - - {7)
Other income _ _ - = 34
Interest revenue calculated using effective

interest method 1 1 59
Finance costs - - {86) {596)
Forex Joss - - {6)
Share of results of associates = - (6}
Profit/{loss) before tax 511 569 (389)
Income tax expense {77) — {10)
Profit/{loss) for the year 434 569 {399}
Loss attributable to NCI - {72)
Group’s share of profit/(loss) for the year 43 142 {160)

At'31 December 2018, the Group's interests. in other associates that are not significant both individually and
in aggregate and their summarised: aggregate financial 1nformat|on including total assets, liabilities, revenues

and profit or loss, were as follows:

Total Total Profit! Interest Country of
Name assets liabilities  Revenue {loss) held incorporation
Caspian Geophysical Company =3 {1} - (3) A5% Azerbaijan
AzLab 5 (4) 4 - 50% Azerbaijan
Cross Caspian Oil and Gas : _

Logistics LLC 3 (2) 4 - 34% Azerbaijan
Ateshgah Insurance Coriipany A2 {30} 1 (1) 10% Azerbaijan
Caspian Pipe Coatings LLC 17 {2) 7 1 50% Azerbdijan
Tank’anlagén-Mellingen AG

('TAMAG") 13 {3 - - 33% Bwitzerland’
Tanklager Taegerschen AG (*TLT") 2 - - 21% Switzerland
SOGEP AG. 8 {8) - - 34% Switzerland
UBAG AG 7 {5) - - 24% Switzerland
SAPPRO SA 20 {20) e - 13% Switzerland
SARACO SA 38 (32) = - 20% Switzerand
Azerhaijan Gas Supply Company 572 {572) 3,809 - 28% Cayman Islands
Eiectrogas Malta 1128 (1,248) 380 {32) 33% Malta
Octogone 50 (53) & {4) :20% ~ Benin
CI GNL 2 (31} - {10} 26% Ivory Coast
Total 1,914 {2,005} 4,340 (49)

19. Trade and other payables

2019 2018

Trade payables 6,922 7,450
Accrued liabilities. 3,164 3,198
Other payables 1,035 894
Total financial payables "M121 11,642
Paya_bl_é to employees 207 124
Liabilities for overiift of oil 6 14
Total trade and other payvables _ 11,334 11,780
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19. Trade and other payables (continued)

Financial payables in the amount of AZN 10,078 (31 December 2018: AZN 11,242) are denominated in foreign
currencies, mainly in USD. Trade payables mainly- represent -payables for crude oil, oil products,. gas,
construction, drilling, transportation-and utilities provided by vendors of the Group.

Accrued liabilifies: of the Group represent obligations incurred for the purchase of crude: oil and oi! products,
for which invoices have not been received yet.

Liabilities for overiift relate to the oil lifted by the Group in excess of its participating interest in ACG PSA and
Shah Deniz PSA and thus, represent the Group's obligation to deliver physical quantities of oil out of its share
of future production.

The Group acquired-trade and other payables with the fair values of AZN 313.as result-of business combination
(Note 39).

Contract Habilities

Contract liabilities are mainly represented by advances for construction projects and sale of goods and services

in the amount of AZN 187 (31 December 2018: AZN 142) and AZN 330 {31 December 2018: AZN 155),
respectively.

The Group had AZN 305 contract liabilities as.of 31 December 2018. During.2019, contract liabilities balance
increased by AZN 591 and AZN 28 due to additions mainly from construction contracts and acquisition 6f new
subsidiaries.. Upon. satisfaction of performance ohligations; AZN 399 of contract liabilities was released to
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income and recognized.as revenue during 2019.

20. Borrowings

At 31 December 2019, short-term borrowings and current portion of long-term bo_rrowings of the Group were
represented by the following facilities: '

Total borrowed  Balance as at

Interest | in original 31 December
Facilities rate Maturity currency 2018
Short-term facilities in USD 1.95-17.50%  January 2020 -
December 2020, 2,392 2,342
Short-term facilities in TRY: 8:47-44.17%  January 2020 -
' Recember 2020 1,146 293
Short-term facilities in GEL 11-14% January 2020 -
_ December 2020 486 190
Short-term facilties in other 2.50-19% Jantiary 2020 -
currencies: _ December 2020 711 136
Current portion. of long-term
borrowings -~ 1,212
Total short-term borrowings
and current portion of
torig-term borrowings - 4,173
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State Cil Company of the Azérbaijan Republic

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for 2019

(Amoaunts presented are'in millions of Azerbaijani Manats, unless othérwise stated)

20. Borrowings (continued)

At 31 December 2019, long-term borrowings of the Group were represented by the foliowing facilities:

Balance as at 31 December 2019

Facilities Interest rate* Maturity: Non-current perfion -Current portion
USD 1,000 mitlion 4,75% March 2023 1,204 24
USD 750 million 6.95% March 2030 1,235 27
USD 565 million 3.80% September 2028 854 115
USD 500 million - 5.88% January 2023 848 21
USD 427 million LIBOR * 2.70% February 2024 716 12
USD 488 millicn LIBOR + 6:95%  July 2025 666 101
USD 238 million LIBOR + 4% December 2029 438 =
USD 242 million 4.60% December- 2029 414 -
EUR 251 million EURIBOR + 3.03% June 2028 368 54
USD 193 million LIBOR +4% Déacember 2029 346 -
EUR 248 million EURIBOR + 0.95% June 2028 337 83
USD-212 million LIBOR + 4.675% March 2028 317 §
USD 250 million LIBOR +2.20% Ngvember 2023 294 26
WSO 200 million L_IBOR +.1.335% December 2027 258 14
USD: 159 million LIBOR + 2.50% November 2024 252 1
USD 150 million LIBOR + 2.70% June 2024 252 -
USD 485 million LIBOR + 1%: Dacember 2024 236 6.
UsD 110 million - 480% December 2023 187 =
UsD 260 million LIBOR.+ 4.30% +1.25%  December 2022 172 -
USD 100 million -5.00% October 2021 170 4
TRY 600-miliion LIBOR+5.2% June 2027 186 3
USD 90 million © 480% August 2026 183 2
JPY 15,398 million 1.50% April 2039 151 8
{JSD-300 million LIBOR + 3:25% March 2022 133 151
USD 77 million 4.80% December 2023 130 A
AZN 460 million 4:00% July 2022 125 70
UsD 78 millioh’ 4.00% December 2027 103 &7
USD- 68 million LIBOR + 3% January 2026 97 g
USD.‘S_ZmiIIiDI"T 4.40% May 2024 88 -
USD 100 million LIBOR + 3.25% Apfil 2022 84 58
USD 100 mition EIBOR + 3,25% February 2022 72 51
USD 101 million LIBOR +2.3% December2021 87 37
AZN 144 millien 0.16% (0.15% + 0.01%) Januarfy 2045 56 1
USD 65 million LIBOR +4.95% December 2024 53 18
USD 55 million- LIBOR + 5:25% September 2024 44 16
CHF 22 milligh LIBOR + 0.0714% or 0% July 2021 40 -
USD 29 million 4.00% Dacember 2027 38 28
USD 38 million 4.01%. December 2023 34. 10
EUR 35 million: LIBOR + 0.072% November 2025 23 8
EUR: 20 million 1.64% October 2023 18 6
CHF 10 million 3.00% QOctober 2027 17 -
USD 24 millian. 4,26%. December 2022 18 8
GEL.30 mitficn- 12.50% June2023 15 3
AZN 350 million 3.00% June 2023 13. 100
USD 20 million LIBOR. + 2% Aprit 2023 11 -
GEL 18 million. 13.50% November 2024 9 2
GEL 1% milflion 13.33% September2023 6. -
GEL 10 milfion 13.50% November 2022 6 -
USD. 5 miillion 4.26% December 2022 4 2
U3D 6 million o 4.28% Decéember 2022 4 2
EUR 2 miHi_o_n EURIBOR + 2.375% March 2031 3 -
USD 4 million 4:26% December 2022 3 1
CHF 2 million 0.85%. December 2031 3 -
Other long-erm borfowings 21 19
Total long-term borrowings 11,369 1,212
(9  LIBOR and EURIBOR vary from 3o 12 manths.
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20. Borrowings (continued)

At 31 December 2018, short-term borrowings and long-term borrowings of the Group were représented by the
following facilities:

Total borrowed  Balance as at.

interest. in original 31 December
Facilities rate Maturity currency 2018
Short-term fagilities in USD 2.48-8% January 2019 ~ B _
December 2019 2174 2,502
Short-term facilities in TRY 16,5-28.5%  January 2019 ~ _
_ Decémber 2019 126 42
Short-term facilities in GEL 12-14% January 2019 -
_ o Decembsr 2019 136 76
Short-term facilties in other 4.9-18% January 2019 - _ B
currencies December 2019 531 149
Current portion of long-term
horrowings - 1,244
Total short-term borrowings
and current portion of long-
term borrowings - 4,013
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20. Borrowings (continued)

At 31 December 2018, long-term borrowings of the Group were represented by the following faciiities:

Balance as at 31 Deéember 2018

(' LIBOR:ang EURIBOR vary from 316 12 months.

1

Facilities Interest rate* Maturity Non-current portion  Current portion
UsD 1,000 million 4.75% March 2023 1,234 22
‘USC 750 million 8.95% March 2030 1,235 27
USD 500 million 5.88% January 2023’ 845 21
USD 489 millicn LIBOR + 6.95% July 2025. 682 133
USD 238 millien LIBOR + 4% December 2029 412 -
EUR 251 miliiori EURIBOR + 3.03% June 2028 434 585
USD 280 million ‘LIBOR + 4.3%:+1.25% December 2022 399 34
EUR 249 million EURIBOR + 0.95% June 2028 392. 54
-AZN 800 million 4%. July 2022 380 7
USD 300 million LIBOR +3,25% March 2022 361 153
'USD 212 million LIBOR + 4:675% March 2028 321 4
USD 250 miliion LiIBOR + 2,2% November'2023 317 2
USD 485 million LIBOR + 1% December.2024. 294 135
USD 200 million LIBOR #1,335% December 2027 272 14
‘USD100 millioi 5% Cctober 2021 170 2
USD 78 million 4% December 2027 163 -
JPY 15,398 milliori 1.5% April 2039 167 B8
USD-100 million LIBOR: + 3.25% April 2022 141 30
USD 77 million 48% ‘December 2023 131 -
USD 100 million LIBOR + 3.25% February 2022 122 53
USD 68 million LIBOR+3% January 2026 106 9,
UsSb 101 million LIBOR %+ 2,8% December 2021 104 34
AZN 250 miillion 3% June 2023 100 50
USD 50 miliicn . 481% September 2020 85 -
USD &5 miltion LIBOR + 4.95% December:2024 86 18
USD 29 million 4%, December 2027 61 -
EUR.35 million LIBOR + 0.063% December 2026 59 8
USD 100 million LIBCR + 2.33%. June 2020 57 57
AZN-144 million 0.16% (0.15% +0.01%)  January 2045 56 B
USD:55 million LIBOR + 5.25% September 2024. 55 18-
EUR 35 million LIBCR + 0,072% November 2025 51 8.
USD 38 million _ 401% Decémber2023 44 10
CHF 22 millian LIBOR + 0.0714% or 0% July 2021 34 -
EUR 40 million EURIBOR # 2.25% December 2020 26 26
USD 100 million LIBOR + 2.4% Nay 2020 25 49
USD 50 million LIBOR +2,2% - Jily 2020 24 25
USD 24 million 4.26% December 2022 24 8
EUR: 20 mitlion 1.64% October 2023 24 6
EUR. 20 millior, LIBOR +0:872% September 2023 24 8
USD 52 million: 8% January 2020 21 -
CHF 10 million 3% October 2027 17 -
USD 10 million 5% Qctober 2020 17 -
UsSD 20 million LIBOR + 2% April 2023 10 -
GEL 48 million 14%: July 2020 9 16
USD 5 million 5% June 2020 9 -
EUR 12 million LIBOR + 3%. March. 2022 a3 3
GEL 51 million 1% ~ July 2020 8 12
GEL 11 million . 11.5% February 2020 T -
"EUR 7 million EURIBOR +1.75%  November 2028 8. 1
US0 5 million 4.26% December 2022 6 2
USD 6 million 4.26% December 2022 5 2
EUR 7 miliicn LIBOR +3% March 2022° 4. 2
U3D 35 million LIBOR + 2.35% April 2020 4. 9
USD 4 million 4.26% December 2022 4 1
GEL 35 millien 11.25% April 2020 4. 11
USD 4 million  4.26% December 2022 4 N
EUR 5 million LIBOR + 3% March 2022 3 1
-GEL:10 miltlion 5% + ref, rate Novernber 2020 3 3
GEL 15 miilion 11.25%: July 2020 3 B
GEL 10 million 14% October 2020 3 3
‘Othier long-term biorrowings 17 18
Total long-term borrowings 9,659 1,244
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(Amounts presented are.in millions of Azerbajjani Manals, uniess otherwise stated)

21.  Taxes payable

2019 2018
Payable to SOFAZ 2585 255
Corporate income tax payable 194 218
Sogial security contributions 16 3
‘Other taxes payable 107 213
Total taxes payable 572 690

In 2008, in addition fo reguiar export tax the Group was liable'to transfer a certain share of proceeds from.sales

of crude oil priced &t the level éxceeding the price determined by the government (USD 50 per barrel for 2009)

tc SOFAZ. No such taxes were imposed.on the Graup in 2009-2019,

Taxpayer companents of the Group opeérating under the Azerbaijani tax legislation are eligible for offsetting
their taxes: payable with taxes receivable and tax prepayments. Other taxes payable balance comiprises VAT,
property tax, excise tax, personal income tax offset with tax receivables and prepayments,

22.. Asset retirement obligations
The Group has a legal and constructive obligation with respect to decommissiching of oil and gas production

and storage facilities- and: environmental cléan-up. Movements in provisions for the related asset retirement
obligations are as follows:

Note 2019 2018
Carrying amount at 1 January 1,079 1,067
Additions _ 26 a7
Unwinding of the present vajue discount 32 7 65
Effect of change in estimates 389 {140}
Carrying amount at 31 December 1,545 1,079

Asset refirement obligations related to the PSAs are determined with réference to capital costs incurred by
contracior-parties and they are limited to the maturities of respective PSAs,

The maximum costs in respect of asset retirement obligations of the Group mainly represented by the following
oil and gas exploration, evaluation and deveélopmerit fields in the Azerbaijan Republic:

The maximum estimated cost to Azneft PU to abandon the preduction facilities employed was AZN 1,472 as
at.3t December 2019 (31 December 2018: AZN 1,913), The Company used 8,93 per cent rate to discount this
ghligation (31 December 2018: 8.47 per cent). '

The maximum estimated cost to AzACG to abandon the preduction facilities employed in ACG project was
AZN 1,688 as at 31 December 2019 {31 December 2018: AZN 1,629). The Company used 4.80 per cent rate.
to-discount this obligation (31 December 2018: 6,41 per cent).

The maximum ¢stimated cost to Az5D to abandon the production facilities employed in ‘Shah Deniz project
was AZN 548 as'at 31 December 2019 (31 December 2018; AZN 500). The Cornpany used 4.76 per-cent rate

to discount this obligation (31 December 2018: 6.26 per cent).

The maximum estimated cost to the: Group to abandon the production facilities employed in Absheron project

‘was AZN 191 as at 31 December 2019 (31 December 2018: AZN 147). The Company used 4.76 per cent rate
‘o discount this obligation (31 December 2018: 6.26 per cent).

“The maximum estimated cost to tHe Group to abandon the production faciliies employed in Umid-Babek

Exploration and Production project was AZN 96 as at 31 December 2019 (31 December 2018: AZN 90).

The Gompany used 4.76 per cent rate to discount this-obligation (31 December 2018; 6.26 per cent),
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22.  Assetretirement obligations (continued)

Estitnated costs of dismantling oil and gas production facilities, pipelines and related processing and storage.
facilities, ingluding abandonment arid_site restoration costs amountmg to AZN 777 at 31 December 2019
(31 December2018: AZN 481) are included in ofl and gas propeities and equipment.

Asset retirement obligations are measured by the Group using the present value of the estimated future costs
of decomwssmnmg of the assets. Management determines discount rates that reflect current market
assessments of the time value of moriey and whére: appropnate the risks specific to the liability. Discount rates
are revigwed.at each reporting date and used for discounting abandonment and site restoration -costs,
The discount rate used as at 31 December2019 was in range of 4.76:6.93 percent (2018: 6.26-8.47 per cent).

If the estimated discount rate used in the calculation had been 1 per cent hlgherflower than management's
estimate, the cartying amount of the provision would have been AZN 283 lower./ AZN 401 higher, respectively,

The following inflation rates were applied.in calculation of discounted cash flows in réspect of abandonment
and site restoration costs:

o 2025
Year 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 and later
Inflation rate 3.16% 3.80% 3.83% 3.93% 3.83% 4.03%

If the estimated inflation rates used in the calculation had been 1 per cent higherfiower- than ‘management’s.
estimate, the carrying:amount of the provision would: have been AZN 225 higher / 132 AZN' lower, respectively.

While the provision is based on the best estimate of future costs and the economic lives of the facilities and
pipelines, there is uncertainty regarding both the amount and timing of i incurring these costs.
23,  Other provisions for liabilities and charges

Movements in other provisions for liabilties and charges are as follows:

Environmental  Disability. Othe¥
Note obligations payments Provisions ‘Total
_Carrying amounit at 1 January 2018 58 108 - 164
_Additions. 84 3 15 102
Unused amount reversed (29) - - (29)
Ustlisation _ (24) (16) = (40)
Unwinding of the present value
discount 32 4 8 - 12
Effect of change in estimates = {1} - (1)
Carrying amount at 31 December _
2018 ' 93 100 15 208
Of which:
Current 26 15 15 56
Non-current 67 85 - 152
Carrying amount at 1 January 2019 93 100 15 208
(Disposals)y/additions. (5) 37 27 59
Utilisation (19) (18) (20) {58)
Unwinding. of the presentvalue _ '
discount 32 7 8 - 15
Effect:of changein estimates 2 12 - 14
Carrying amount at 31 December
2019 78 138 22 238
Of which: _
Current 32 21 2 75
Nan-current’ 46 117 - 163
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23.  Other provisions for liabilities'and charges {continied)

Environmentai obligation

In 2018, the Management approved Action Plan (2019-2023) in respect of environmental restoration related
to expected damage and cohtamination caused to the environment as a resuilt of activities within Absheron

area. Management estimated the Group's environmental obligations based on' historic trend of respective
expenses and estimated production profile of the Group.

Envi_ronmental-obi_iga_tions_ar_e_ measured by the Group using the present value of the: estimated future costs of
environmental restorations. Management determines discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and where appropriate, the risks specific to the. liability as of the reporting date,

‘The Groupcalculated the present value of the environmental obligation using a discount rate of 8.05 per cent

(31 December 2018: 7.97 per cent).

If the estimated discount rate used in the calculation had been 1 per cent higher/lower than management's
estimate, the carrying-amount of the -environmental provision wouid have been AZN 1 lower f AZN 1 higher,
respectively.

Disability payment
The Group-has-an obligation to compensate its ernployees for the damage caused to their health at workplace

up to January 2012 (payments to employees injured after January 2012 are made by insurance company,
based on insurance contract), as weli as to compensate dependants of died employees. The compensations

provided are linked to the salaries paid to the affected employees. The Group calculated the present value of

the disability payments to employees using a discount rate of .78 per cent (31 December 2018: 8.32 per cent).
For. the purpose of calculation of the. lifetime payments to injured employees, the Group estimated a life
expectancy as 71 and 76 for men and ‘women, respectively. If the -estimated discount rate used in the
caiculationhad been 1 per centhigher/lower than management’s.estimate, the carrying amount of the provision
would have been AZN 8 lower / AZN 9 higher, respectively. ' '

The inflation rates in Note 22 were applied to reflect the escalation in average salaries.

24, Deferred income.

2019 2018
Carrying amount at 1 January 69 104
Offset with-tax averpayments _ {11} (28)
Released to the consolidated statement of profit or ioss. (8) {6}
Received during the year 20 -
Carrying amount at 31 Dégember 70 69
Of which:
Current - 11
Noh-current 70 58
Current:

At 31 December 2018, current portion of deferred income represents goveérnment grants for the campensation
of josses expected to be incurred from sale .of natural gas and heating oil for the purpose of meeting local
demand in the country,

-Non-current

At 31 December 2019 and 2018, the non-current portion ‘of deferred incoms mainly represents government
grants obtained in 2006 for-the purpose of gasification of Baku sub-urban area and regions of the Azerbaijan
Republic.
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25, Other current and non-current liabilities

Other liabilities comprise the foliowing:

2019 2018

Liabilities under carried interest arrangerments 582 566
Derivative liabilities o ' 335 445
Long-term payables to the related party 103 137
Other liabilities. 41 56
Total other financial liabilities 1,061 1,204
Of which:

Current 324 355
Non-current 737 849
Net defined benefit liability 40 31
Contract fiahility 75 -
Other liabilities 28 30
Total other non-cuirrent non-financial liabilities 144 61
Total othier liabilities 1,205 1,265

Derivative liabilities

The Group has financial liabilities related to margin calls in the amotint of AZN 32 (31 December 2018:-
AZN 47), unrealized losses on paper positions in the amount.of AZN 108 (2018: AZN-228) and unrealizad
losses on physical positions in-the amount of AZN 195 (2018: AZN 170), Current portion of these liabilities as
of 31 December 2019 was AZN 306 (31 December 2018: AZN 355).

Liabilities under carried interest arrarigements

In February 2017, exploration and evaluation .stage of Absherort PSA was. completed successfully and
the Group started to recognize liability. with respect to its participating interest Absheron Offshore 2 PSA
{“Absherop PSA") which was carried by other-parties Lnder the carried arrangement until the commencermerit
of development stage. Pursuant to Absheron PSA, at 31 December 2019 the Group's carried liahility under
Absheron PSA was AZN 426 (31 December 2018: AZN 412}, ' '

Provision for post-employment benefit - Defined benefit plan

Under Turkish Labour Law, the Group Is required to pay termination benefits to éach employse who has
completed one year of service and whose employment is terminated without due cause, is called up for military

service, dies or who retires after completing 25 years of service (20 years for women). The. provision is

calculated by estimating the present value of the future probable obiigation of the Group: arising from the
retirement of the employees. IAS 19 requires actuarial valuation methods to be developed to estimate the
enterprises’ obligation under defined Benefit plans. Accordingly, the following actuarial assumptions were used

in the caiculation of the total liability:

) 2019 2018
Discount rate (per cent) _ 3.5 5.00
Probability of retirement (per cent) 100 100

The principal assumption is that the maximum Lability for each year of service will increase in lifie with inflation.
Thus, the diseount rate applied represents the expected real rate after adjusting for the anticipated effects of
future inflation.
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25.. Other current and non-current liabilities (continued)
Provision for post-employment benefit - Defined benefit plan {(¢ontinued)

Movement of the net defined benefit !iab’ili;_y was zs follows:

2018 2018
Carrying amount at 1 January 3 42
Actuarial loss 4 1
Payments during the year (8) (5)
Interest cost 13 3
Service cost’ 2 2
Translation fo presentation .currency {4) (12}
‘Carrying amount at 31 December 40 31

Contract liability

The Group has contract liability in the amount of AZN 75 (31 December 2018; nifY, which represents fees’
received for gasification works by Bursagaz and Kayserigaz.

26. Deferred acquisition consideration payable

At 31 December 2019, the Group had current deferred consideration payable in the amount of AZN 65
(31 December 2018 AZN 65) and AZN 65 (31 December 2018: AZN 65) for the: purchase of remaining
49 per cent shares of SOCAR Petroleum CJSC and acquisition of SOCAR Trading, respectively.

Additienally, the Group had ron-current deferred consideration payable in the amount of AZN 570
(31 December 2018: AZN 529) for the acquisition of 7-per cent equity interést in TANAP Dogalgaz lletim A. 3.
(Note 7).

27.  Charter capital, additional paid-in capital, retained earnings and gain on sale of subsidiary share
Charter capital

SOCAR as a holding company of the Group has a legal status of a state enterprise. The. iricrease in charter
capital was registered by Ministry of 'Economy of Azerbauan Republic-in the year ended 31 December 2019
and accordmgly the -additional ‘paid in capital of AZN 176 was reclassified from additional paid in capital to
the charter capital (31 December 2018: AZN 1,111},

Additional paid-in capital (“APIC™Y

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Government contributed to the charter capital of the Group in
cash in the amount of AZN 453 (31 December2018: AZN 1,180}, Untit registration of the incregse in the charter
capital this amouint was included in APIC.

Distribution to the Governmerit

Based on decisions of the Government, the Group is periodically mandated to make diréct cash'eontributions
orfinance construction and repair works for the Government {including fransfer of assets), various government
agencies and projects. administered. by the Government. During 2019 such direct cash transfers to the
‘Government, financing (made in the form of payments to sub-contractors of governmental -entities) and
distribution of property, plant and equipment amounted to AZN 680, AZN 5 and ril respectively (31 December
2018 AZN 675, AZN 5 and AZN 5, respectively), mainly for repair and reconstruction of existing, as well as
construction of new recredgtional, transport educational and medical infrastructure of the Azethaijan Republic.
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27.  Chartercapital, additional paid-in capital, retained earnings and gain on sale of subsidiary share
{continued)

Acquisition of non'—coritr_olling interest in subsidiary

On 3 .June 2018, the Group increased its ownership in SOCAR Polymer Investments LLC by 4.86 per cent through

injection of capitat and recognized gain in the: amount .of AZN 23 {(USD 13 million} directly in equity. As a result,

thé Group's controlling ownershipin SOCAR Polymer LLC increased from 52.15 | per cent to 57. 01_ per cent.

On 28 October 2019, the Group increased its ownership in Baku, Shlpyard LL.C by 17.26 per cent through debt

to equity conversion and recognized Joss in'the amount of AZN 61 directly in equity. As'a result, the Group ]
controlling ownership in Baku Shipyard LLC mcreased from 70. 21 per cent to 87.47 per.cent,

28, Anélysis. of revenue by categories.

o 2018
_ 2019 (restated — Note 2)
Crude oil, net 51,121 58,363
Oil products, net 22,198 40,232
Natural gas 4,123 3,304
Petrochemicals 3,914 3,894
Rent income 416 396
Cther revenue 1,980 1,573
Total revenue 83,752 107,762

Revenue from crude oil sales is stated net of export tax which is levied in the Azerbaijan Republic on
the margins between the internationai market price and internal state-regulated price on crude oil. The difference
between the market price and the internal state-regulated price is taxed at the rate of 30 per cent and
the-amount of tax is transferred to the State Budget.

Revenue from oil product sales is stated niet of excise tax of AZN 468'_(2018: AZN-456).
Revenue from sales of crude oil produced under ACG PSA and condensate produced under Shah Deniz PSA

is not subject to. excise tax mentioned above,

29.  Analysis of expenses by natire

_ 2018
Note 2019 ({restated — Note 2)
Raw materials and consumabies used 73,97 98,391
Wages, salaries and social security costs. 1,740 1,510
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1,603 1,391
Transportation and vehicle mainienance 1,084 1,183
Utilities expense _ 394 374
Repairs and maintenance expenses 358 331
Impairment of property, plant and equipment 15 286 161
Taxes other than onincorne 197 199
Mining tax 125 126
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 4 89 -
Change in other provisions for liabilities and charges 73 72
Amortization expense 16 61 43
ECL. / (ECL reversal) 49 (85)
Other 1,351 1,267
Total cost of sales, exploration and evaluation,
distribution, generat and administrative, ECL and
-other operating expenses 81,381 104,583
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30. Other operating income

Government grant

Gain-on reversal of impairment charge

Gain on termination of operation agreement
Fair value gain on equity instrument at FVPL
Gain on bargain purchase

Setilement of pre-existing relationship

Other o

Total other operating income:

31. Interest revenue calculated using effective interest rate and other finance income

Interest revenue calculated using effective inferest rate method

Interest income on time deposits-and bank accounts

Other

Total Interest revenue calculated using effective
interest rate method.

Other finance income

Note 2019 2018
35 214
- 187
39 - a1
| 117 142
39 19 -
39 - 170
170 162
344 916

2019 2018
107 126
56 58
163 184

-Other finance income represents realizéd income from interest rate swaps in the amount.of AZN 47 (2018:

AZN 28).

32. Finance costs

Interest expenses i

Provisions for asset retirement obligations; unwinding of
the present value discount

Environmental provision: unwinding of the present value
discount _

Lease liability: unwinding of the present value disc¢ount’

Provision for disability payments: unwinding of the present

value discount

Total finance costs

33.  Income taxes

Income tax ‘axpense gomprises the following:

Current tax expense
Deferred tax charge

Income tax expense reported in profit or loss

Note 2019 2018
1,029 1,049
22 71 65
23 7 4
4 45 -
23 8 3
1,160 1,126

2019 2018
573 612
104 384
677 996
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33. Income taxes (continued)

Reconciliation betwéen the expected and the actual taxation charge is-provided below:

2019 2018
Profit before tax 1,328 2,220
Theoretical tax charge at statutory rate of 20 per cent 266 444
Effects of different tax rates for ceriain subsidiaries _

(22, 25 and. 27 per cent) 57 B85
Undistributed profits of JVs and associates taxed at 10% (5) (15)
Tax effect of items which are not deductible or assessable for

taxafion purposes: _

- {mcome)r‘loss which is exempt from taxation (2) (14)
- non-deductible expenses 121 157
Defarred tax asset not recognized 87 172
Recognition of previously unrecognized deferred {ax asset (12) {2)
Unused investment incentives on which deférred income tax assets _

recognized (35) {19)
Potential income tax on retained profit of subsidiaries 65 22
Other 35 186
Income tax expense reported in-profit or loss 67T 996

Non-deductible expenses mainly ¢omprise thé social and employeé-related expenses. Unrecognized deferred

tax assets mainly relates to the current year fax losses of the Group’s subsidiaries which are not expected to.

utilize these losses.

The Group has business entities and subsidiaries which are residents to industrial parks in Azerbaijan and are

-exempt from taxaticn. Accordinig:fo ¢hange in Tax Code of Azerbaijan Republic in'2019, expenses incurred by
industrial park residents shall be treated as non-deductible during the exemption periéd.

At 31 December 2019, cumulative. balance of unrecognized deferred tax asset is AZN 1,610 (31 December
2018: AZN 1,435},

At 31 December 2019, benefits arising from previously unrecognlzed defarred tax-assets were used during the
year to reduce current tax-expenses by the amount of AZN 12 (2018: AZN 2).

At 31 December 2019, the Group récognized. deferred income tax asseét on the portion of unused investment
incentive for which the realization of the related tax benefit through the futuie taxable profit has deemed
probable with respéct to-its projections.

Differences between IFRS and. applicable domestic tax: regulations give rise to temporary. differences between
the carrying amount of dssets and liabilities for financial reporiing purposes and their tax bases. The tax effect
of the movements in these temporary differences is detailed below:

Credited/ Credijted/
1 January (charged}to  {charged)to 31 December
2019 profit or loss [a]of] 2019
Tax effect of deductiblef{taxable)
temporary differences-

Carry forward tax lossis 51 (23) ke 37
Accruals - 1 - 1
Trade and cther payables 12 15 - 27
Trade and other receivables 22 11 - 33
Inventory 4 (4} - -
Property, plant-and equipment 443 85 {2 506
Provisions for liabilities and charges 68 28 - 96
Unused lnvestment incentives 75 {17 (8) .50
Net defined benefit liability 7 8) - 1
-Other 18 ) {(2) 11
Deferred tax assets 700 65 - (3 762
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33. Income taxes (continued)

Acquisition
Credited! Credited/ through
1 January (charged) fo  (charged) to husiness 31 December
2019 profit or loss. Jeln | combination 2019
Tax effect of deductible/{taxable)
temporary differences )
Accruais 17 - - 14 31
Investments in associates and _
joint ventures {102} {2) - - {104y
intangible assets: (42} 7 ! on {125)
Trade and cther payables 6 (1) - 21 |26
Trade and dther receivables 79 (27) - - {108)
IAventory (38) (12} - - (50
Property, plant and.eguipment {1,084) (142} 12 (2 {1,216)
Provisions for liabilities and ' : '
charges 136 60 (3 - 193
Unused Investment incentives - 15 (2) - 13
Cther {(228) {67) 1 3 {28%)
Deferred tax liabilities {1,412) {169) 8 {55} {1,627)
Credited/  Credited/ _
1 January  -(charged)to {charged)to 31 December
2018 profit or loss QCI 2018.
Tax effect of deductible/{taxable}
temporary differences
Carry forward tax losses 08 (39) (8) 51
Investments in associates and jointventures {1} - = {1
Tradé and cther payables 27 {(18) - 12
Trade and other receivables 33 {11) = 22
Inventary 9 (4 N 4
Property, plant and equipment. 520 (66) {11y 443
Provisions for-liabilities-and charges 75 (8} 1 B8
Unused investment incentives 13 {33} (5) 75
Net defined benefit liability g - (2) 7
CGther 22 {3 - 19
Deferred tax assets 905 179 {26} 700
Acquisition
Crédited/  Credited/  through Effect.of
1January {charged)to {charged}to businéss. transitionto 31 December
_ _ 2018 profit or logs oci combination  IFRS 15 2018
‘Tax effectof deductible/{taxable)
temporary differences
Accruals {4 21 - - - 17
Investments in associates and _
_igint ventures (1013 3 4 - - (102
Intangible assets, {41) 2 - (3) - 42)
“Trade and other payables 13 (7) - - 6
Trade and other receivables (53) {47) 1 = 20 (79)
Inventory (22) {16) - - - (38)
Property, plant-and equipment (803) {166) 40 (25) - (1,084}
Provisions for liabilities and charges. 133 - 3 = - 136 '
Other (231) 5 = - = (226)
Deferred tax liabilities. {1,209) {205) 10 {28) 20 {(1,412)
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33. Income taxes (continued)

The Group does not file a consolidated tax retusn. In the context of the Group’s current structure, tax losses’
and current tax assets of different Group companies may hot be offset against currenttax liabilities and taxable
profits ‘of other Group companies and, accordingly, taxes may accrue even wheré there-is a consclidated tax

loss. Therefore, deferréd tax assets and liabifities are offset orily when they relate to the same taxable entity.

In accordance with Azerbaijani tax legislation, tax losses arising in'one period can be carried forward for five yedrs,

The Group is a participant o ACG PSA through its subsidiary AzACG. During. 2019 AzZACG accrued and paid

its income tax at the.rate of 25 per cent.

The governments of the Azerbaijan Republic, Turkey and Georgia togéther with the Group’s subsidiary AzBTC

-and other BTC Project participants entered ‘into. Host Government Agreements (*HGAs"). The HGASs set out-

the legat and fiscal regime for the BTC Project and the mutual rights and obligations: of the parties, including

grants of rights and guarantees from the respective Countries to the 1|_-|v_e_stor_s in respect of matters necessary

to ensure the success of the-BTC Project. In accordance with the provisions of the HGAs, the BTC Project
participants are individually liable for income taxes in Georgia and the Azerbaijan Republic and are responsibie:
for filing returns for each taxable period. Accordingly, the Company is liable for Azerbaijani income taxes arising
from participation in the BTC Project. In accordance with the provisions of the HGA, Azerbaijani income tax
rate is twenty-seven per cent {27 per cent) which was effective at 31 December 2018 and 2018.

In addition, the Group is a participant to Shah Deniz PSA through its subsidiary AzSD. According to the
provisions of Shah Deniz PSA, AzSD is liable for corporate income tax payments. However, in accordance
with PSA, the Government makes profit tax payments on behalf of contractor parties from the proceeds from

‘gates of pr’oﬁt-pe.troleum attributable to the Government. Thérefore; no cofporate income tax related to Shah

Deniz project was. recognized for 2019 and 2018. At 31 December 2019 and 2018, deferred tax balance of
AzSD was nil. AzSD is alsc exempt from certain ordinary operational taxes in 't_he-Aze_rbaijan Republic.

The Group operates in the tax environmeént of Turkey through its subsidiary, STEAS. Income tax rate in Turkey
is 22 per cent as of 31 December 2018 (20 per cent as of 31 December 2018). According to new amendments.
on tax legislation of Turkey, 22 per cent corporate tax rate is applied {o the profits of the companies related to
2018 and will be applied to 2020 tax period. Corparate income taxes are payable quartetly. Besides, the Group
cbtained investment incentives certificates. from Ministry of Economy of Turkey. Based on these certificates,

the Group became capable of deducting 22.2 — 50 per cent of expenditures that are in the scope of the

investment incentives incurred during the investment period from tax base.

In" accordance with the fax legisiation of Turkey dividends paid to overseas corporations located oUtside
Turkey, which have a place of business. in Turkey are not subiéct to W:thholdmg tax that is 15 per cent.
Therefcre, the Group does nothpay 15 per cent withholding tax.

The Group operates in tax-environment of watzeriand through its subsidiary, SOCAR Energy Holdlngs AG,
According to new amendments, on fax Ieglslatlon of Switzerfand, 20.2 per cent (2018: 20 per cent) corporate

tax rate is applied to profits of the companies related to 2019 and future tax periods,

The Group's subsidiaries — SOCAR Overseas LLC, Gacrux Middle East Investments Holding LTD, Azerbaijan
(SCP) LTD, Baku Shipyard LLG, Sermaye Inuestment Limited, SOCAR Polymer LLC and Carbam|de Plant
are.exempt from taxation.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had not recognized deferred tax liability in the amount of AZN 56

'(31 December 2018: AZN 56) in respect of taxable temporary dlfferences associated with investments in

subsidiaties as the Group is able to control the timirig of the reversal of those temporary differences and does
not expect-tc reverse them i the foreseeable future;
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34. Advances received for sale of interest in PSA

In-July 2014, the Company signed a Deférred Sales Purchase Agreement ("DSPA”) 1o sell SOCAR’s 10 per cent
interestin Shah Deniz PSA and 10 percent lnterest in SCPC {together referred as "Interest”). According to the
terms of this agreement SGC shall pay advance for these acquisitions to SOCAR while control will pass to
SGC in 2023 upori meeting of conditions preceding sale. In addition, DSPA specifies certain progress
payments related to actuisition consideration payable anntially till the end of 2020. As of 31 December 2018
and 2018, total consideration received for the interest in Shah Deniz PSA and SCPC amounted to AZN 4,313
(USD 2, 537 million).

35. Put option liahilities -

On 12 August 2015, 821 miliion newly issued sharés, representing 13 per cent of capital of STEAS,
a subsidiary of the Group, were purchased by GSI in exchange for AZN 1,364 (USD-4,300 million).

At the same time, the Group entered into a put opticn agreement with GSI, whereby the Group has committed
to purchase back the shares held by GSi, at a specified price, in case if the planned initial public offering of
STEAS does not ocour, or to settle the put dption in case if certain conditions provided by the put option
agreement are riof met. Put option provided by the Group to. GSI will bevalid for & years following the- elgnlng
of the put option agreement and represents non-ctirrent financial liability. As at'31 December 2019, carrying
value of put option liability over 13 per cent. STEAS shares equais to AZN 2,209 (31 December 2018;

AZN 2,205).

The Group also has put option liability in the amount of AZN 509 (USD 300 million) (31 December 2018;
AZN 508 (USD 300 million)) related to the put option agreement sigried between STEAS and GSi in 2014
regarding 30 per cent shares of Petlim Limancilik Ticaret A.S.

36. Significant non-cash investing and financing activities

investing and finaricing transactions that do not require the use of cash and cash equivalents and were
excluded from the cash flow statement are as follows:

Note 2019 2018

Non-cash investing and financing activities
Nen-cash capital expenditures 224 175
Additions to asseis purchased on lease 40 -
Increase in loan receivable from TANAP due 1o cash calls

made by SGC on behalf of Group 25 31
Additions to investment in TANAP due to cash calls made by

SGC on behalf of Group 26 30
-Capital expenditures under ¢arried interest arrarigement 6 B
Early Termination of leasé contracts _ {49} -
Conversion of borrowings due {o Ministry of Finance to the

charter capital of the Group. _ 37 - 680
Offset:of botrowings due to Ministry of Finance with tax- .

overpayments of the Group 37 - 220
Non-cash investing and financing-activities 272 1,142
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37. Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

Foreign  Acquisition

1 January Cash Finance  exchange. of new 31 December
2019 flows: cost movement  business Qther 2019

Shari-teim interest- T

bearing bomowings 4,013 (315) 228 (91) 18 320 4,173
Non-current interest-

hearing borrowings 8,659 1,472 579 (25) 4 (320) 11,369
Put opticn ligbilities 2,784 {387} 335 5 - - 2,737
Deferred consideration _

payable 686 - 38 3 - - 727
Laasé liabilities 685 (78) 45 {24) - 3 831
Financing of Group by

"SGCfar cash calls of

TANAP 55 - - {3 - 51 103
Dividend payable ta NCI 21 - - - - 19 32
Toftal liabilities from _ _ .

finahcing activities: 17,903 ‘692 1,225 {135} 22 65 19,772

The “Other” column of short-term and non-current interest-bearing borrowmgs repreésented by classification of
current portion of AZN 320 of non-current borrowings as short-term in 2019, The “Othef” column of dividend
payabie includes dividend declared amount to non-cantrolling shareholders during 2019 which was not paid
as of 31 December2019. The “Other” column of financing of Group by SGC for cash calls of TANAP represenis
liabilities. which will result in future cash outflows recognized by the Group for the payments made on behalf of
Group by SGC to respond cash call requests of TANAP.

Changes in liabilities arising-from financing activities as at 31 December 2018 were as follows:.

Foreign  Acquisition

1 January -Cash Finance exchange of new 31 December
2018 flows cost movement  busingss Other 2018

Short-terni interest- .

bearing barrowings 5,998 {2,131) 232 {138) - 52 4,013
Non-current interest- _ _

bearing borrowings. 9513 363 600 103 32 {952) 9,659
Put option liabiliies 2,746 (257) 301 {6) - - 2,784
Financing of Group by '

SGC for cash calls of

TANAP ' - - - {8} - 51 55
‘Deferred consideration _ ' :

payabla 147 (181) 26 (1) - 675 688
Dividend payabie to NCI 22 (122) - = - 121 21
Total liabilities from _

financing activities 18,426 {2,308) 1,158. (48) 32 (43) 17,218

The *Qther” column of short-term interest-bearing borrowings included effect of conversion of borrowings due
to Ministry of Finance to the charter capital of the Group of AZN 157 and offset of borrowings due to Ministry
of Finance with tax overpaymenits of the Group in the armount of AZN 70.The "Other” column of nen-current’
interest-bearing borrowings included effect of conversion of borrowings due to ‘Ministry of Financé to the
charier capital of the Group of AZN 523 and offset of borrowings' due to Ministry of Fihance with tax
'overpayments of the Group in the amount of AZN 150. In addition, the “Other” column of short-term and rion-
current interest-bearing borrowings represented by classification of current portion of AZN 279 of hon-current
borrowings as short-term in 2018: The “Other™ column of fi fnancmg of Group by SGC for cash calls of TANAP
represents liabilities which will result in future cash outflows recognized by the Group for the payments made
on behalf of Group by SGC to resporid cash call requests of TANAP. The “Other” column of deferred
consideration payable represents liabilities recognised for the purchase of 7% intérést in and loan from TANAP
in-2018. The “Other” column of dividend payable includes . dividend declared amount. to non-controlling
shareholders during 2018.
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38. Contingences, commitments. and operating risks
Operating environinent
Azerbaifan

The Group's operations: are mainfy conducted in the Azerbaijan Republic. Azerbaijan continues economic
reforms -and development of its legal, tax and regulatory frameworks. The futare stability of the Azerbaijan
economy is largely dependent Upon’ these reforms and the effectiveness of economic, financial and rmonetary
measurés undertaken by the goverriment as well as crude oil prices and stability of Azerbaijani Manat,

The Azerbaijan €conomy has been negatively impacted by decline of oil prices angd devaluation of Azerbaijani
Manat during 2015. This resulted in reduced access to capital, & higher cost of capital, inflation-and uncertainty
regarding economic growth. Ih response to these challerges, Azerbaijani government anhounced plans to
accelerate reforms and support financial system. On 6 December 2018 President of the. Azerbaijjan Republic
approved “Strategic road maps for the nationa} ecanomy and main econemic.sectors of Azerbaijan". The road
maps cover 2016-2020 develepment. strategy, fong-term outlook up to 2025 and vision beyond,

Furthermore, during 2019 the government continued its monetary policy with respect to stability of Azerbaijani
Manat as well as allocated foreign currency resources which stabilized Azerbaijani Manat: This palicy is
expected to continue In 2020 with the aim of maintaining- macroeconomic stability.

The Group's management is monitoring changes. in macroeconomic’ environment and taking precautionary
measures it considers necessary in order to support the sustainability #nd development of the Group's
business in the foreseeable future.

International credit rating agencies regularly evaluate credit rating of the Azerbauan Republic-and the Group.
Fitch evaliated rating of the Group and rating of the Azerbaijan Republic as "BB+", however, S&P evaluated
the Azerbauan Republic with *BB+" and the Group with “BB-". Moody's investors Seivice set “Ba2” credit rating
for Azerbaijan and for the Group..

Turkey

The Group’s activities in Turkey were affected by the instability of Turkish economy during 2019. Such mstabmty
was followed by significant inflation and devaluation 6f local currency against major foreign currencies, such
as, USD and EUR by 13 per cént (2018 40 per cent) and 10 pef cent (2018; 33 per cent), respectively.

While management believes itis taKing appropriate measures to support the sustainability of Group’s business.
in the current circumstances, unexpected further deterioration in the areas described above could negatively
affect the Group’s results and financial position in & marner not currently determinable.

Environmental matters

The enforcement of envirenmental regulation in the-Azerbaifan Republic is evolving and. the enforcement
posture of government authorities is continually being reconsidered. The Group periodically evaluates its
obligations under environmental regulatzons As obligations are determined, they are recognized immediately.
Potential liabilities, which might arise as a result of changes in existing regulations, eivil litigation or legislation,
cannot be estimated but could be material. In the current enforcement climate under existing fegisiation,
management believes that there are no significant liabilities for environmental damage above envirenmental
chligation provision currently madé:by the Group (Note 23),

The Group is subject to numerous national and lgeal environmental Jaws and regulations concerning its.
products, operations and other activities. These laws and regulations may reqguire the Group-to take future
action to remediate the effects on the environment of prior disposal or release of chemicals or pefroleum
substarices by the Group.or other parties. Such contingencies may exist for various sites.including refinefies,

chemical plants; oil fields, service stations, terminals and waste disposalsites. In addition, the Group may have
obllgatlons relating to prior asset sales or closed facilities. The ultimate requirement. for remediation and its
cost are mherently difficult to-estimate. However, the estiniated cost of known environmental obligations has
been provided in the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Group's accounting pelicies.
While the amounts. of future costs could be significant and could be material to the Group's results.of operations
in the period in which they are recognized, it is not practical to estimate the amounts invelved. The Group does
‘ot expect these costs to have a material effect on the Group's financial position or liquidity.
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38. Contingences, commitments arid operating risks (continued)

Environmental matters (continued)

The Group afso has obligations to decommission oil-and natural gas productlon facilities and related pipelines.
Provision is made for the estimated costs of these activities, however there is uncertainty regardmg hioth the
amount and timing of these costs, given the long-term nature of these obligations.

The Group believes that the impact of any reasonably foreseeable changes to these provisions on the Group’s
results of operations, financial position or liquidity will not be material,

Tax fegislation

Azerbaijan tax, currency. and customs legislation are subject to varying lnterpretatlons and changes, which
may occur frequently Management's intérpretation of such legislation as applied to the transactions and
activity of the Group may be challenged by the refevant authorities.

Fiscal pericds remain open te review by the'tax authorities in respect of taxes for three calendar years
preceding the year of tax-audit. Under certain circumstances such reviews may cover lenger periods..

The Group's management believes that its interpretation of the relevant legisiation is appropriate and the
Group’s fax, currency legisiation and customs positions will be sustained, and potential tax liabilities of the
Group. will not exceed the amounts recorded in these consolidated financial statements. Accordingly, at
31 December 2019 and 201 8 no provision for potential tax Iiabllmes had been recorded..

Azneft PU tax case

During 2019, tax authorities conducted on site tax-audit in Azneft PU covering the period from 1 April 2016 to
1 November 2018. As part of inspection, tax authorities raised a claim declaring the understatement of the:
profit tax, export duties and incorrect offset of VAT in' total amount of AZN 111. The Managemert has own
positioh in regard with these claims and believes that the Group has declared taxes properly. during the period
under inspection. Cusrently, the negotiation between the Group management and the tax office is in process
and Management of the Group beligves that.their arguments are sirong and it is probable that tax autherities
will accept their position.

Black Sea Terminal tax case

In 2018, Black Sea Terminai — subsidiary of the Group was inspected by the Revenue Service (“RS") which
covered the peried starting from 1 January 2015 up:to 1. January 2018 for corporate income tax, personnel
incorne.tax and withholding tax. As a result of inspection, RS acérued additional WHT and respective fines and
sanctions in total amount 6f AZN 103 .(GEL, 174 ‘millieri). The Group did not agree with results of the inspection
and appealed to Ministry of Finance for further investigation, The hearing was held by Council of Tax Appeals
in July 2019, however no final decision was made as of 31 December 2019. Management believes the base
for noted fine wil} be deemed as invaiid and thus, no financial exposure is deemed prohable.

Ongoing cases against Petkim

On 25 August 2017, Petkim was notified by Turkish Tax Authority about the additional VAT charge and fine
which was cafcu}ated based on Special Consumption Tax (“SCT™} regime as a result of the investigation related
to pyrolysis. gasoline ("pygas) consumption during 2014, Three ongoing iegal cases with réspect to the.
‘application -of SCT regime for pygas, have been recently resulted in favour of the Pétkim. A compromise
meeting was attended for the tax‘and penalties coemmunicated and.no compromise was achieved. The case
was filed on 22 January 2020 regarding the issue. Accordmgly, management believes the base for noted fine
‘wili be deemed as invalid, and so no financial exposure is deemed probable.

Legal proceedings

From time-to time and in the normal course of business, claims against the- Group are. received, On the. bams
-of its own estimates and both internal and exterrial profess:onaf advice management is of the opinion: that no
material losses will be incurred in réspect of claims in éxcess of provisions that have been made in these
consalidated financial statements,
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38, Contingences, commitments and operating risks {continued)

Compliance with financial covenants

At 31 December 2019, the Group had loans payable ifl tofal amount .of AZN 15,542 which were received for
financing its investing and operating activities. The: Group is subject to- certain financial covenants related to
these borrowings. Non-compliance with such covenants may result in negative consequences for the Group

including growth in the cost of borrowmgs and declaration of default. ‘Management believes that, as of
31 December 2019 and 2018 the Group was in- compliance with all pplicablé financial covenants.

Financial guarantees, collaterals, pledges and mortgages

The Group pledged its future cash inflows in respect of proceeds to be received from sales of natural gas and
crude oil inthe amount of AZN 418 for loan received from related party.

SCCAR Head Office:

According to Equity Subscription Support and Retention Agreement (“ESSRA”) which had been signed as part’
of STAR Project Finance deal, the Group concluded letter of credit (*L.C") facility agreements in total amount.
of AZN-865 (USD 509 million) with certain banks (Lenders).

STEAS

The following table demonstrates guarantees received and given by the Group .at 31 December 2018:

20159 2018

Guarantees received
Bank guarantees within the context of direct order collgction sysiem

(DOCS) 321 304.
Receivable Insurance N _ 291 258
Letters 6f guarantee received from customers 298 182
Letters of credit recéived 38 130
Letters of guarantee received from suppliérs 130 127
Other 26. 43
Total guarantees received _ 1,102 1,044
Guarantees given
Letters of guarantee given 177 175
Total guarantees given 177 175
Coliaterals, pledges and mortgages (CPMs)
CPMs given by Petkim on Petlim loan* 322 324
CPMs given for Petkim 718 665
Total CPMs given by Petkim 1,040 989

* During 2015, Peffim Limancitik Ticaret A.S., whére Group. subsrdrary Petkim ovins 70 pei-cent shares, has signed’
a project finance credit agreement with a financial institution in the amount of AZN 360 {USD 212 millior) which
has 13 years of malurity with no repayment dunng first 3 years period, for the external funding of the container porf
project. At.31 December 2019, Petlim has remaining loan batance-amounting to AZN 322 (TRY 1,127 million). Petkiin
hag pledged ils shares in Petlim amounting to AZN 30.(TRY 105 million) and a morigage amournting o AZN 595
(USD 350 million) as a guarantee for the loan repayment. The project has findncial cavenants that gre valid during
the operatmg periad.
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38. Contingences, commitments and operating risks._{continued)
Capital commitments
Participating interest in ACG PSA

Azerbaijan-International Operating Company, the Operator of the ACG PSA has entered into a number of
capital commitments as at 31 Deceniber 2018. The Group estimated its 25 per-cent {31 Decermber 2018:
25 per cent) share of these commitments to be AZN 2,373 (USD 1,396 m||[|on) (31 December 2018: AZN 634
(USD 373 million}).

Commitments of Baku Shipyard LL.C

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had capital commitments to third parties in the amount of AZN 43
(31 December 2018; AZN 50) in respect of construction contracts,

Commitments of SOCAR Switzerland

The. Group has number capital commitments for the next years: The Group estimated its capital commitments
to be AZN 63 (CHF 38 million) (31 December 2018 AZN 72 (CHF 42 million)).

Participating interest in Shah Deniz PSA

BP Exploration Shah Deniz Limited, the Operator of the Shah Deniz PSA has entered into a number of capital
commitments as at 31 December 2019. The Group estimated its 13.27 per cent share of these capital
commiitments.through its sub5|d|ary and associate to be AZN 673 (USD 396 mitlion) (31 December 2018: AZN
877 (USD 516 millionj).

Commitment under the funding agreement with BOTAS (the “Funding Agreement”)

On 26 May-2014 SOCAR and BOTAS sagned Funding Agreement for financing BOTAS's 5 per cent shares in
TANAP AS., upon acquisition of shares in TANAP A, $. by BOTAS, Following the sale of TANAP fo SGC, on
13 March 2015, the Group signed novation agreement with SGC and BOTAS, where ail rights and obhgatzons-
under the. Fundmg Agreement were transferred from SCCAR o the SGC. According to agreement with
BOTAS, the SGC has commitment for providing interest free foan to BOTAS for financing its 5 per cent share
in TANAP A $.'s future cash call requirements throughout the Carry Period (as defined in the- Funding
Agresment}. Management expects no further cash outflows in connection with the Funding Agreement.. '

Commitment related to SCF Expansion

Shah Deniz PSA Contractor Parties made the final invéstment decision on SCP Expansion projéct on
17 December 2013. SCP Expansion project objective. is td expand the existing SCP pipéline system capacity.
Due to SCP expansion additional facilities wili- be constructed in Georgia for the purposes of interconnection
with TANAP. The Group has the commitment to fund the SCF Expansion project throughout the: construction
and initial operatlonal phase.

First commercial deliveries of gas under the- SCP Expansion projéct took place on 30 Juné 2018 and

-construction of remaining. SCP Expansion project elements was completed on 31 March 2019, The SCP

Expansion remaining construction budget is’ estimated in the amount of AZN 44 (USD. 26 million} (2018:
AZN 258 (USD 152 millian)). The Group's share through its subsidiary and associate at 31 December 2019

was AZN 5.8 (USD 3.4 milion) (2018: AZN 34 (USD 20 million)).

Censtruction of TANAP

The Group has: capital commitment to fund TANAP project. The Group’s share in the remaining budget for

construction of TANAP system through its associate at 31 December.2019 was AZN 129 (USD 76. miflion)
(31 December 2018: AZN 408 (USD 240 miliion)).
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38. Contingences, commitments and operating risks {continued)
Capital commitments (continued)
Construction-of TAP

At the financial statement date, the Group has capital commitment to fund the construction of TAP system.
In late 2018 TAP AG reached fnanCIaI close under the project financing, provided by a Iarge greup of financial
institutions. The Group acts as one of the guarantors of the loan facilities for the 9.8% shares that it holds i in
TAP AG-and continues to provide required equity financing to TAP AG pro-rata to its equity. share. The Group's
share in the remaining budget for construction of TAP system through its associate at 31 December 2019 was’
AZN 133 (USD 78 million} (31 December 2018; AZN 218 (USD 128 million}),

Gas purchase commitments

Gas purchase commitment

Based on the Gas:Sales and Purchase Agreement signed on 27 February 2003 between Azerbaijan Gas
Supply Company (‘AGSC") and the Ministry of Energy of the Azerhaijan- Republic (currently purchase rights
under this agreement are executed by the Group), the Groug has obligation to purchase sefler's minimum
annual quantity as indicated in the agreement for the period beginning from signing of the contract up to the
termination date of Shah Deniz PSA.

SOCAR - AGSC Gas sales agreement

The Group is obliged under the agreement signed with AGSC to purchase minimum-annual quantity of gas till
June 2020 (with earlier termination or possible extension of the agreement in accordance with. provisions of
the agreeiment) at a price which is stipufated in the. contract

Commitments refated to participating interest in AGSC

The Group holds 28 per cent direct interest in AGSC and indirect 2.62 per cent through its associate. in

accordance with the agreements of AGSCT the Group has 13.27 per cent share of the following commitments
relating to AGSC's activity..

BOTAS SPA 1

-AGSC is obliged under the gas contract signed with BOTAS to make-available a maximum of approximately

6.6 billion Contract Cubic Meters (*BCcm”) of gas annuyally untii the expiry of the contract at a-price calculated
based on-a formula established by the gas contract.

BOTAS SPA 2

On 25 October 2011 the Group.and BOTAS executed a gas Sale and Purchase Agreemerit (‘BOTAS SPA 2"

with respect to the sale by the Group to BOTAS of certain volumes of Shah Deniz Stage 2 Gas {2 BCem first

year, 4 BCcm second year, 6 BCcm plateau peried). In December 2012 the Group iransferred and assigned
the rights ard obligations under the Stage 2 SPA to AGSC. The commencement date under BOTAS SPA 2
was 30 June 2018.

BOTAS contract for BTC fuel gas (BIL GSA)

AGSC is obliged under the agreement with BOTAS to make available 0,15 BCcm of gas annually until the
expiry of the contract at a price, which is calculated based on a formula established in the.contract.

Georgian Supplemental Gas SPA with GOGC
AGSC is obliged under the agreement signed with Georgian Oil and Gas Corporation ("GOGC”) and. the

government of Georgia 6 make available 0.5 bcm of-gas annually in 2020 and onwarts, at a price which is
calculated based on a formula established in the contract.

89



..

State Oil Company of the Azerbaijan Republic Notes to the consolidated financial statements for 2019

{Amotnis presented are in mfm‘ons of Azerbaifani Manats, unless otherwise stated)

38. Go'nﬁngences, commitments and operating risks.{continued)
Commitments related to participating interest in AGSC (continued)

Sale and purchase agreement with OptionCo

AGBC 1 abllged under the agreement signed with OptionCo 1o make available during each contract year a.

maximum of five percent of the volumes transported in the previous calendar years by AGSC via the. SCF’:
pipeline through territory of Georgia, at -a. price, which is calculated based on-a formula established in the
coniract,

Shal Deniz Stage 2 EU Long term Gas Sales Agreements ("GSA")

In September 2013, several EU GSAs were signed by the _G_r_oup with EU Buyers. (currently: DEPA,
Bulgargaz Shell, Uniper; Axpo, ENGIE, Edison, Enel, Hera) and in December 2013 the GSAs were assigned.
to AGSC until Shah Deniz PSA expiry with re-assighment to the Group-as Shah Deniz Production declines.

The commencement date will be firmed up through funneling mechanisim as defiried in the GSAs.

Trédnsportation agreement with SCPC

AGSC is party to SCPC Gas Transportation Agreement ("GTA", dated 27 February 2003 which was
subsequently amended and re-stated {*SCP GTA") with effect.from 17 December 2013 in ordér fo prowde
additional fransportation services in respect of Shah Deniz Stage 2 'volumes. AGSC is obliged to pay certairi
tariffs, as calculated in acéordance with theé agreement, to SCPC starting from the commencement date; which
is 1 October-2006. AGSC is obliged to provide SCPC, free of charge, the natural gas necessaryto fil} and
pressurize the pipeline to its designed opérating pressure and used as.fuel gas. The SCP GTA provides for
Minimum Morithly Payments ("MMP"), as calculated in accordance with the subject agreement, payable by
AGSC to SCPC, regardiess of whether natural gas is shipped or not, in respect of each.contract year until the
termination or expiry of the GTA.

Framework agregment

A fully-termed Framewark Agresment related to the novation of long-term GSAs and transfer of GTA capacity
from AGSC to SOCAR after 2036 was executed on 19 October 2015 and further amended and restated on
28 September 2018.

Trans Anatolian Pipsliné Gas Transportation Agreement (TANARP GTA)

AGSC is a party to TANAP GTA with_arinual reserved capacity as defined In the contract. The planned
commencement date is a date falling in the second half of 2020.

Trans Adriatic Pipeline Gas Transportation Agreement (TAP. GT4)

AGSC and SOCAR is a party to TAP GTA with annual ¢apacity as defined in the contract. Thé planned
commencement date is a date falling in the second half of 2020,

BOTAS Gas Transportation Agreemenf (BOTA_S- GTA)

TANAP is a party to BOTAS GTA with annual reserved capacity during the build-up period, as defined in the
contract, of 1.9 BCem (12-month period commencing on start date); 3.8 BCcm (next 12-month peried) and
plateau of 5.7 BCern 24.months after the start date. The start date was 30 June 2018.

Societa Nazionale Metanodotti GTA (SNAM GTA)

AGSC is a party to SNAM GTA with -annual reserved capacity as defined in the contract. The' planned
commencement date will be set through a funnelling mechanism.,
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38. Contingences, commitments and. operating risks (continued)
Sale and purchase agreement with Baku-Tbilisi-Ceyhan Pipeline Company (‘BTC Co”}

AGSC is obllged under an agreement signed. with BTC Co to make available 0.16 bem in 2020 and during:
the following years until the termination of the contract subject to the right of BTC Co 1o reduce annual off-take,
at-a price which s calculated based on the formula established in the contract.

Deferred Sale and Purchase Agreement with SGC

According to Deferred Sale and Purchase Agreement ("DSPA”) signed with SGC Upstreamn LLC and
SGC Midstream LL.C the Group agrees to sell its whole interest in Shah Deniz PSA, AGSC and SCPC in
March 2023 upon meeting of the following conditions preceding sale:

» The full and uncenditional repayment of the notes and fulfiiment of other obligations under the Eurobonds
agreements by SOCAR; and

- Confirmation of the paymient of full consideration amount in accordance with agreement terms.
Cther commitments
Commitment of Azerigas PU

Based on Presidential Decree number 118 dated 27 February 2014, directed to social-ecanomic development
of Baku area and regions of the Azerbaijjan Republic, Azerigas F‘U has certain commitments with respect to
gasification in the.mentioned areas, After completion of the first gasification progtam whith Sovered the perlod
from 2014 to 2018, the company continugs the gasification process within implementation of new “Staté
Program on Sccig-Economic Development of Regions of the Repubfic of Azerbaijan for 2019-2023 years”,

As-at 31 December 2019 gasification in the country was compieted by 96.01 per cent (31 December 2018:

95.66 per cant). Management believes that expenditures. related to remaining gasmcatlon in the country will
continue to be financed by the Government through contributions into-capital.

Oif shipment commitment

On 1 August 2002 the Group and other participants under the ACG PSA (the “Shipper Group”) have entered,
into the ACG Field Production Transportation Agreement ("ACG TA") with the BTC Co which was amended
on 3"February 2004. Under this Agreement, the Shipper Group have committed to ship through the
BTC Pipelirie alt of their crude il entitlemient from the ACG field, other than any production which each
participart may shlp through the Western Export Route. The Group. has agreed not to transport its crude oil by
rail unless BTC Co is operating at its full capacity. In accordance with ACG TA the Group has agreed not to
use other transportation options, if capacity of the BTC Co.is sufficient. The BTC Pipeline was put into operation
in. May 2008. The BTC Pipeling, with-a throughput capacity of more than 1,200,000 barrels per day, is used as.
the Shippér Group's main export route. In accordance with the Transportation Agreement, the Shipper Group,
the Group representative, the lenders and security trustee to BTC Co, and the lenders and security trustee to
certain participants of the ACG Shipper Group have agreed that payment of BTC Co tariff. has a first prlonty
claim on oil sale proceeds.

SOCAR Gas Transpoitation Agreement (SOCAR GTA)
Based on this GTA, from.and including the start date SOCAR shall pay to TAP AG the amount of actual monthly

charge in relation of each booking of reservéd capacity at each: entry point and exit.point ata price. which is
calculated based on the formula establistied in'the contract.
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39. Business combination, acquisition of nen-controlling interests, acquisition of subsidiary which
is nota busmess, goodwill and intangible asset with indefinite useful life

Business combination and acquisition of non-c'ontrolling interest

On 17 June 2019, the Group-acquired controlling interest in Bursagaz, Kayserigaz, EWE Enerji, Enervis,
Milenicom and Kay Solar Pro;ects The Group considered this acquisition as an oppertunity to expand to
natural gas distribution, energy trade, salar- power and telecommunication businesses in Turkey: The fair
values of the acquirees' assets and liabilities as at the dateé of acquisition are presented below:

Fair value
recognized-on

Bursagaz Note acquisition
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 64
Trade and other receivables 9
Cther current assets 7
Property, plant and equipment 117
Intangible assets other than goodwill 228
Right-of-use asset 1
Total assets at fair value 426
Liabilities
Trade and other payabies 19 147
Other current liabilities 1
Deferred tax liabilities 28
Non-cusrent lease liability 1
Other non-¢urrent liabilities 48
Total liabilities at fair value 225
Total identifiable net assets at fair value 201
Non-controliing interest {44)
Gain recognized on bargain purchase 30 (5)
Purchase consideration transferred {152)
Analysis of tash flow on acejuiisition
Net cash acquired with subsidiary 64
Cash paid {152)
Net cash flow on acquisition {88)
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39. Business combination, acquisition of non-controlling interests, acquisition of subsidiary which
is not a business, goodwill and intangible asset with indefinite useful life (continued)

Business combination and acquisition of non-controlling interest {continued)

From thé date of acquisition, Bursagaz has contributed AZN 146 of revenue from the continuing operations of

the Group. if the acquisition had taken place at the beginning of the year, the Gifoup's revenue from continuing
operations would have been AZN 83,943 and the profit before tax from continuing operations for the period

would have been AZN 1,344,

Fair value
recoghized on-

Kaysefigaz Note acguisition
Assets _
‘Cash and cash equivalents 18
Trade and other receivables 15
Other current assets 6
Property, plant and equipment 84
Intangible assets other than goodwill 217
Right-of-use asset 1
Total assets at fair value 351
Liabilities
Trade and other payables 19 50
Deferred tax liabilities. 3z
Non-current lease liability 1
Other non-current fiabilities 38
Total liahilities at fair value 161
Total identifiable net assets at fair vaiue 1980
Non-controlling interest {36)
Gain recognized on bargain purchase 30 %)
Purchase consideration transferred (145)
Analysis of cash flow on acquisition
Net cash acquired with subsidiary 18
Cash paid (145}
Net cash flow on acquisition {127}
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39. Business combination, acquisition of non-controlling interests, acquisition of subsidiary which
is not a business, goodwill arid intangible-asset with indefinite useful life (continued)

Business combination and acquisition of n_on-co_ntrolling interest (continued)

From the date of acquisition, Kayserigaz has contributed AZN 91 of revenue from the continuing operations of
the Group. If the acquisition had taken place at the beginninig of the year, the Group's revenue from continuing
operations would. have been AZN.83,861 and the profit before tax from continuing operations for the period
would have been AZN 1,336.

Fair value
recognized on

EWE Enerji Note -acquisition
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1
Trade and other recéivabies. 29
QGther current assets 3
Defarred tax asset 5
Total assets at-fair value _ 38
Liabilities
Trade and other payables 19 -81
Other: non-current liabilities _ 1
Total liabilities at fair vaiue _ 52
Total identifiable net liabilities at fair value {14)
Nan-cantrolling interest -
Goodwill arising on acquisition 14
Purchase consideration transferred ~
Analysis of cash flow on acquisition
Net cash acquired with Subsidiary 1
Cash-paid -
Net cash flow on acquisition 1

From the date of acquisition, EWE Enerji has contributed AZN 364 of revenue from the. continuing operations
of the Group. If the acquisition. had taken place at the beginning of the year, the Group’s revenue from
continuing operations would have been AZN 83,875 and the profit before tax from. continuing operations for
the period wolld have been AZN 1,322,

Fair value
_ re¢ognized on

_Enervis Note acquisition
Assets
Trade and other receivables 2
Total assets at fair value 2
Liahilities _
Other non-current liabilities 1
Total liabilities at fair value _ 1
Total identifiable net assets at fair value 1

Non-controlling interest -
Gain recognized on bargain 30 (1)

Purchase consideration transferred -
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39. Business combination, acquisition of non-controlling. interests, acquisition of subsidiary which
is not'a business, goodwill and intarigible asset with indefinite useful life {continued)

Business combination and acquisition of non-gontrolling interest {continued)

Fair value
recognized on

Milenicom Note acguisition
Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 2
Tradé and othér receivables 19
Other current assets, 1
Property, plant and equipment 2
Intangible assets other than goodwill 8
Total assets at fair value 32
Liabilities

Trade and other payables 19 24
Nen-current lease liability 1
Other non-current liabilities .
Total liabilities at fair value. 28
Total identifiable net assets at fair value 4

Non-controlling interest -
Gain recognized on bargain 30 4

Purchase consideration transferred -

Analysis of cash flow on acquisition

Net cash acquired with subsidiary- 2
Cash paid _ -
Net cash flow on acquisition 2

Fromthe date of acquisition, Milenicom has contributed AZN 28 of revenue from the contihuing operations of
the Group. If the acquisifion had taken place at the beginning of the year, the Group s revenue from continuing
operations would have been AZN 83,776 and the prefit before tax fram continuing operations for the period
would have been AZN 1,326..

Fair value
_ recognized on

Kay Solar Projects Note acquisition
Assets _
Trade and other receivables 1
Property, plant and equipment 3
Intangible assets other than goodwill 1
Total assets at fair value 5
Liabilities _
Trade and other payables 19 1
-Other non-current iabilities 4
Total liabilities at fair value 5
Total identifiable net assets at fair value -
Non-controlling interest -
Goodwill arising oh acquisition 3.
Purchase consideration transferred {3)
Analysis of cash flow on acquisition
Net cash acquired with subsidiary -
Cash paid {3)
Net_ cash flow on acquisition. (3)
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39. Business.combination, acquisition of non-controlling interests, acquisition of subsidiary which
is not a business, goodwill and intangible asset with indefinite useful life {continued)

Business combination and acquiisition of n'on-c'_o'ntrolIin‘g_interest {continued)

The goodwill recognlsed is primarily. attributed to the expected synergies and other benefits frorn combining
the asseis and activities of EWE- Turkey Holdmg A $. and Kay Solar Projects with those of the: Group.
The goodwill is not deductible for income-tax purposés,

Acquisitions in 2018
Acgqiiisition of 100 per cent interest in APMT

According to *Operation Agreement” signed between the Group -and APM Terminatleri Liman Isletmeciligi
Anonim Sirketi ("APMT") in .2013, the latter was appointed as the operator of Petlim port. APMT was
responsible for providing services in accordance with the terms and conditions set out in the aparation
agreement. The agreement provided APMT with the right to use the infrastructure and maintain; manage and
repair the port, On .27 December 2018, APMT terminated. Operation Agreement which triggered penalty
payment to: the. Group by ultimate shareholder of APMT. The' Group and former owner (“Owner”) of APMT
negotiated exit route and poteéntial séttlement options of penalty amount. As a result, parties agreed to
determing penalty amount as fair value of APMT business and séttle penalty by transfernng APMT te the
Group. Thus, the Group recognized penally receivable of AZN 170 {Note 30) at transaction date:

This transaction was recognized as an acquisition of new business in accordance with IFRS'3. On Detember
2019, the valuation was completed and the fair values of identifiable assets ang liabilities. arising from the
acquisition were identified as following:
Fair value
recognized for
transferred dsset
and liabilities,

Note AZN

Assets _ _
PrOperty plant and equipment 15 98
Intangible assets” 16 58,
Cash 55
Trade and other receivables 23
Tetal assets at fair value 234
Liabilities

Trade and other payables 47
Deferred tax liabilities 33 17
Total liahilities at fair value 64
Total identifiable net assets at fair value 170
Purchase consideration transferred (170)

' The transactions resulted in net cash inflow in the amount 6f AZN 55: The cash.cutfiow as a result of acquisition

was nil.

Priof to acquisition, the Group recognized deferred income balance of AZN 51 with APMT regarding the right-
of-use of the port for the future years. At the date of acquisition, deferred income was released to profit or loss
statement of the Group as a settlement of pre-existing relationship (Note 30).

Acquisition of 100 per-cent shares in retaif servicé chain network in Austria

On 28 February 2018 the Group-acquired 100 per cent-control over four business. units which are network of

gas and petrol stores located in Austria. The Group considered this acquisition as an opportunity to expand its
petrol station network into an adjacent geography at an attractive rate of return.
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39. Business combination, acquisition of non-controlling interssts, acqunsrtnon of subsidiary which
is nota business, goodwill and mtanglble asset with mdef‘mte useful life {continued)

Acquisitions in 2018 (continued)

This transaction was recognized as. acqmsztlon af new. business in accordance with IFRS 3. As a resuli of

purchase price allocation fair value of net identifiable assets of acquired business units was determined as

equal to the consideration of AZN 56 transferred for the acquisition.

The fair values of the assets and liabilities as at the date of acquisition are presenited below:

Fair value
recognized on

Notes acquisition
Assets
Proparty, plantand equipment 15 101
Intangible assets 16 11
‘Inventories 7
Trade and other réceivables 15
Other current financial assets 3
Total assets at fair value 137
Liabitities:
Long-term barrowings 32
Deferred. tax liabiities 33 11
Trade and other payables _ 29
Other current financial liabilities 9
Total liabilities at.fair value 81
Total identifiable net assets at fair value 56
Purchase consideration transferred {56)
Analysis of cash flow on‘acquisition
Net cash acquired with subsidiary -
Gash paid {56)
Net cash flow on acquisition (56)

From the date of acquisition, newly acquired business units have contribtited AZN 303 of revenue and AZN 2
loss to the net-profit before tax from the continuing operations of the Group., If:the acquisition had taken place
at the beginning of the year, the Group’s revenue from continuing operations would have been AZN 111,255
and the profit before tax from continuing operations for the pericd would have been AZN 2 219,

Goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful livés

For impairment testing goodwill acquired through business combinations and mtanglble assets wﬁh indefinite’
useful lives were allocated to CGUs at 31 December 2018 and 2018 as following:

S0CAR S0CAR-
Trading Switzerfand Petkim UBEP Other
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Goodwilt 106 106 122 115 56. 63 - - 33 17
Trade name - - 5 7 20 23 - - - -
Licence - - - - - - 108 108 - -
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39. Busihess combination, acquisition of non-controlling interests, acquisition of subsidiary which
is not a business, goodwill and intangible asset with indefinite useful life {continued)

Goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives (continued)

Movement in the-carrying amount of goodwill was as follows:

2019 2018
Carrying amount at 1 January 301 327
Acquisition of subsidiary- 21 -
Translation difference (5) {26)
C'arrying_amount at 31 December 317 301

The carfying amounts of goodwill as of 31 December 2019 and 2018 include an accumulated goodwill
impairrhent of AZN 3.

The carrying value of the goodwili at 31 December 2019 has been tested for impairment through comparison
with its recoverable amount. Based on the value-in-use calculations of Petkim and its subsidiaries, recoverable.
amount was equal to AZN 5 426 as of 31 December 2019. Pre-tax cash flows projections used fof this. purpose
are based on annual busiriess plan approved by management covering 10-year period. Management believes
that.the underlying cash flows projections. represent accurate and reliable. forecast. Cash flow projections
beyond 10-year period are extrapolated by terminal growth rates of 2.3 per cent and then discounted to their
net present value, applying WACC, used as a discount rate of 11.4 per cent. As aresult-of the test performed,
no impairment has been identified. Valuation exercise is highly sensitive to WACC and terminal growth rate.

If the estimated discount rate used in the calculation had been 0.3 per cent higher/lower than management’s
estimate, the value in use would have been AZN 216 lower / AZN 233 higheér, respectively,

If the terminal growth rate used in the calculation had been 0.3 per cent higher/lower than management's
estimate, the value in use would have been AZN 180 higher / AZN 148 lower, Tespectively.

As a result of the sensitivity analysis, no impairment charge was identified.
Testing of the carrying value of goodwill related to acquisition of SOCAR Energy Holdings AG

The carrying value of the goodwill at 31 December 2019 hag been tested for impairment through comparison,
with its recoverable amount. Based on the value-in-use'calculations of SOCAR. Energy Holdings AG and its
subsidiaries, recoverable amount was equal to AZN 967 as of 31 December 2019. Pre-tax cash flows
prOJectlons used for this purpose-are based on annual business plan approved by management covefing
5-year period. Management believes that the underlying cash flows projections. represent accurate and reliable
forecast. Cash flow projéctions beyond 5- -year period are eXtrapolated by terminal growth rates of 1.5 percent
and then discourited to their net presént value, applying WACC, used as a discount rate of 6 per.cent: As a
result of the test performed, no impairment has been identified. Valuation exercise is hlghlyr sensitive to WACC
and terminal growth rate.

tf the estimated discount rate used in the calculation had been 1 pércent hlgherllower than management's
gstimate; the valug in use would have béen AZN 175 lower / AZN 274 highef, respectively.

if the terminal growth rate used. in the caléulation had been 0.25 per cent higher/loweér than management's
estimate, the value in use would have been AZN 47 higher / AZN 42 lower, respectively.

As-a resulf of the sensitivity analysis, no impairment charge was identified.
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39.  Business combination, acquisition of non-controlling interests, acquisition of subsidiary which
is not-a business, goodwill and intangible asset with indefinite useful life {continued)

Testing of the:carrying value of goodwill related to acquisition of SOCAR Trading

The carrying value of the goodwill at 31 December 2019 has been tested for impairment through comparison
with its recoverable amount. Based on the value-in-use calculations of SOCAR Trading and its subsidiaries,
recoverable amount was equal to AZN 1,050 as of 31 December 2019. Pre-tax cash flows projections used
for this purpose are based on annual business plan- approved by management covering S-year pericd.
Management believes that the underlying cash flows projections represent accurate and reliable forecast.
Cash flow projections beyond 5-year period are extrapolated by terminal growth rates of 1. per cent and then

discounted to their net present value, applying WACC, used as a discount rate of 12 per cent. As a result of

the test performed, ne impairment has been identified. Valuation exercise is. highly sensitive to WACC and

terminal growth rate.

If the estimated discount rate'used in the_cal_cu’l'ation had been 0.25 per cenit higherflower than managemeént's
eslimate, the value in use would have been AZN 15 lower/.AZN 16 higher, respectively,

If the terminal growth rate used in the calculation had been 0.25 per cent higher/iower than management's
estimate, the value in use woild have been-AZN § higher / AZN 5 lower, respectively.

As a resuit of the sensitivity analysis, no impairment charge was.identified.

Testing of the licence related to UBEP

The-license of UBEP gives right to the Group to produce and sell natural gas and condensate of Umid field
and exploit Babek field. Carrying value of license at 31 December 2019 has been tested for impairment through
comparison with its recoverable amount. Recoverable arount has been determined based on the-value-in-use
calcufations of UBEP as AZN 881 as of 31 December 2019, Cash flow projestions used for this purpose-are
based onfinancial forecast covering PSA life which Is 23 years: As a result of the tést performed, naimpairment
was identified.

The vaiuation exercises are sensifive to the change in WACC, which was taken into account by the Group,
as 12.67 per cent throughout the projection period. '

If WACG used.in the caloulation had been 1 per cent higher/lower than managément’s estimate; the valuein
use would have been AZN 94 lower / AZN 107 higher, respectively. As a result of the sensitivity anailysis, no
impairment was identified. '

40, Material partly-owned subsidiaries

Financial information of subsidiaries that have material non-controlling interests is provided below:

Proportion of equity interest held by non-contraliing interests:

Country of ‘Country of _
Name incorporation operation 2019 2018
Petkim Turkey Turkey 49% 49%
BOS Shelf International FZCQ UAE Azérbaijan 20% 20%
SOCAR Polymer LLC Azerbaijan Azerbaijan 43% 48%

Acecumulated balances of mat_eri'él non-controllifig interests:

Name. 2019 2018
Petkim 912 928
BOS Shelf International FZCO 23 18
SOCAR Polymer LLC 131 161
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40.  Material partly-owned subsidiaries {continued)

Profit allocated to material non-controlling interésts:

Name 2019 2018
Petkim _ 97 132
BOS Shelf International FZCO 17 11
SOCAR Polymer LLC (38) (21)

The summarised financial information of these subsidiaries is provided below. This information is based on

amounts before intér-company eliminations:

Summarised statement.of profit or loss.and other compreheénsive income for 2019:

BOS Shelf
International SOCAR
Petkim FZCO Polymer LLC

Revenue 3,495 171 52
Cost of salés (3,043) {104) (36)
General and administrative expenses (87) (2) 27)
Bistribution expenses: (32) - (8)
Other operating income: i11 31 -
Other operating expense {104) - {14)
Interest revenue calculated using effectlve

interest method 39 - 2
Finance costs (133) - (19)
Foreign exchange loss (22} - -
Profit before tax 224 96 (50)
income tax expense (28) (10) (36)
Profit for the year from continuing operations 196 86 {86}
Other comprehensive loss o be reclassified to _

profit or loss In subsequent periods: _ {229} (6) -
Total comprehensive (loss)lincome _ (33) ao {86)
Attribitable to hon-controlling interests (18) 16 (38)
Pividends declaréd to non-controliing interests - 11 -
Summar'i'sed."statement._df-proﬁt-or- loss and other comiprehensive income. for 2018:

BOS Shelf
International SOCAR
Petkim FZCOo. Palymer LLC

Revenue 3,358 110 -
Cost of sales (2,815) (58) -
General and administrative expenses {93) (1) (34}
Distribution expenses (28) - -
Other operating income 169 10 -
Other operating expense (189) - -
Interest revenue calculated using effective _

interest method 82 - -
Finance costs (132) - -
Foreign exchange.gain _ {23) 4 3
Profit before tax 329 57 {31}
Income tax eéxpense (B0) (4) (15)
Profit for the year from continuing operations 269 53 (46)
Other comprehensive loss to be reclassified to o

profit or loss in subsequent periods (742) (28) -
Total somprehensive (loss)lincome (473} 27 (46)
Aftributable to non-controlling interests (232) 5 21
Dividends declared to non-controlling interests 85 20 -
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40. Material parﬂ_y‘—owned-subsidiariﬁes (continued)

‘Summarised statement of financial position as-at 31 December 2019;

BOS Shelf _
International SOCAR
Petkim ‘FZCO Polymer LLC

Current assets 2,732 266 112
including.:
Cash and cash-equivalents 1,154 139 1
Trade.and other receivables 448 65 55
Inventories 270 1 50
Other currént assets 862 61 6.
Non-current assets 2,071 6 1,367
including:
Property, plant and equipment 1,715 4 1,350
Intangible assets 204 2 10
Other non-cuyrent assets. 152 - 7
Current liabilities {1,467) (159) (308)
including:
Short-term borrowings and current portion of

tong-term borrowings (708) = {101)
Lease liability, current (14) - -
Trade and other payables (745) {159) (207)
Non-currerit liabilities {1,475) - (705}
including:
Long-term borrowings {1,282) - {666)
Deferred income (66) - -
Other provisions for liabilities and charges, “n - -
Deferred tax labilites (96) - (33)
Lease liability, hon-current’ - - (6)
Total equity 1,861 113 466
Attributable to: _
Equity holders of parent 949 o0 316
Nori-controlling interests 912 23, 150
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40. Material partly-owned subsidiaries {continued)

Summarised statement of financial position as at 31 Decémber 2018:

BOS Shelf _
International SOCAR
Petkim FZCO Polymer LLC
Current assets 2,571 226 67
including: _ '
Cash and cash-equivalents 967 130 4]
Trade and other receivables 385 49 29
Inventories 366 2 20
Cther current assets: 853 45 12
Non-current assets 2,145 T 1,330
including:
Properly, plant and equipment 1,759 6 1,319
Intangible assets 232 1 5
Qthernon-current assets 154 - 6
Current liabilities {(1,240) {(145) (244)
including: '
Short-term borrowings and current portion of _
long-term horrowings (480) - (133)
Trade and other-payables (760) (145) (111}
Non-current liabilities {1,582} - (683)
incliding:
Long-term borrowings {1,383) - (683)
Deferred income {57) -~ -
Other provisions for liabilities and charges (34) = -
Deferred tax lizbilities- {108) - -
Total equity 1,894 88 470
Attributable to: _ '
Equity holders of parent 966 70. 267
Non-controlling interests 928 18 203
Summarised cash flow information foryéar ended 31 Decémber 2018:
BOS Shelf
International SOCAR
Petkimn FZCO Polymer LLGC
Operating 414 88 (38)
Investing (187) 4 (1%
Financing _ 53 (B4) 44
Net foreign exchange difference on cash and _
cash equivalents {(83) = -
Net increase/(decrease) in ¢ash and
cash-equivalerits ' 187 9 {4)
Summarised cash flow information for year ended 31 December 2018;
'BOS Shelf
International SOCAR
Petkim FZCO Polymer LLC
Operating 478 80 {106)
Investing 888 {3) (66)
Financing 832 (169) 143
Net foreign exchange difference on cash and o
cash equivalents (112} {4) {1
Net increasef{decrease) ih cash and '
cash equivalents ' 310 {96) {30}
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41, Events after reporting date
COVID-19

On 30 January 2020, the Werld Health Organization (WHO) declared the corohavirus outhreak a "Public Heaith
Emergency of International Concern”. In light of the recent rapid development of the coronaviris {COVID-19)
pandemic, many countries introduced quarantine measures. The outbreak resulted in drastic decling ifi trading
and economic activity over the globe and unprecedented economic downtyrn put significant pressure on
demand for oil and-oil products which ultimately resulted in sharp drop in oil prices. It is expected that both the
pandemic itself and measures to rinimize. its consequences can affect the operations of companies from
various industries. The Group considers this pandemic as a non-adjusting event after the reporting period.

Charter capital and additional paid-in capital

Buring subsequent:period, the Group’s additional paid-in capital was increased.in the amount of AZN 43 In

-addition, additional paid-in capital ih the amcunt of AZN 62 was fegistered to charter capital.

New loans

Subsequent to reporting period, thé Group obtained new long-term and short-term loans in'the amount of AZN

964 (USD 567 million), AZN 46 (EUR 24 million}, AZN 153 (TRY 537 mitlion) and AZN'8 (RUB 308 million)

from several local and international banks.

‘Loan repayments

Buring subsequent period, the Group repaid its o_u:tstan’_din'g Ioans in the amount of AZN 887 (USD 522 million),
AZN 156 (TRY 545 million), AZN 4 (RUB 144 mitlion), AZN 8 (GEL 16 million) and AZN 26 to severai local and
international banks.

Investments
On 21 January 2020, the Group agquired 18.3 per cent shares of SOCAR Energy Georgia for the consideration

of AZN 85 (USD 38 million). As a result, the Group's controlling ownership i SOCAR Energy Georgia
increased fram 75.5 per cent to 91.8 per cent.
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